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these seventeen years, no one ever looked at one of those water plant
TE,f

Mr. Tanporeee. T would have liked to see them right now.

Mr. Erener. We would, too, but there was no place that you could
send the reports to. No one checked the reports. It was just a report
it you filled out.

Mr. Forn. I expect that the average person, like you and me, who’s
had fire insurance on our home hasn’t bothered to read the policy,
but after the fire we sure want to read the fine print real quick.

Mr. Ercuzr. I agree. But, I'll tell you that at this particular time
we didn’t have a log. And then they recommended we keep a log on
the well, which we did.

Mr. LANDGREBE. S0, there were no records kept ?

Mr, Ercuaer. That’s right.

Mr. Lawnnermer. Could we then ask that this gentleman provide
us with a letter, can he provide us with a certified letter that he did
test that water twicea day

Mr. Ererner. All right. Very good.

Mr. Lawooreee. That is, during that time?

Mr. EicHER. Yes. -

Mr. Laxperesr. This matter of finding human waste in the water
tank. This couldn’t have been caused by a child.

Mr. Erxcuer. No, sir. That tank is 105 feet tall. .

Mr. Lianperere. Would you consider this to be possibly bordering
on an act of subversion or something more than just an accident?
In other words, tell us how can you possibly conceive of anybody
possibly doing anything like that? .

Mr. Ercrer. T was going to say, you tell me, because I can’t con-
ceive of anyone doing that. You give me an explanation. At the time
we ean analyze the workings of the human mind, we'll be making
a glant step forward.

3 r. L.avparepr. It indicates to me, this statement, that there were
carvings on the storage tank lid. There was an indication of this,
and vou say people went up there and removed the lid. Now, how much
more action does it take for you to either guard the place or to fence
it off7 We've heard about people being fenced in at night, but don’t
vou think that the Federal Government could have afforded to put a
chain-link fence around that facility with a padlock that would have
made it impossible to get in? Certainly making sure that the water
in those faucets do not have human waste in them would be one of
the primary duties of the pure water man that you employ

Mr. Ercier. Sir, yon answer me, who could possibly conceive of
a person doing a thing like this?

- Muv. Laxncreer. Well, we don’t want to belabor this, but I think
it is a tremendously important point to get into these hearings. And,
even if we discussed it all day long, it wouldn’t be too much time,
heeause we had a lot of people here talking about the lack of interest
for migrant workers, and the fact these people are the forgotten
people of the world and that they are slaves. And, we’ve had testimony
¢

v,v
whout the crew leaders who have taken all their money, and this,
hat, and the other thing. But, how in the world can we possibly go to
the point of providing a facility and supervising it and maintaining it
anc then believe that a human could be this tremendously low. And,
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T think this would be a good point for some of these OEO lawyers to
study, to go into your camp and interview people and find out how and
who'it was that committed this atrocious act. And, I'd like to see this
done by Mr. Rothman.

Mr. Excrzr. T think you have a good point.

But, sir, this is not unique to this particular water tank. Because,
in a conversation with Mr. Lee who is the superintendent of the Rex
Utilities Co. that is now supplying water to this particular
campsite. Mr. Lee told me, when I find out how to keep them off my
tank, to let him know, because he’s even charged wires around the
base of his tank, and that didn’t work. And he has exhausted every
effort that he can think of to keep people off that tank.

He has just recently painted that tank, because 1t was_defaced
with a spray can, and people run all over his tank. Sc this is not
just a problem confined to our particular tank.

Mr. Lanparese. This reminds me of a story of a Japanese boy
being abused supposedly by American soldiers, but he kept smiling.
And somebody told him, “Why do you take all this abuse and keep
smiling #” And he said, “When these guys stop abusing me, I’ll stop
urinating in their tea.” R

I don’t know if you're urinating in my tea, or I'm urinating in
yours. )

T don’t know if the Federal Government could be mowzm something,
in providing Federal housing, that makes these people feel they can
contaminate the water supply of their own kind.

Mr. Ercmer. Well, let’s not generalize, because we have 1,472 people,
and if somebody else is saying that we have around 2,000, maybe of that
number there is only one or two people doing this. The rest of those
people are good people. )

Mr. Lanperese. But that one person can be found. If he was 1n
Russia, he’d be found and he would be shot before sunrise.

Mr. Ficurz. I he was in Russia, he couldn’t have done this.

Mr. Lanpermee. All right. How about the well? Have you any
observations about the matter of the 20-foot-deep or 50-foot-deep well ?

Mr. Ercaer. Well, on the well situation, when we provided this
plan for this labor camp, the housing project, we went out to find the
best professional expertise in the way of engineering and archi-
tects and so forth. In this case, we did secure the services of what we
thought was a competent engineering firm. ) .

This engineering firm then came back with plans and specifications
for this particular water system. Now, we then sent these plans and
specifications to the Health Department, and first we sent them to
the Federal Government to the Farmers Home Administration, De-
partment of Agricnlture, and they had it reviewed by their engineer-
ing section. Then we sent them out to the Department of Health at
the local level, and they observed the plans with their engineering
staff. And they sent them to the engineering section at State level
where the plans for this well were approved and then sent back.
And, then this was approved, this approved plan was turned over
to a general contractor. And that contractor ordered a well drilled.

The plans said 20 feet and he drilled a 20-foot well. Now, sir, as

an Administrator of this Housing Authority, I can’t very well have
the authority and the Federal Government pay for the expertise they



218

have in this thing, and then me tell them as an Administrator that
they don’t know what they are doing when they are digging that
well. The well is in conformity with the plans. )

Mr. Laxparese. The good doctor said that according to the plan
the well depth according to that plan was found to be 50 feet. “

I am asking you, if you will cooperate in determining whether the
plans required a 50-foot well, or not.

Mr. Ercuer. I think at the hearing in Tallahassee yesterday that
these specifications were specifically modified, and perhaps it would
he of interest to you to get a transcript of that hearing in Tallahassee
on that same subject. )

Mr. Fowp, Was it a legislative hearing?

[ At this time the reporter notes that several individuals from the
audience indicate it was a legislative panel involving a committee on
health and rehabilitation.] "

Mr. Forp. All right.

Mr. Kicier. The plans for that well, the approved plan, called for
a 20-foot well. And, that is what we have. A 20-foot, 6-inch well,
with—well, it is a 20-foot—=8-inch well. Now, there is question what
constitutes a 6-inch well and what constitutes an S-inch well. And,
Il give a country boy’s analogy of it. A lole is in the ground, and
ith a 6-inch pipe, that is a 6-inch well. And, when you're speaking
of well size in terms of suction pipe. that is a method where you bid
for the water within the casing. The bid pipe is a 3-inch pipe, and the
other can be a 4-inch pipe on those two wells, but the actual size of the
well 1s a 6-inch. And when you measure the diameter of the steel casing
driven under the ground,’it is a 6-inch well, or it is an 8-inch élﬂ
and these two wells do extend down 20 feet in depth into the ground.
And at this point we're talking about a well log. Now, I don’t know
what the well log is. I assume it is something that the well driller
must submit, but I have no knowledge as to even what we're talking
about on that. So T can’t go into that. A1l T could tell you at this wogwm
is that the wells were drilled according to the plans submitted and the
permit that was taken out.

Mr. Forp. Ave you a native of this area ?

Mr. Ficner. No,sir. But I've lived here 30 years.

e Lawnerese. Give us a country boy's opinion whether you think
a 20-foot well is adequate. 7 .

Mr. Ercrer. Well, sir, at this particular location T think that we
may have a problem with salt intrusion or chloride in contamination
of the well. That is, whether it is 20 feet or 40 feet. And, we have a
Biscayne aquifer. It is a fresh water layer floating on the salt water
layer. This layer of fresh water is thinner as it reaches the area of
the coast, so we're maybe inland several miles you may drill an 80-foot
well with fresh water, at this particnlar point a 20- or 40-foot well
wnnot be in fresh water. And. this is mavbe whv the enoineers de-
cided on a 20-foot well. And there are 70000 wells. T be-
leve, in use at Dade Countv today. and the majority of them are
no deeper fhan 20 feet. But we have engineers and experts and T don't
know anvthing ahout wells. . . \

Mr. Laxnerere. T am going to close. But first. on January 9. recom-
mendations were made to the Homestead Housing Authority for
methods of improving their water supply service. However, these
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recommendations were not implemented. But additional studies on
the water supply for January 8, 12, February 1, 8, 22, 23, 27 and 28,
showed a safe water supply. And, the doctor said that you didn’t make
the correction the way he asked, but you did do it. And, have his recom-
mendations been met?

Mr. Ercasr. Yes, sir, I think we have complied with all five. One of
the requests or recommendations on that was that we use a scale to
weigh the chlorine tank. And we have scales there. But in the past,
the distant past, we've had problems with using scales to determine
the contents of chlorine tanks, because where you're running 150-
pound cylinders, and extracting 2 pounds per day, that cylinder has
75 days theoretically, or that amount of time. Even a small leak then
bleeds off some of your chlorine, so if you start off with 300 pounds,
and you have a leak or something, you run out, and your scale still
shows you have chlorine in the system. And we thought it much better
to have an automatic switchover system rather than depend on one
system, which we did.

Mr. Lanpereee. The doctor, on the Chairman’s request, is to bring
us or provide us with a copy of his recommendations. Will you be
kind enough, and again if the Chairman agrees with this request, to
provide us for the record with a letter that indicates how you have
met his recommendations?

Mr. Ercner. Yes,sir.

Mr. Forp. The record will be, without objection, so entered.

Mr. LanpereeE. Just tell us how you got the job done.

Mr. Ercuer. All right. Do you have a list of his recommendations
there?

Mr. Foro. Don'’t forget, for 17 years he’s never made an unreasonable
request of you.

Mr. Lanooreee. We don’t have a list of them. But, you must have
them.

Mr. Ercuzer. Do you want that in letter form?

Mr. LanpereBE. Your response to his recommendations in a letter,
and send it to the committee for the record.

Mr., Eicmer. All right. Thank you, gentlemen.

[The letters referred to follow:]

DADE CoUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH.
Miami, Fla., January 9, 1978.

Re Potable Water Supply for South Dade Labor Camp.

HoUsING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF HOMESTEAD,
Homestead, Fla.
(Attention of Mr. George Eicher, Executive Director).

GENTLEMEN : We are concerned that recent cases of illness suffered by tenants
of the South Dade Labor Camp may be directly linked to the camp water supply
as it was found to be unfit for human consumption on Deec, 29, 1972,

Our records reveal that bad samples have been collected from this system on
the following dates: January 20 & 26, 1971, June 15 & 22. 1971, September 4,
1971, November 2 & 9, 1971, July 27, 1972, August 1, 1972, December 29, 1972 and
January 2, 1973.

Engineering and Sanitation personnel from this department made a thorough
inspection of this system on January 2, 1973, with the following conclusions:
The system is capable of producing a potable water supply providing it is prop-
erly serviced and maintained. Therefore, it will be necessary that the following
recommendations as per Kenneth R. Pfeiffer, Engineering Section, be required:
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1. Obtain a licensed water plant operator as required under Section 10D-11 of
the Division Rules.

2. Flush the distribution system through all hydrants and dwelling units until
such time as a chlorine residual is obtained. Periodic flushing will be required to
maintain a residual.

A scale should be utilized to weigh chlorine cylinders. This would permit

nging of cylinders period to their running dry. Also it would give better

r general chlorine addition.

4. The existing duplex chlorinator should be utilized whereby two cylinders
he connected. When one approaches the dry level the second cylinder can be

1i v activated and the dry one replaced.

Monthly operating reports giving daily flows, chlorine wused, and chlorine

s shounld be maintained. Forms for such a report are available through the

rnng (101

u hiave any questions concerning the contents of this letter, do not hesitate

1tnct this office,

Yery truly yours,

MILToN S, Sasraw, M. D, M.P.H.,
Director.

HoUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF HHOMESTEAD,
Homestead, Fla., April 19,1975.
Hon. Wirrian Forn, Chairman, Subcommittee on Agricultural Labor of the
om tec on Education and Labor, Washington, D.C.

Dear Caamman Forp. In accordance with our discussion at the hearing held

in Miami, Florida. on Saturday, April 7, 1973, we enclose herewith for your
mation a copy of the recommendation letter received on approximately
'v 10, 1973 with respect to the water system at South Dade Labor Camp,
operated by the Homestead Housing Authority. Taking the matters point by
point T feel an explanation will assist in clarifying the steps taken and the
accomplished.
1. Mr. Smith is a licensed water plant operator, Certificate #1470. He has
inually been in the employ of the Housing Authority of the City of Home-
d, Florida for a period of 18 years and has been on the premises without
erruption (including no vacation) for the last 12 months. Therefore, the
statement that no licensed operator was at the camp is an erronecus statement
and has been now retracted by the Dade County Health Department, they, having
confirmed that in fact there is a licensed operator on site.

2. The system was flushed on January 15, 1973 in the presence of Mr. Smith
and Mr. Sokoloft, Department of Health, Sanitarian.

A seale was in prior use, however, proved to be unreliable. Therefore this
nmendation was considered not applicable with the addition of the new
‘nt deseribed in Paragraph 4 hereof.

amination by a competent engineer revealed that the duplex chlorinator
and described in paragraph 4 was being utilized to it's fullest design
lity. There is no provision for nor can any alteration be made that would
‘he connection of two cylinders to this devise. Further study revealed that
e was a newly devised chlorine injection system being manufactured which
would utilize two cylinders with a fully automatic switchover feature, This system
is not readily available in the local market, Therefore, an order was placed for
the complefe new system, which was installed on or about February 15, 1973.
5. A water use log was placed in service immediately and chlorine tests were
increased fo four tests daily. The log was terminated when the water supply
sysfem of the South Dade Labor Camp was commenced with Rex Utilities, a
private water company supplying water to the South Dade community.

Thank you for the opportunity to appear at the hearing and respond to the
varions questions posed. We truly hope that positive benefits will be forthcoming
a vesult of your effort with respect of the Agricnltural Labor problem. Spe-
we would enlist your aid and support in whatever fashion you may
appropriate to our pending request for funding of the additional 400 unit
proposed by the Homesfead Housing Authority. We feel it will be a benefit
to the community and the migrant situation. As the hearing pointed out the Home-
stead Honsing Authority does operate its camp on an economically feasible basis
till affording fo the agricultural farm workers and migrants excellent housing
facilities at costs 50 percent or more under the current community level.

Very truly yours,

GEORGE KICHER,
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HousiNg AUTHORITY OF THEE CITY OF HOMESTEAD,
Homestead, Fla., April 16, 1978.
Hon. Wirrtam Forp, Chairman, Subcommitiee on Agricultural Labor of the
Committee on Hducation and Labor, Washington, D.C.

Dear CHAIRMAN Fomrp. In accordance with your request communicated to
Mr. George Eicher, Executive Director of the Housing Authority of the City
of Homestead, Florida, January 1, 1973 through March 31, 1973, I, Raymond
L, Smith caused to be checked the water system of the South Dade Labor Camp
operated by the Housing Authority of the City of Homestead, Florida as to it's
operation, chlorination, and other matters usually and normally checked. The
checks are performed by me in my capacity as a licensed water system operator
and consist of physically inspecting the water pump house, the level of chlorina-
tion, volume of water pumped, the mechanical condition of the water pumps
and chlorine injections systems,

Very truly yours,
GroreE EI10HER, Executive Director,

Attest:

RayMonND L. SMITH.

Witness :

VirgINIA O'NEILL.

Mr. Forn. We have Wendell Rollason, executive director of the
Redland Christian Migrants Association.

Mr. Rollason, we have your prepared statement, and without objec-
tion it will be entered in full.

[Information referred to follows:]

TESTIMONY BY WENDELL N. RoLLASON, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, REDLANDS CHRIS-
TIAN MIGRANT ASSOCIATION, Mrami, Fra.

DADE COUNTY, FLA.,, A FAVORABLE SPOT FOR MIGRANTS

Dade County is an area where far more things are going right for migrants
families than wrong. Over the past five or six years, this county has become
an oasis, a haven of unparallelled proportions . . . for the farmworkers when
contrasted with any other sectors of the state.

With almost the sole exception of the citrus groves of Coca Cola, which
were causing corporate ulcers to flare up at the thought of being boycotted by
millions of American youth, the only substantial progress in improvement of
migrant conditions in the state over the past 20 years had been made here in
Dade County.

T begin my testimony on this positive note because it happens to be the truth,
and should have a place in congresssional hearings. I attended my first such
hearing in 1954 in the auditorium of the South Dade Labor Camp—the very
same building which housed the emergency clinic in the recent typhoid epidemic.

During the ensuing two decades I have participated in most of the many
failures, the agonizing frustrations, and the few successes which paved the way
to the past few years of truly significant changes in loeal attitudes, priorities,
and allocation of resources directed toward assisting the migrant to upgrade his
own socio-economic conditions.

This progress has been local, achieved by local government, local agencies,
local groups. Federal funds have been heavily involved, largely misdirected in
original concept—concepts which had to be contested vigorously by local persons
and government.

Let me offer three examples. Beginning with the currently beleagured Home-
stend Housing Authority and its two new labor camps built with Farmers Home
Administration monies. we have good migrant housing with few equals any-
where along the Eastern Seashore. Had not the Housing Authority fought
Washington to a standstill on the matter, the migrants would have been cursed
with two-storied slum type concrete monsters instead of the present homes and
apartments surrounded with good sized yards for kids to play in. The Teds
offered cubicles, the Housing Authority insisted upon houses.

In the aftermath of the 1971 severe freeze in South Florida. Metropolitan
Dade County firmly rejected ‘the imposition of crew chiefs as the ones to run
the emergency work program for migrants. Federal and state farm labor



saw their plans to continue government support of the crew chief
« aside in favor of turning the program over to control by migrant
rthemselves, It was a bold move by the county government. It worked

of tocal Hstablishment backing migrants to the hilt is the
from Florida’s Department of Commerce the U.S. Department
it Manpower Delivery System (MMDS) training program. It
k to relate the story properly.

Here just let me point out that in addition to the Dade County Manager and
Dade's Board of Publie Instruction, major business executives of downtown
of the local Manpower Area Planning Council—stood

a left out of the migrant training program. This united front forced
fer of the MMDS program to Florida International University.

Now the farmworkers are fully involved in the planning and decision making
wwes of rthe program as well as having pieces of the program’s action via

i mmvented.
Of equal interest to the Subcommittee, as examples of the use of local re-
sources and the quality of local attitudes, there might be cited . . . the Dade

school authorities who have instituted strong migrant parent and migrant
leadership involvement in school programming affecting their children . . .
farmworkers who are now included in a full variety of planning and advisory
bodies on the local level . . . the United Fund of Dade County which allocates
substantial funds as “local share” for child day care centers in three major labor
camps . . . in the 1971 freeze when the Dade County Agricultural Disaster
Committee, made up entirely of growers and farming interests, became the first
local committee in the United States to petition Presidential aid for mi-
i farmworkers . . . locally based military units (SMAR Naval Reserve
up, the Homestead Air Base, and the Missile Site crews) are making very
ifiennt contributions to the total community effort in hehalf of farmworker

lies,
It is my hope that, as T continue with some pinpoint discussion of federally
funded migrant programming. the Subcommittee will accept my remarks within
framework of these opening comments,

HEALTH CONDITIONS AND HEALTH PROGRAMING

Environmental eonditions in the farm labor of Dade County range from ex-
cellent to poor, Throughout the rest of South Florida, with a very few notable
exceptions the camps range from mediocre to horrible.

Yef over the entire area the same identical state laws are applicable, the same

Stafe Mealth Division has jurisdiction over all labor camps in the state. S0, why
the vast differences in enforcement?
Defore attempting to answer this question I wish to emphasize here what I
v said in Tallahassee before the joint Legislative Commission on Migrant
. The state agency with the best record of effort in behalf of farmworkers,
fate agency with staff of the most genuine dedication to duty in behalf of
the farmworkers unguestionably is the Florida Department of Health.

Befnre ir judgment can be assessed against the Department or its Dade
County unit. an examination of the legal and financial tools provided them—or
more honestly, nof provided them, must be made.

[t is a sorry record. State laws are weak and speak very softly about labor
camps. A health inspector in the deep rural areas quickly becomes a “trouble-
maker” and endangers his job, if he messes around with the wrong labor camps.
I would point out that this was true also in Dade back in the mid 50's.

Tt was in 1954 or '55 that I took the Dade County Health Unit before the
Grand Jury over lax enforcement in our loecal camps. This was done with the
clandestine support of several conscientions inspectors who correctly saw this
to he the only way out from under threatening nolitical pressures of the time.

The strategy worked. From that time on the Dade Health Department hecame
the most sincere friend the migrant has had through the years in local gov-
ernment. It is one of those ironie twists in the affairs of man that I am the prime
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individual who has in the past several years thwarted their efforts to close three
of the area’s worst labor camps. But, more of that later.

The current development of a new South Dade health and medical delivery
system, already successfully tested in the crucible of the typhoid tragedy, is a
thrilling justification for the proper expenditure of federal funds. The migrants,
the poor in general, and the community as a whole are getting their money’s
worth here.

As this testimony is not to be a puff job, I must point to a serious error in
Jjudgement made, despite caution and blunt warnings from us of the Redlands
Christian Migrant Association, when migrant monies were pulled away from
the Dade Health Department to be given instead to this new health delivery
system.

Funds that paid for 15 Public Health nurses which had worked for years in
the labor camps were eliminated and this vital service to migrants has never
been reinstated.

The migrant child in Dade has suffered seriously from this appalling error in
judgement. 1 would point out to the Subcommittee that this whole typhoid horror
might have been minimized if the Public Health nurses had been daily on the
scene at the time, My claim is based upon the fact that not a single infant or
toddler in our day care center, who regularly attended, was stricken with
typhoid. We attribute this to the alertness of our own staff registered nurse,
who had been employed because of the general deterioration of child health
conditions in labor camps over the past two years.

Several weeks prior to the first identified case of typhoid the RCMA nurse,
alarmed over the rising ineidence of diarrhea in the Sowth Dade Camp, insti-
tuted a rigorous sanitation campaign at the center which disconnected all drink-
ing fountains, required the use of boiled water only, and had us all washing
our hands every time we turned around.

Had the Dade health authorities had the environmental health manpower,
which the feds stripped from them, it is my firm convietion that the typhoid
story could have turned out quite differently.

Also, RCMA feels that a clear picture must be given of the fact that elements
of the Dade health picture is mot all peaches and cream by any means. The
abuse that little children from farmworker families—ill or injured-——face at the
hands of some hospitals receiving federal monies is too fresh and too recent
to not mention here, despite the fact that I believe the new health delivery will
g0 a long way towards eliminating this disgusting type incident.

In Dade we unquestionably are well on the way to providing adequate health
care and god living conditions to farmworker families in camps that remain
open in the Fall of this year. However, the stark tragedy of the typhoid out-
break demonstrates all too graphically the dangerously thin ice upon which
we are still skating.

HOUSING : YOU'RE DAMNED IF YOU DO AND. ..

Money and housing are synonymous. If you don’t have the one you're not
gonna get the other. Whether one is listening to Metropolitan Dade County
Little HUD staff’s sociological-implications-of-variations-in-housing-patterns or
Homestead Housing Authority staff’s four-walls-and-a-roof-plus-a-stove-and-a-
refrigerator, it all boils down to you build when you have the money and you
don’'t when you don’t.

Iiven though the Homestead Authority is the current dog in the manger, I
prefer their brand of talk for the sole reason that they’re the only housing agency
in Dade that has built housing for migrants. Their record speaks only of success.

Their brand of talk is the same brand spoken by the conservative controlled
Department of Agriculture’s Farmers Home Administration. There isn't man
or agency in Dade north of Perrine that could pry a nickel out of that particular
Washington outfit.

‘The present hangup of funds for the projected Bverglades Labor Camp ix a
politieal thing controlled by the White House and in no way alters the point
that when federally funded housing for farmworkers is authorized it's 100-to-1
that the Homestead Housing Authority will be the agency getting the money.

And they should. for they’'ve done well with itin the past.

They along with the Dade Health Department have been variously charged
through press and television with responsibility for the typhoid outbrealk, Maybe
they are guilty. But maybe they're not. The issue is in the courts, and properly
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rtain that there will be 50¢% less migrant housing in Novewber
1 ex today. I won't rehash this already well discussed iscue here, but
* the reprinted RCMA letter to the Miami News appearing on the opposite
2 additional testimony on the subject.

We feel that the agricnltural industry is in the political position to exert
sure on the White House to release the promised $6.2 million for
1 Everglades Camp. The community is insisting that the three sub-
rd camps which we had held open awaiting the building of that new camp
now he closed and demolished. RCMA is heading this insistence.

We hope this move will pry loose the funds., But money or e, those camps
are closing,

This isn't a step we are taking lightly, for it could add another page of extreme
lardships to hundreds of migrant families next Fall. And I caution the Subcom-
mittee to be prepared for another hearing next February on this very subject. If
something doesn’t give between now and then we could well have another catas-
trophe on our hands.

I have included here several stories out of RCMA's files that to me catch the
* of the migrant agony in housing shortages. I ask that each of you reflect
the hell and the torment of being a parent under such circumstances.
In making fthese to-close-or-not-to-close decisions, be it the Health Department
ROMA, de it one side or both, we all are damned if we do and damned if we

. Bur it will be the migrant families which are canght once again in the
ms of the pit.

EDUCATION OF THE MIGRANT CHILD

The Florida Department of Eduecation is making excellent use of federal
funds aimed at providing the migrant child with much needed additional snp-
portive education. Its preschool Early Learning program is superb, a national
model. Tts use of Title T money to support local schools with high enrollments
of migrant yougsters is good, excepting for counties from which we get repeated
whisperings that loeal funds, which normally would go into a given school,
are somehow withheld in amounts equal or partially equal to federal monies
supplied. If this be so—and the persistence of the reports to us would indicate
validity—then the emigrant children are being cheated out of aid they desperately
need and which the Congress itself has given to them.

From Title IV-A of the Social Security Act federal monies are channelled

day care services for migrant toddlers via Florida's Division of Family
Services. The Redlands Christian Migrant Association operates three such cen-
ters in three labor camps. We invite the Subcommittee to visit them.
They are now being seriously threatened by proposed new rules from HIEW
i will deny day care Services to all children but those from families on
fare. We of ROMA serve 182 children. Only eight of these are from welfare
€8,

We are appalled at the ultimate consequences of such idioey.

If that isn’t enongh, consider the companionate proposed stricture that would
prevent the use of local private monies as the required 25% “local share.” In
the case of our day care program this would bar our current support from the
United Fund and wipe out virtually all the migrant child centers here in Dade
County.

ADULT EDUCATION, SKILL TRAINING AND THE MMDS PROGEAM

First, T would comment on the HEP program at the University of Miami.
This is the high school equivalency program which provides the migrant drop-
out with the opportunity to get back in. They are deing a terrific job with these
young people. 1 wish you could double the program's budget. It's that good. The
federal dollar here huys its money's worth.

R 1.1 can =ay the same thing for the Florida Department of Rdueation's
grant programming in «ix different areas of the state. The leadership
i« excellent, the motivation is high, and the results are very good. They handle
1t 800 students annually, T believe. They do rhis in depth, meeting what-
ever it takes fo prepare that man or woman for a new occupation and get him
into a job that has upward mobility—a joh with a definite future. In Florida
we need funds for 4,000 adult students annually,
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Third, T turn to the Migrant Manpower Delivery System (MMDS) program
and the unbelievable S-month struggle we of this area had in wresting it from the
State Employment Service in order to gain the right of migrant farmworkers
to participate in what should be their own program.

We of Dade finally achiveed this. And by “we” I mean the migrants and the
Incal BEstablishment, working in a tight-kanit group, won for the farmworkers
the right (originally granted by Congress but denied by Florida's Department
of Commeres) to participate in the planning and decision making processes of
the program.

I won't detail the blow-by-blow aspects of this fight, but for those interested
in what can happen to a U.S. Department of Labor program once it falls into
the clutches of a State Farm Labor Agency anywhere in the country we include
here a few elippings. A complete set of pertinent papers would run in excess
of several hundred pages.

The whole record is worthy of study. for it typifies how the best intentions of
the Congress can be subverted on the way to their destination.

The solid front here in Dade rescued the program and it just now is be-
ginning to come up from behind. Its potential as a skill S.ﬁium program under
the present guidance of Florida International University and its migrant con-
trolled advisory council is tremendous, I truly believe. )

I would hope that the Subcommittee would mark this program for very special
attention and continuing concern. You're going to be proud of this one—if you
can keep it alive financially.

ABUSE OF THE MIGRANTS BY TIHE STATE FARM LABOR OFFICES

In Florida the various farm labor offices and agencies funded by the U.S.
Department of Labor are appropriately assigned to the state’s Umwmﬁn.mmuﬁ of
Commerce, They serve the agricultural industry. In fact, they exude the impres-
sion the growers own them lock, stock, and barrel.

We all know, of course, that the nationwide system of state farm labor offices
came into being during the World War II era for the purpose of nmoﬁﬁﬁﬁm work-
ers for growers hard put to find field labor. They have been serving the industry
faithfully ever since. .

RCMA has no particular quarrel with this. For we know that these agencies
have until recently been providing a needed service to agriculture. .

But we emphatically do object to their being the recipients of programming
funds which are aimed at benefitting the farmworkers. And we vehemently
protest their being designated as the enforcement agency om laws passed by the
Congress or state legislatures which are aimed at protecting the farmworkers,

In either category this agency’s sorry record is one of betrayal of trust. .>m
for programming, we have already discussed the state farm labor office’s handling
of the MMDS training program, which handling was strongly endorsed by the
upper brass of the Department of Commerce, In a 26 page report to ﬁum Qoqmab-
ment of Florida at that time I set forth in precise detail “the rank Euﬁmﬁom of
the department’s position toward the migrants, its lies, mewmgmmmbnmﬁozm and
unkept promises to the migrants .. .” This is available to the Subcommittee.

Turning to the area of law enforcement, let’s discuss the farm Eco.w. ommo.mum
astounding record of “enforcement” of the 1971 Florida crew chietf ammﬂmﬁmﬂg
law. For 15 months the agency did nothing, The attached news clipping E which
the agency pledged enforcement beginning January 1, 1972 is interesting, for
they actually began enforcement one year later, January 1, 1973. .

I use the word “enforcement” rather loosely. For, according to E.»E.u own
testimony March 26 of this year before the Joint Legislative OOH.EEmmSm in
Tallahassee, they had up to that date registered 37 of the state’s estimated 1800

rew chiefs,
¢ The further truth is that most of this handful were registered in Dade at the
insistance of a few Dade growers, The truth is that the growers in ..mum rest of
the state are taunting Dades growers for being “suckers”. The truth is that the
federally funded Florida farm labor officials are openly violating the mﬂmﬁm.wmé
by handling unlicensed crews for the sole benefit of themselves and the agricul-
tural induastry. .

The time came quite some while ago when the Congress should have abolished
the state farm labor agency system. These outfits have now become a millstone
around the necks of the migrants. I would place them at Em. very top ﬂ
any list of migrant problems crying out for attention and relief from this
Subcommittee.



ous crew chi ration is an absolute prerequisite for uncovering
; shing those chiefs who hold men and women in peonage. It is my cﬁr
way up there, is but the tip of perhaps a sizeable iceberg.

There have long been whispering of recruiting of these middie-aged and
elderly farmworkers—ones who no longer ean hack it in a _mmmﬁ::mnm: crew—
it the deep rural areas of the South and seldom being heard of again.

The malfeasance of most all state farm labor offices in the nation by little
more than token crew chief registration obviously plays directly into the hands
of this type flesh peddler.

I respectfully entreat this Subcommittee to light whatever fires are needed
under whose ever tails are exposed in order to get the farmworkers the protections
they are entitled to.

ABUSE OF THE MIGRANTS BY THE T.8. BORDER PATROL

) Z:.::N.i a migrant tarmworker born in Texas. Last Fall he came to
to pick in the fields. The U.S. Border Patrol raided the camp in which

When in doubt, ship ’em out! So he was summarily deported to Mexico. The
voung man walked 1,000 miles through thie mountains of Mexico to reach the
Texas horder and home,

Mr. Munoz then observed that he didn’t think he’d care fo return to Florida.
Quite understandable,

But what isn't so understandable is how the Border Patrol continues to get
away with this sort of thing. A whole camp is turned inside out at three or
fonr a.m. Women are frightened. Children terrified.

And. in our view, Amando Munoz is not the first American citizen to he de-
d from a farm labor camp in Florida. It's the first time the Border Patrol

i citizen had
heen seized and deported. But in total fear they would fade away from the
aren before we eould move in their man’s hehalf,

No we entreat the Subcommittee not to view this Amado Munoz case as an
oldd happening unlikely to oceur again. We call to your attention that this ig
the United States of America. What we have here is abusive, raw government
power at its worst. In your part of fown or mine, such appealling civil rights
violations would happen but once. Yet in the migrant camps of Florida they
occur again and again. ’

[From the South Dade News Leader, Dec, 20, 1971]
FARM LABOR SITUATION IN DADE CHANGES

(By Virginia Amendt)
1 DA

s migrant worker force is at its peak, labor camps have been chock
fweek tomateo growers were short of pickers.

) Wi hea vy harvesting under way for the first time this season, growers
faced losges if they couldn’t get their erop picked, and some lashed ont m:w,p.:,. at
the zovernment food stamp program. '

k a:z now that they gef food stamps, two growers 'told the Homestead City
neil meeting Wednesday on the farm labor pinch.

The sitnation is mueh more complex than that, states Wendall Rollason,
mtive director of the Redland Christian Migrant Association who has con-

affer holding off in hopes of a chill to size up the crop . . . then they
get hold of the large numbers of workers they needed all at once.” '
Rut there are basie changes in the farm labor situation which have deeper im-
ons, and Rollason believes growers aren’t fully aware of this.

ticked off three imporfant changes: the breakdown of the crew leader's
ontrol, a shift to other occupations by growing numbers of former field
sers, and increased educational aspirations for the young.
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Ironically, a key factor in producing much of the change is the new public
housing now available for workers in agriculture—housing which was built to
assure a continuing migrant labor supply to South Dade farmers.

“The controls a erew leader formerly had over his people are dwindling, and
the biggest of these was housing.” Rollason explained.

Traditionally, the large grower-owned labor camps have been turned over to
crew chiefs who installed their workers, collected the rents from them and
turned them over to the camp manager. )

“Thus, the tenants were under the thumb of the crew chief—if they didn’t
work for him, they’d lose their housing,” Rollason pointed out.

But with the Homestead Housing Authority assuming a greater role in hous-
ing farm labor, this is no longer true.

Redland and South Dade Labor Camps were both rebuilt with federal funds,
and federal regulations prohibit renting the units to crew chiefs, They must be
rented directly to the tenant.

“George Hicher (executive director of the Housing Authority) is observing
not only the letter but the spirit of this regulation,” said Rollagon. “Once in
awhile there are complaints that a crew leader has gotten ahold of some units,
but this is swiftly rectified when Mr. Bicher finds out.”

Another federal regulation is that the principal breadwinner in a family
living in one of the camps has to be employed in agriculture, but the other family
members who work don’t have to have farm jobs.

When crew chiefs controlled camps, they saw to it that all tenants who wanted
to work did farm labor.

“The camps are full now, but everybody isn’t working on the farm,” Rollason
pointed out.

Out from under the crew leaders “hammerhold,” farm workers are showing a
growing independence, he continued.

“The crew chiefs complain their workers will only work a few hours; I
believe these reports are exaggerated, but there’s no question the chiefs are
facing problems they have never had before because of this growing
independence.”

“Qf course, with this independence workers are sometimes going to make some
poor judgments,” he conceded.

“Undoubtedly food stamps have been one factor in freeing the worker from
control of the erew chief,” he added. “But the average worker knows he’s got to
make it here. He can't pay the rent, the light bill, with food stamps. “Trield labor
is hard work—it’s a killing pace to work out there for eight hours whether
vowre born to it or not” Rollason observed. ‘‘As a trend, they do want an easier
life: in this they are not guilty of anything different from the rest of us,
generally speaking.”

One beef which Rollason says he is getting from many farm workers this year
is that they believe farmers are giving crew chiefs a better deal because of
their increased costs, but the chiefs aren’t passing any of this along to the
worker.

Tollason said he believes that because crew chiefs suffered in last spring and
summer’s poor harvest, they may be trying to make up their losses at the
expenge of their crews.

The third factor—the desire for education—Iis becoming more and more
evident, he said further.

“Nationwide, traditionally 80 percent of migrant kids drop out of school by
sixth grade, and go to work in the fields at 16. But this is changing.

[Prom the Miami Herald, June 19, 1872]
NAvY PrremEes IN To Buind NEw INFANT CARE FACILITY
(By John Camp)

Migrant families at the South Dade labor camp east of Homestead are going
to have a new care facility starting today, thanks to a Miami-area Naval
Reserve unitand several thousand Walkathon-ing youngsters.

The new infant care unit is being built by the men of the SAMAR unit of
Naval Reserve Group 6-151, and will be the final link in a system of child care
units at the camp.

Wendell Rollason, head of the Redland Christian Migrant Association, said
that the center complex will be able to care for the newborn infant in the infant
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center, for the oue and two-year-old toddler in the day care center, and for
pre-schiool youngsters in the early learning program units.

Money to buy materials to build the infant care center came through the state
Tiivision of Family Services, but before the state could provide the grant, local
matehing funds had to be raised. These local funds came through the Walka-
thon program and were channeled through the MEAL foundation to the stae.

“We had enough to pay for most of the materials, but we couldn’t afford the
labor cost,” RBollason said. “These men are providing about $7,500 worth of
labor, free. almost as much as the materials cost.”

Rollason said that the new facility still needs paneling material for the
dining area and ceiling material fora false ceiling in the baby care unit.

Navy Capt. Robert Allen, who is Dean Robert Allen of the University of Miani
in civilian life, said that the project involved building an entirely new dining
area, and instailing air conditioning and sinks in the infant care section. His
men also did extensive electrical and plumbing work.

“This is our second domestic action program,” Allen said. “We helped remodel
the black arts council building in the Grove, but for that one we had to scrounge
the material as well as provide the labor. The thing is, all of these men are
civilians most of the time, but they're as interested in the community as they
are in national defense. 8o we were kind of looking for community projects we
could get involved in.”

Allen said that because of the nature of the unit—SAMAR stands for Ship
Activation, Maintenance and Repair,—that the men were highly skilled in just
the areas needed to remodel the child center.

Allen is commander of the overall Navy Reserve group, while commander
Phillip Thowmas is in command of the SAMAR unit itself.

“We train one weekend a month,” said Thomas. “We have had as many as
50 or 60 men out here at one time. It's coming along real well . . . the men have
really gotten invelved in this thing. Some of them have been going out on
their own and getting books for the place, and one of our men got the air
conditioning unit at cost.”

Rollason said that the infant care unit should be functional by today, and
that a small group from the SAMAR unit would be back nest weekend to finish
the job. :

“There was 1no way we could have gotten it done without them,” Rollason
said of the sailors.

[From the Miami Herald, Sept. 7, 1972}
Unitep Funp Hrrps ExpaNp MiGraNT CHILD-CARE CENTERS
{By John Camp)

Child day care and infant care centers for farmworker families will be ex-
panded this year at South Dade labor camps with money derived from a United
Tund contribution to the Redland Christian Migrant Association, aeccording to
Wendall Rollason. association director.

Rollason said that a United Fund donation of $39,500 would have a far-reaching
impact on migrant child care during the first year of United Fund participation
in RCMA. projects.

“The United Fund contribution can be used as the ‘local share’ money under a
state migrant aid program that provides 33 for every %1 contributed locally,”
Rollason said. “That means that the almost $40,000 contributed by the United
Pund is really worth about $160,000 for our budget, after the three-for-one state
funds are figured in.”

Rollason said that the day care and infant care program also receives the
equivalent of about $13,000 in services from the Homestead Housing Authority,
which runs the migrant camps, and that $13,000 could also be figured in the three-
for-one funding, giving the child and infant care centers a total budget of ever
$200,000-—substantially more than it has ever been in the past.

Rollason said that a professional staff of one specialist in early child develop-
ment, one registered pediatric nurse and one licensed practical nurse would be
added to the child care staff. Before the United Fund contribution, Rollason said,
the staff was composed of migrants who had some practical skills, but little pro-
fessional knowledge of child care and development.”

He said that child care units would be available at the South Dade and Red-
lands Migrant Camps, and at the Princeton Camp if the state allowed that camp

to open. Infant carve services are now available at the ith Dade Camp, and a
unit is being planned for the Redland Camp, Rollason said. He said that both
infant and child care centers were planued for the Everglades Camp after that
eamp is built, possibly next year.

Rollason said that although the United Fund money would be used by the
ROMA, technically it was being chauneled through the Homestead Housing
Authority, with the RCMA sub ‘racting the child and infant care centers from
the authority, Rollason said this was done because it made the $13,000 in services
£rom the Homestend Housing Authority eligible for the three-to-one matching
erants from the state, while if the money were given directly to RCMA by the
United Fund, the authority contribution in services would not be eligible for the
matehing funds.

[From the South Dade News Leader, Mar. 15, 1971]
DapE PreEPARES JoB PLAN FOR MIGRANTS
(By Hilda Inclan)

Relief should be coming the migrant's way, regardless of whether or not Presi-
dent Richard Nixon deciares South Dade a disaster area.

An alternate plan to help the unemployed migrants in case the area is not de-
clared a disaster area will be provided by Dade County, County Manager Ray
Goode announced today.

The plan would employ some heads of households in interim work with the
county until the erop situation goes back to normal.

“The migrants would be working in some public facility like parks and a gen-
eral South Dade clean-up campaign.” Goode said. )

Mrs, Aileen Lotz, senior administrative assistant to the County Manager is in
charge of the alternate plan. She said that the migrants would also be helping in
cleaning up roadways, mowing, and landscaping of various county facilities.

“We already have the application for funds from the U.S. Labor Department
50 that we can employ the migrants on an interim basis,” Mrs. Lotz said.

The funds would be obtained under the Main Stream Program. If the president
declares the area a disaster area, however, there will be no need for the plan,
since Federal funds would then flow directly to the unemployed workers.

Mrs. Lotz said an answer on the President’s decision was forthcoming late
today.

But, one way or the other, the idea to get Federal funds to the South Dade area,
damaged by the crop freeze. If the alternate plan is adopted, it will be presented
to the Metro Commission for their approval tomorrow. '

Federal funds were appropriated to provide assistance to Dade’s migrants—
left without jobs when winter freezes early this year killed most of the crops the

‘migrants were to pick.

The Metro Parks Department will use 140 migrants in maintenance wotk
throughout the county. The Public Works Department has asked for 90 men;
Metro's Pollution Control Division has made available up to 20 jobs; the Metro
TPransit Authority will take an additional 20 migrants.

In addition, 100 migrants will be sent to Homestead Air Force Base; Florida
City will hire 20 ; Homestead will hire 50 ; the Dade School Board will hire 20 and
the Homestead Housing Authority will hire 40. }

The migrants working for the housing authority will work with the county
Parks Department to build two “tot-lots” children's playgrounds at the Redlands
and South Dade Migrant Camps.

Women migrants also will be employed at the camps to work with an existing
day care and free kindergarten programs.

{From the Miami Herald, Mar. 20, 1971}
GoODE : EMERGENCY JOBS OPEN WEDNESDAY FOR DADE MIGRANTS
(By Susan Burnside)
Rudolfo Juarez, executive director of Organized Migrants in Community Ac-

tion (OMICA), was named director Friday of the $290,820 emergency employment
project for South Dade migrants.

27-830—74

16
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Wendell Rollason, executive director of the Redlands Christian Migrants
Association, will be assistant director of “Operation Mainstream,” the program
which will provide jobs for 500 migrants, according to County Manager Ray
Goode.

The men will begin recruiting migrants to fill the jobs Monday morning at the
T.S. Labor Department’s Perrine Farm Labor Office.

Work crews will begin their new jobs on Wednesday, Goode said.

Under a federal grant approved by the U.S. Labor Department, 450 of the mi-
grant jobs will be paid $1.60 an hour. An additional 50 migrants, hired as super-
visors, will receive $2 an hour.

Juarez will receive $225 a week ; Rollason will be paid $200 a week and 10 area
coordinators, who will be community organizers, will receive $175 a week.

Once the full program is in operation, the county will handle a $7,000-a-day
payroll for the migrant employment.

Money for the wages, which will be paid on a daily cash basis, will come from
a $260,820 Department of Labor grant.

Dade County will contribute $30,000 worth of “in-kind services” to the program
Goode said.

{From the Miami Herald, Mar. 23, 1871]
JUAREZ RELINQUISHES ROLE IN JoB PROGRAM
(By Sam Jacobs)

Rudolfo Juarez, executive director of Organized Migrants in Community
Action (OMICA), said Monday he has resigned as head of Operation Main-
stream, the emergency $290,000 county-federal program to give jobs to 500 South
Dade migrants.

Named to replace him in the $225-a-week job was Tony Hernandez, a 25-year-
old migrant who does volunteer work for OMICA and studies accounting at a
San Antonio, Texas, business college during the summer.

Juarez, who accepted the position Friday, said he decided over the weekend to
give it up “because I have much responsibility in other counties and I can’t
devote my full time to Dade.”

OMICA, an organization mainly of Mexican-Ameriean migrants, has members
in a number of South Florida counties.

Juarez said that if he had kept the Operations Mainstream job he would have
turned over part of his salary to OMICA.

Juarez said he suggested Hernandez for the job and County Manager Ray
Goode agreed.

Goode said Hernandez is “bootstrapping himself out of the migrant stream”
by attending the business colleage.

He said Hernandez, who now has completed three years of school, comes to
Florida each winter to earn enough money to go to school in the suminer.

Wendell Rollason, executive director of the Redlands Christian Migrant
Asgsociation, will remain as assistant director of Operations Mainstream at $200
a week.

Ninety-nine persons Monday signed up for Operation Mainstream jobs which
will begin Wednesday and last for six weeks.

Migrants can sign up for the program at the Princeton and South Dade
Labor Camps and Florida City Elementary School.

{From the Miami Herald, Mar. 24, 1971]
MicraNT Boss PRUNES STAFF
(By Earl Dehart)

On the first day as the new director of Operation Mainstream, Tony
Hernandez fired two area coordinators and one foreman for showing up late
with liquor on their breath.

“T must be able to depend upon them because I can’t be every place at once,”
the 25-year-old director said.

“] will give 'them ome chance and unless its’s an emergency, they will be
replaced.”
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Hernandez, a 5 foot 5 inch decorated Vietnam War veteran, had been an
ordinary temato picker until recently when he joined the staff of Organized
Migrants in Comunity Action (OMICA). This group tries to maintain liaison
between the migrants and communities in legal, social and health matters.

He was picked by Dade Qounty Manager Ray Goode to head the county-
federal $290,000 employment project when Rudy Juarez resigned after one day in
the post. Juarez, OMICA chief executive, said his work for that organization
requires him to make trips to points as distant as Belle Glade and West Palm
Beach, and the new job would have tied him down to Dade.

Tuesday morning, Hernandez met with 10 area coordinators at the Princeton
Labor Camp to hear a progress report. Operation Mainstream hopes to lhire:
500 jobless farm workers for six weeks so they may weather the crisis caused
by a January freeze.

Al Aguet of the Florida State Farm Labor Office in Princeton said late
Tuesday his office had signed up 266 workers since Monday.

Hernandez, who lives ,at the South Dade Labor Camp, comes from a fawily
of %W.QE.E.MMF W&m%mB:% § permanent home is San Antonio, Tex. ’

018 1s his first trip to South Florida. He has worked in tomato fields most
of his life except for a three-year hitch with the Army as a helicopter mechanic.

[From the South Dade News Leader]
JUST WHISTLE—AND 150 Kips RACE TO CaMP LUNCHES
(By Mary Kirkland)
It doesn’t take a second whistle for 150 kids to conver

South Dade Labor Camp for lunch five days a week.

H&moEEme ranging in age from about three i y i
building to receive gmﬁﬂwﬂb@éﬁ«aw and fruit. three to 17, literally run into the
The lunches are part of a summer recreation program at South Dade and
Redland Labor Camps. For the first time, organized recreation has been provided
ﬁummw a program run by Henry Torres. On his urging, free lunch was included
in the program. .

ﬁm:ﬁq 150 take part in the meal, although the program has fed up to 220
children.

ge on the nursery at

...H was a migrant, and I never actually was starving, but I was hungry,”
said Torres, “Now these kids are here all day long. There might not be anvone
around the house to give them anything to eat, or they might not have any-
thing to eat.”

The lunch isn't a large meal. The menu varies from a hot dog to a beefburger
or maybe a cheeseburger, supplemented with an orange, banana or apple, and
milk. The meals are packaged by the Stewart Food Company in Miami.

The lunches don’t appear to be subject to criticism prevalent in many lunch
programs. The children appear eager to receive the food.

‘When Torres was given permission to run the lunch program, hard work was
involved, Torres and members of the Neighborhood Youth Corps scrubbed the
entire large room.

“We did a lot of serubbing, especially on the floor, and we moved some
materials that had been stored in the room,” said Torres. “I don’t think that
To0m was ever so clean before.”

The cleaning goes on. Torres’ helpers still mop the floor twice a day, they move
the chairs twice a day to sweep underneath, and they wax the floor at least
once a week.

“This program isn't all fun,” said Torres. “These kids also have to learn how
to work.”

The program, run through the Redland Christian Migrant Association which
pays Torres’ salary, was organized only after receiving cooperation from the
Homestead Housing Authority which allows them .to use the room free of
charge; the South Florida Youth Corps which supplied 44 young helpers; Metro
government, which voted to supply money for field irips for the children; and
to the State Department of Education and Nutritional services. which makes
sure the lunches follow the rules and regulations of the health department.
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WHEN TLLNESS STRIKES MIGRANT, CaRE I8 TILERE
(By Virginia Amendt, staff writer)
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Tomestead health center is for s ar K ¢
o seasonal farm workers, whether resident
PR - . s
SMWMZM.? wmﬂum patients mﬁ.?m clinie, the center also sends nurses out to th
bw.mm_m m&E@WS .Umemer services such as giving shots. Arrangements hav ocﬁ .
ma mﬂmwmmwbmw me M.Fm mwmﬁowm oﬂm Hm pediatrician to visit the camps. She ,Mgmwm
ysician for health care services at da o
) ng phys: ) [ ¥ care centers g
education classes in the camps where the Redlands Christian E.m gy
ciation provides nurges. , jgrant Asso-
M.EWWEM. mmn%w fmocm_ Enmgmqa om:.m now available in the Homestead area to seasonal
‘kers, what does this mean for the year-ro igras
arm \ kers, w h -round healt igr
?ﬁ%wulﬁw?t is only here for a few months of the year? B of the migrant
whond mmw »mE.EMm.ﬁm.wm .Q:.ma mS.. leave to go up the mﬁ.mmE we try to lear
whe Emw mw wmwcm”w:m,n %EN explained. There are migrant bmﬁwu ammnmnw in ﬁbb.w
5 ghout the country. We send a letter ¢ -
lous places tl at | try. etter (to the health center i
mem:Wm Mwmym @m E_mum:; family is headed) and if the family has :m.wmw::w%wm
Eomm mnoWE_m:ama that these be followed up. We also ﬂoi.m n?mm?.aﬂ.ﬁw wv-
Hnmmmo nmumm MMM JWmcEME@ﬁ which has branches all over the state.” i the
ad center is one of the larger ones i i ]
The . ¢ . n the nation. It i
wmww www%mmﬁ_\wm,wmmm many o,ﬁ:‘_m others are only seasonal, This EGQWM m:mo piso _@m
argely to “crisis” situations like a serious ilines 3 oy, Dis
e ess or an injury. Diaz
The ir
moi% kummdm %HW Mmmow:oo%%wmwc W.ombmmﬁmﬂm from the offices of Community Health of
t ; R idge, where he has b i i
o : . ] 1 , W g een assistan W -
M :‘ This organization is the coordinator for health servi o e Since
in South Dade. ces offered the poor
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up in Los Angeles, holds a bachelor
1) College and a w
iy of California

Diaz, a native of New York City who grew
of science degree in nursing from Walla Walla (Was
in hospital and medical care administration from the Tuive
at Berkeley.

After receiving his misters, he was recruited by the Univers of Miami medi-
cal school as administrator of o children and youth project. From there he went
to the Community Health of South Dade post, and thence to Homestead.

His background includes Army service as a surgical and lab techinician, work
for the Los Angeles public health department, and the post of nurse supervisor
for San Quentin Prisomn.

He also spent a year in Mexico as in-service eduecational director in ¢h
continuing nursing education, at the University of Mexico medical sch
Guadaiajara.

Asked about the scial health needs of migr
gaid “availability” of medical care is the main probleny.

“Some of them are alveady getting quite health eonscious.” he noted.

These people have out the same range of illnesses as the res £ the popula-
tion, but like all poor famities, they are especinlly prone to certil 1 adlivents.

“Qome of these stem from poor nutrition, especially in the chitdren,” he pointed
out. “And poor living conditions, sanitation for exa mple, make them nore prone
to certain problews. We see 2 lot of dysentery, for instance. Also, kids conung
down with pneuwmonia because of no heat in the house ov colds spreading thro ugh-
out the family becaus they live go close.

spre-natal and post-natal complications are more likely to develap, too.

“ywe don't see a lot of ulcers, though,” he added, “nov patients with really high

i

ant farm worker facilies, Dinz

1
i

[From the Miami News, Jan. 28, 19721

“IIurt Poor Farm CHILD DENIED Here”
(By Robert B. Stulberg)

The director of a local organization aiding migrant wovkers has released a
series of lettevs charging two gouth Dade hospitals with refusing to treat a
seriously injured 10-year-old migrant girl.

The letters. written by Wendell Rollason of the Redlands Christian AMigrant
also charge a Scuth Dade ambulance company with delaying service

Association,
for the child.
in addition, they allege that a medical clinic set up to treat migrant worlkers

contributed to “the incredible mistreatinent” of the girl by being closed when she
sought help.

Specifically, the letters cha
Baptist Hospital in South Dade with refusing
stashed her left foot to the hone.

They name Randle-Eastern Ambulance of Miami as the ambnlance service and

the Martin Luther King Jr. Clinica Campesina in Homestead as Emnﬁimémw

was closed.

rge James Archer Smith Hospital in Homestead and
to treat Judy Baker—who had

ORDEAL LASTED NEARLY 10 HOURS

In the correspondence, addressed to the four institutions, Rollason claims that
by their collective inaction they contributed to the girl not receiving proper medi-
cal treatment for nearly 10 hours.

Also woven throughout is the story
help, and not sure where, oY how, to turn.

The girl, who cut her foot in mid-afternoon while playing at a market near
Homestead, did not receive the treatment she needed until midnight when she was
admitted to Jackson Memorial Hospital in Miami.

Rollason charges in the letters that the hospitals and the ambulance service
failed to offer proper medical treatment to the migrant girl because her family

was poor.
“In truth, the flatter the migrant’s pocketbook, the faster the shufile to Jack-

of a poor, unsophisticated mother seeking

son,” he said.
The accused institutions either

their actions.
Tn the letters, mailed out early this month, Rollason terms the entire event “‘a

revolting story” and calls the migrant child’s ordeal “a sickening, inexcusable
affair.”

denied the charges or offered explanations for
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He declares: “I just cannot brin ; i
res : Jus B g myself to believe that civili
@MW%NW%MMMQ w.o Ewm cause of alleviating human suffering nmwwwﬂﬂw HW% Muww.w
| s for turmine thei g - : b
mayenal rning their backs on seriously ill or injured migrant
The charges by Rollason are unusu
K . A as ¢ sually harsh for tb igr X
N w: :OHEE.:‘ éoiwm on behalf of migrant So;mww Umsd%wbu%wmumwwm group leader,
N ..M. m%wmw%%wﬂwﬂmoﬁwm%umwwuww.mwﬁw Mmﬂww Rollason explained :um.ﬂ he is taking
! matter ause “We ar it i
a ﬁwﬁmu. C Were cetiing tor o ecause “We are fed up with this sort
“You know protest is not our thing,” he said, “but in thi it i
¢ C o, 3 , is case it is. We’
mw 4:@ this. E.JHoB now on, we plan to take each case of um%moﬁu Hm Mo o
cs%m:m a public explanation. and abuse and
“"Ihe hospitals don't want to be bothered. The n’t
e misr . -, . ¥ don’t want anything i
A,.:m E».ugzﬁm e We intend to hit everybody on this. We will wﬂmuwwu QM ch A
m:w%m for not taking care of an injured child.” ceptany ex-
he case of Judy Baker began at 2:30 .
_Th ud; k . 2:30 p.m., Sunday, Jan. 2, wh
rmmm%oump wmu Mﬂ.g%mmmc Wdﬂﬁwm cmmw_m at the State Farmers’ @Hmawmﬁ wmmw M%MMMMMMW
. . Letha Baker, carried her to the family ¢ 1 ich
u:m.m and w.@., six Eogmwm and sisters live—and headed ﬁowmu% HMM%  eme M&Hmw
Emmmgy :W.G:Q .mqm;mza to migrants in Homestead, the King Q.EMM cmersency
. m.n 5‘ a federally funded office, was set up last year HM baoﬁ.@m 24-h
my%..w,ﬂmmr %dwmum,mmnw service to migrant workers whont
t when Judy arrived, the clinic was closed mom th
jo 1 ! m Zm ; i
Mm sign .oD the door referred patients to the South UAEMN Wmmz N w@:mm.ﬁ o
enter in Goulds. ) mmunity Health
Dr. Leon Kruger, director of the Kii ini
R 1 ng clinie, told The News th ini
Qommﬂm c:momzmm the community board which runs it decided to wm%m QM%ES ieal
mmmpom a few months ago.” ¢c the medical
€ said the board decided to cut back the s i
3 . cided - ba services on Sundays g il i
wa_mw.,dm because the QE.E was not getting the traffic on mzmu%mwmm Mﬂw%m%mn o
m%w »:Mmm or wgm to maintain a round-the-clock operation o not
e Baker family drove from the King clinic to the mA : i
NWMWWMMGM%H_@ Uzc%o facility located at m.m. 1 and mmwummﬂwwmwwwmw%oggzm;%
inie, a doctor examined Judy’s foot and banda i :
ALt A I laged it,
EWM w&.mmw the ﬁozum would require specialized medical Haomgmgmwmﬂ But be told
. m‘mﬁm the m.uﬁ had torn tendons and nerves, might also have cut some b
mmmwj owam.mnmﬁm the services of an orthopedic surgeon & hone,
he doctor suggested Mrs. g ¢ H i iami
e et gg rs. Baker take Judy to JMH in Miami, more than 20
He offered her free transportation in i ini
e offere: S fs a special clinie shuttl
wpﬁmﬁ .Hmm:bm that she d.,\oz_m be stranded in Miami, and would Mmowmesﬁw o
to M Sw the zmumu Mummm, decided to try to make the trip herself ¢ toget
r. Jerome Beloff, director of the South Dade Health O id i
. Dr., ) ente
interview with The News that the Bakers need not have gone mm,ﬁwﬂﬁwwmmmwm Wu m‘u
mouma find an orthopedic surgeon. ¥ to Jack:
“I am sure that the hospitals in South Dade, such g i
mum:mm %omE have had a doctor on call,” he mma_. ¢h as Baptist and James Archer
ut he explained that the clinic sent the Bakers north i
omwwn mwa only have a contract with Jackson.” ¥eh because "we are a connty
On the way to Jackson, the Bakers’ camper beg i
Police Substation No. 4 in Perrine. per began fo stall and they pulled into
Mrs. Baker asked a policeman there if he would 'Y i
Lrs vould take Judy in a poli
he zaid he could not. He suggest g ist Hospital. ot
ne i he o ggested the Bakers take Judy to Baptist Hospital, just
The camper made it to Baptist, and the Baker: i
L tist, s entered the hospital’s g
TOONL. wzﬁ according to Marie Brown, a friend of the Bakers w&wo U.QWHMMJWHH@
gﬂw_ EWWHH problems had just begun. o
Miss Brown said the Bakers spoke with the receptionist i 5 i
. ptionist in the Baptist emer-
geney room, and sho ini v
gency roo , wed her a letter from the doctor at Goulds explaining Judy’s
But, she said, “We hardly got in the do
3 , ardl; or before the woman at the d
telling us how expensive § o i i el
ﬁﬂo_.wmamocm.: pensi t would be to have the girl examined and the medical
Miss Brown said the receptionist estimated th
M . ) y at the treatment
EMME:E of §50 and said that “we can’t admit her here without qumowwmuomwﬂ ?
_She said she and gum. Baker only had a few dollars between them, so the .m
cided to leave the Baptist emergency room. ’ v ae
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Eruest Nott., administrator of Baptist, told The Miami News he did not know
about the Baker case but he said it was possible a clerk told the Bakers the
treatment would be expensive.

“Tf g patient comes in who appears to be an outpatient,” he said, “we always
explain to him that there’s a fee involved. Then if the patient says ‘Yes, I under-
stand,” we can get down to business.”

Nott said that Baptist takes nearly $30,000 a year in charity work but “we don’t
feel inclined to do charity willy-nilly.”

He expiained that Baptist is a private hospital and has no government fund-
ing for treating indigent patients, ‘‘so we try to malke people understand they
have a responsibility to pay if they can.”

Before leaving Baptist, Miss Brown called James Archer Smith Hospital and
was told by a nurse there that they should take an ambulance to Jackson.

Mrs. Baker then approached a Randle-Bastern ambulance driver at Baptist, and
asked if he would take the girl to Jackson. According to Mrs. Baker, the am-
bulance driver “said it would cost us $40 and be made it sound like we had to
liave the money right then.”

Mrs., Baker and Miss Brown, fearing they would be unable to make it to
Jackson and back in their sputtering camper, then decided to drive back to
Florida City to get another car.

They did not get another car, but found a friend who agreed to follow in his
car to James Archer Smith in case the camper stalled again.

At about 5:45 p.m. the Bakers arrived at James Archer Smith, a 5-bed
publie hospital, where a doctor examined the girl’s wound and told Mrs. Baker
that the hospital did not have a surgeon on call to handle the case.

He said Mrs. Baker should take the girl to Jackson, and had a nurse in the
emergency room call Randle-Eastern Ambulance.

At this point, Miss Brown said, Judy’s left foot was swollen and Mrs. Baker
believed the girl was running a fever.

in his letter to the administrator of James Archer Smith, Rollason charged
the hospital with diseriminating against the Bakers, and said that “the obvious
implication in this case (is) that Fames Archer Smith Hospital just doesn’t give
a damn.”

Replying to the letter in an snterview with The News, the hospital's adminis-
trator, John Allinson, said the hospital acted properly in the case.

Allinson said the hospital does not have an orthopedic surgoen on its staff, and
did not have one available on call that evening.

e said the hospital usually refers such cases to Jackson, which has the per-
sonnel on eall to handle such emergencies.

(A few days after the incident, thig reporter called James Archer Smith from
South Miami and said he needed an orthopedic surgeon to mend his foot. The
receptionist in the emergency room suggested the reporter go to Baptist or

South Miami Hospital.
(“They’ll be able to help you over there,” she said. “That’s a lot closer than

Jackson.”)

When Mrs. Baker was looking for help, though she was not told to go to
Baptist or to South Miami, she was told to wait for the ambulance to take her
to Jackson.

And for the next hour and a half, the Bakers waited. At about 7:15 a.m., an
ambulance arrived at the hospital’s emergency room, bringing in a patient.

The nurse asked the driver if he would take the Bakers to Jackson. The
driver agreed, drove them there, and billed them $67.75—the standard fee.

Later, a spokesman for Randle-Eastern, the only ambulance service avail-
able in South Dade, said there had been a delay because the Bakers’ case was

“pot an emergency.”
“OTHER CALLS TOOK PEECEDENCE

«This was an extremely busy day and other calls took precedence,” he said.
He denied Rollason’s charges that the company has repeatedly provided negligent
service for indigent patients.

At Jackson, a doctor looked at the girl’s wound and sent her back to the wait-
ing room. About two hours later, Judy was admitted.

On Monday, the day after the injury, an orthopedic surgeon sutured Judy’
torn tendons. On Friday, in a second operation, a surgeon closed the wound.

On Jan. 10, eight days after she had stepped on a broken wine bottle, Judy
Baker was released—with a cast on her 1eft foot—and was allowed to return to
live in her family’s truck in Homestead.

S
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In his series of letters, Rollason said that the case of Judy Baker was not

unique :

“Ov 2 agaf B - H
wmcw ,MM»M:MH ﬂmfﬁ m:.f:.%:r:; years of working with farm-worker families 1
mhew :»_,ME Q. Zcro::_m parade of Judy Bakers undergoing the same Fil, of
s eatment at the hands of doctors, nurses, hospitals, clinies and emer-

e1cy rooms Rollason sai his letter to D Baptis istrator
£ S, ( aid
g ore. Not ald in m e Not , the t adiuin ato
But no more. Not insofar as migrant ¢ hildren anyw ay. RCMA is hereby
serving formal notice on you tha ill a S1Y :L:mu:yo., T N:r evens UM -
erv & e On yo we will vigo CZJ_. C .0 €

to-eyeball basis, any and all future cases of nontreatment of emergeney illness

I8 i 3 2 Joryes o N ol H
or injury of migrant children . . . that are brought to our attention.”

[From the Miami News, Aug. 7, 1970]
“Don’r Usg MieranT Kins as GuiNea Pigs”

(By Al Volker)

OOM%%JW%:&WE% wm%ﬁ:w chief has been urged to halt a move by Broward
. HHEE est a controversial drug on childr igr )
WL eSO st @ eo g ol ren of migrant workers.
ire a ssed to . James Bax, head of the Departm f th an
Wm%wg%wmﬁ:é Services, called the proposal :w.ca:_i:m‘w ent of Health and
&mﬁmm m%%ﬁﬁﬁc? mmﬁmwcgcm director of the Redland Christian Migrant Asso
N , 8aid s group telegraphed Dr. Bax that © tionadly dist 1 migrant
o sl his group fele ‘ 3 at smotionally disturbed migrant
1§ proposed experiment “as essentiall 1 roup.”
The study was proposed b . o as essentially a captive group.
b as [ O y Dr. Sonja Harrold-Lessne, ¢ Ve iei
who operates a baby eclinic for : e
) ates ab; r the Broward County Hes
subjects were to bhe chosen at P e
b, , . - random from among 900 far 1 i
being treated for behavioral disor , ferant O R
avic isorders at the Migrant Clinie i
Dr. Harrold-Lessne submitt e Bant Hoghes Tenlth bo:
" e s ed her proposal to Dr. Paul Hng]
partment director, and he is consideri ; 1d ba NS i e
N sidering y
D it T N g it. It would have to be endorsed by
The drug in question, Ritalin, i i i
! ) v , is said by its manufacturer to “ i
mEEﬂmmbﬁ and anti-depressant, which brightens mood and impr o m.m:.:m
St g improves performn-
Uuwmnmﬁmmwmﬂwwﬂo:ﬂ mb%mmwﬁmﬁoﬁ of Ritalin is pending and the Food and
stration is also looking into it as a possible “dang : ce.’
B e s ng & a possi dangerous substance.”
2 i posed using the drug on 3- d 4- y i
to test for a year the effects of Ri in i ir M‘m,.f.oE R
I, s of Ritalin on behavior, learning abilities and school
Eumﬁwowwwwpmcﬂwwwmwnmﬂmmw.uwm_omﬂﬁ.m and state public health officials considering
] E: motionally disturbed migrant childr i i in
medical experiments with contr rsi S5 the wire to Dr. Bas read.
; oversial drugs,” the wire to Dr
“That these children are essenti tiv e s the e
: 5 ssentially a captive group mak h i
especially revolting,” the wire said “Opvi . B e onal Tevel ot
g, . viously the low educati 1
the parents of the youngst i i e s
gsters involved is the key factor of such
1 3 ers i a proposal.
MWSMV MMMM%m m%mqw_:m amm EEUSmSo%Mﬁmbmﬁoz of the procedure that Soﬁw mwmwwm
g cessary written ps rmissi i ”
AN Ing O s ¥ parental permission, no questions asked.
“Thus our organization insists th i
) : £ st at you order the immediate end to
" . = ’ : m. :
sideration of the use of migrant children in this proposed project.”’ By eon

[From the Miami Herald, July 81 ,1970]
Four Hospitans LATER, Boy TREATED
(By Sam Jacobs)

Isabelino Guardarrama, an active six i
B . . six-year-old with sparkling blu
mm%am %umw%mmﬁuuaﬂw cWoéb MEM was playing happily in a Head Start %mmm%mm
A .m. June 8 when anot ] i i ‘
mdME.mmw?.moﬁszm ot ehom her boy pushed him off a slide and he
Seven hours and 30 miles later, Isabelino was finally admitt
: 1 , IS 3 ed to county-
Jackson Memorial Hospital after three private hospitals—TJames >~.1WMM mwmmm

in Homestead, Larkin General in iami i i i
i Ce e et b South Miami, and Variety Children’s Hospital—
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South Dade farm labor organizer Rudolfo Juarez cited Isabelino’s case
before a Congressional committee earlier this mounth as an example of poor
treatment by Dade hospitals of migrant workers an their families.

According to Dr. Jerry Enis, the orthopedic surgeon who treated Isabelino
at Jackson, the boy was tucky the delay in treatment didn’t cause a more
serious injury.

All fractures are serious, Dr. Enis said, and the long delay “could have
jeopardized his treatment. Fortunately in this case it didn't.”

Still, the arm had swollen so much before Tsabelino got to Jackson that it
had to be placed in traction for a week before it could be set.

The whole experience is still a nightmare for {sabelino’s mother, Mrs. Luisa
Jimenez, of 261 NW 14th St., Florida City, a former migrant who must support
herself and the two youngest of her 10 children on $114 a month in aid to
families of dependent children.

“All these hospitals, they tell me they can’t treat him,” Mrs. Jimenez said. “They
just want money.”

Mrs. Jimenez, whose eight older children are seattered from Florida to
Texas, first heard of isabelino’s injury as she was leaving the office of Juarez’s
Organized Migrants in Community Action (OMICA}).

The boy's teacher, Patricia Perry, prought him to the office, and an OMICA
official, who is no longer in this area, volunteered to drive Isabelino and his
mother to the nearest hospital, James Archer Smith.

Hospital records show he arrived at 2:30 p.m. and was seen by the doctor
on call. Dr. Marshall House, a general practitioner.

Dr. House had the arm splinted, gave the boy a shot to ease the pain and had
X-rays taken. After viewing the X-rays, he said, be decided the boy should Dbe
treated by an orthopedic surgeon.

“Y did bher (Mrs. Jimenez) a favor by not treating the child,” House said.

Dr. House said the nearest orthopedic surgeon was Dr. Joseph Kalbae, whose
office is in Coral Gables. He said be called Dr. Kalbac and arranged to have
him meet the boy in a hospital—he couldn’t remember whether it was Larkin,
Baptist or Variety. Dr. Kalbac refused to comment on the case unless a release
was obtained from Mrs. Jinienez.

Mrs. Jiminez said she was told to go to Larkin, put when she arrived, Larkin
officials said no doctor was waiting.

Mrs. Kathleen Kehoe, executive secretary to the administrator of Larkin, said
the hospital has no emergency Toom facilities. She said the boy must have been
sent there because of 4 misunderstanding.

“He just arrived at Larkin and we didn’t have the facilities to take care of
him here,” she said. “We thought he would be better taken care of by Variety”

S0 off went Isabelino, Mrs. Jimenez and the OMICA official to Variety. But
when they got there, they were told the hospital couldn’t treat welfare cases.

“The orthopedic resident looked at the elbow and gave him Demoral (to ease
the pain),” said Mrs. Betty Schuster, administrative assistant to the director
of the hospital. “But we have no facilities for welfare patients. We referred him
to Jackson.”

Isabelino arrived at Jackson at about 6 p.m. but still he had to wait nearly
two hours before a doctor got out of surgery and could see him, When he
did, the boy was admitted immediately.

Officials of all three hospitals say they did nothing wrong.

Warren Stearns, administrator of James Archer Smith, which has been
criticized repeatedly for poor treatment of migrants, said the hospital simply
can’t afford to have every type of specialist on its staff.

Stearns said that although the hospital did receive $900,000 in Hill-Burton
federal aid to help build-a new. addition last year, there is no.requirement that the
hospital take charity cases. He said that James Archer Smith does treat emer-
gencies, if they can be treated by doctors on the staff.

Mrs. Kehoe at Larkin said the hospital isn't set up to handle emergencies
and is not supposed to treat children anyway.

“1 work here and I have a little girl and if she fell and broke her arm I
wouldn't bring here here,” Mrs. Kehoe said.

Mrs. Schuster said Variety can't treat welfare cases.

The cast is off Isabelino’s arm NOwW and although he says it doesn’t hurt
any more he still can’t bend it as far back as he ean his left arm.

Mrs. Jimenez sayvs she’s grateful for the treatment the boy got at Jackson
but “I still moﬁ,n ﬁummu.mﬁmda,ﬂw% wehad to.goall the way up there.” :
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[From the Miami Herald, Aug. 27, 1969]
HALF oF MIGRANT LaBOR CaMPS ARE THREATENED WITH CLOSING

(By Jo Anne Werne)

Enforcement of state health regulations for mi
to Qm. closing of half of Dade Count
mu%rﬁcwmgbm officials said Tuesday.

e question “Wh i i i 7]
e auest] ere will the migrants live ?” if the camps are closed, remaing

But even if the migrants have to live on ¢

: T anal banks, the Dade Count,
Umummﬁnmbﬁ will not issue permits to farmers whose labor camps do WQWWMMW
specifications, declared John Eckoff, director of the Environmental H Ith
bwm%myom of the county department. o
ckoff, along with State Sen. Lee Weissenborn, State R

: . X . L )k . Joe Lang Kersha
and representatives of the health ! oficon S de
Talior copementatives ¢ and fire marshal’s offices, toured South Dade

They began with the largest—and repo
Ave. Farm Housing Center. reportedly the worst—camp, the Krome

The Krome Ave. camp, scene of a fire last win i i
: : , 8 ] ter wh i
owmmwmp contains 400 shoddy red and green cabins. ek illed three migrant
Feeling revolted after inspecting one of the filth i i
mm:% me,go ought to shut this place down.” v cabins, Sen. Welssenborn
senator said he didn't know if he could a i i
H.mmmwmw%mmm, but declared : “I can raise hell.” ccomplish such an end in
“I didn’t know human beings lived like this,” said R “
as M,me mwﬁum are in the city, they’re not as bad as mEm.: ¢p- Kershaw. “As bad
so touring the camp was Wendall Rollason, executiv i
g 1 L s e director
Wwa&mumm Ocﬁmﬁmn E.ngwﬁ Association, who questioned whether the ﬂwmmwwm
mwM_MMBmE QNME affecting a cure worse than the disease.”
ay, on s inspection trip, the community is setting i ti i
which could result in the closi 5 isting laner comn
Bonsine o b e ing of 50 per cent of Dade’s existing labor camp
Rollason said the RCMA agrees with the health d jecti
] ) dt S epartment’s objectives
mﬁmmﬁouw. the timing. He also predicted that if the camps are closed .m,_um qummwwmw
ﬁ:,t nouw%ﬁm to swell the slum population of Florida City. ’ °
. e are going to unleash corrective measures that are i
( : going to force
Wdu&_mmm of @qouwﬁm this coming season to endure conditions of mﬁmﬂmﬁo@ they
mmmw 't experienced in Umam labor camps for a decade,” Rollason said.
. E.M.um a pre-tour .dﬁmmdw at the county health deapartment, Hekoff said the
inspection tour was being made at this time of year “to give camp owners time
to un.ﬁmwwmww ﬁwﬁ.mnWowm to comply with minimum state regulations.”
TOome Ave. camp property is owned by the Arthur Vining Davi
and is rented by South Dade farmer John W, Tses 1t 1 e
o<m.m_o€ from two other camps. - Campbell, who nses it for the
ckoff said three specific regulations, concerni i i ivi
. € R ng heating, bedding and living
space, will i i i in “a bi 1
eWm s ¢%memw“m¢% enforced this year and will result in “a big expense for
Heating.—State regulations provide that heat must b i i ivi
! ! e provided in the living
and bathing quarters in areas where t T
EWMEW& e emperatures fall below 70 degrees for
ving space.—The state requires that 300 cubic feet of air i i
so ving F te requir L I r space is provided
o o occupant, including children. The camp’s capacity will be based on this
Bedding.—Camp operators will be required to provide a bed, cot, or bunk for

each person, and will provide sprin mattresse; i icking,
mattress cover, for each bed. &5 s o matiress ficking, plus a

; T migrant labor camps could lead
y's existing labor camp housing, health

[From the Miami News, Mar. 17, 1973]
MreranTs VICTIMS OF SOCIOLOGICAL DECISIONS

To THE Eprror: Currently, there is considerabl y j

' s e comment on just
W.Mosmﬁ Dressure upon Ummm.,m Health Department and its &H.mn.nouﬁ UM« mewwm
§ m:w.ﬁn to permit the reopening of undesirable migrant labor camps. The subject
is being treated as though some deep dark secret plot is involved.
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This is utter nonsense. Anyvone even moderately familiar with the issue knows
that the Redlands Christian Migrant Association (RCMA) has been the driving
force which has put together successfuly the case against closing the Princeton
and Campbell labor camps last year and this year.

We maintain that the local Health De tment is making a sociological dect-
sion, rather than a health decision in seeking to close those camps. RCMA
with Dr. Saslaw that they should be closed. We disagree with when. Ifor two
vears in a row we have convinced Florida’s Secretary of Health and Rehabilita-
rive Services in Tallahassee that the correct sociological decision was 1o keep
those ttwo camps opelt.

RCMA points out that the present typhoid epidemic situation occurred in one
of the best labor camps in the United States. It has one of the best small water
systems available. Just what happened to permit this very dangerous hiealth
breakdown is not yet established. But there seems little basis for challe
the adequaey of the water equipment. Whether by gross contamination of the
entire land area of the camps, by negligence, or by accident, the point bere is that
this did not oceur in one of the old camps kept open through the effors of RCMA.

Through the years, as society sidesteps the real issue of migrant housing, we
have heard the same litany of pious, but sincere, statements from public office-
holders. Since 1953 1 suppose I have attended 10 or 12 Congressional hearings
to hear the same exclamation of concern as expressed in Homestead last week
by Congressmen Rogers, Lehman and Fascell. Tangible fruits from these in the
past could be measured in a teacup.

What has been fruitful in Dade has been the progress made locally by local
individuals, local groups, and local government agencies.

Of the latter, certainly the No. 1 has been Dade's Health Department. Through
the years they have hammered and hammered to improve camp conditions and
have achieved admirable success.

However, three years ago, we could see that the health authorties were reach-
ing the point of driving ahead too far too fast. They were on the threshold
of creating a serious housing shortage for migrants. ROMA opposed that year’s

(Dec. 1969) burning down of the Krome Avenue Camps.

WE LOST. THE MIGRANTS LOST

. And that year Dade had a massive and tragie, and an unnecessary housing
shortage. The Krome Avenue camp should have been left standing one more
year. For by then, the two completely rebuilt Redland and South Dade camps
would have been in existence with encugh additional housing to absorb the
Krome camp residents. But the Health Department made a sociological decision
that was premature. Correct, justifiable, but premature.

‘Again, this time we have heard responsible individuals (Congressman Faseell
and Dr. Saslaw) state that living on the canal banks in cars and trucks would
be superior to living in these old camps.

HOGWASH!

T've never heard a migrant father or mother with 3, 5, or 8 children say
that. They know that as unsatisfactory as they certainly are, these camps pro-
vide a roof, Tunning water, toilets, wash houses, electricity, refrigerators. stoves,
day care centers and access to school buses. Persons who say canal bank living
is preferable are individuals who would never be faced with the prospects of
doing s0.

Hucmgbum action is not one of political pressure. Politics doesn’t enter into it at
all. Our position also is not one of permitting these old camps to exist on and on
under a justification that “they are needed.” We are as muh opposed to their be-
ing as is the Health Department. The difference between Dr. Saslaw’s office
and our own functions is that we must find housing for the migrants each year,
but the Health Department does not.

Tn the 1969—70 farming season we were right, but we lost. In the 1971-72 geason
we were also right and we won. The State of Florida saw our point and relicensed
the two old camps. However, our judgment as to timing proved wrong. Our stand
had been based upon the belief that the proposed new Bverglades labor camp
would be built by the Fall of 1972. This did not happen. Washington failed to
release the promised construction monies. . .

As this 1972-73 season approached, we were faced once again with deciding upon
whether to gamble one more year on renewed federal assurances that funds



240

wvould r,m refeased for new housing. After much agonizing we finally went th
route of recognizi e migrant family needs and u,:.:,«.m 9# for keeping um
twao old camps for one year more. ) ceping the
.E:ﬁ.mémﬁ this time we agreed uncondifionally that new camp or no, RCMA
will oppose any continuance of either camp after June 1973, This Q.mﬁmmo w
made in October of 1972, RCMA will stick by that decision. o son was

WeNDELL N. ROLLASON,
Executive Direclor, Redlands
Christian Migrant Assaciation,

[From the South Dade News Leader, Mar. 17, 1972}
HHA PLANS QPENING OF NEW LABOR CAMP

(By Harlen Brown)

South Dade’s migrant labor camps will hav p ci : i
cenouth Dade's r cmvmm. D e vacancies soon as the farming
This fall three camps will not reopen. Migrants returning £ p
L 1 . g ¢ for the 197273 seas
E.M,W.E.%md Ho%zm a critieal housing shortage. £ 72778 season
he John Campbell Labor Camp, at Tallahassee and SW 260th Street
owied by builder, Wayne Judah, and capable w housi © ons, ia
scheduled to be torn down. ! of bousing close to 700 persons, is
Princeton Labor Camp, on SW 246th Street which h illi
ice § D, 2 y ouses 750 and Williams
Wﬂsow Camp on SW 184 Terrace, which could house 60, will not reopen mwww“
all.
The Homestead Housing Authority, which provi £
stea 1 s provides shelter for perhaps 75 per
cent .Om Dade’s farm laborers, will not be able immediately to pick up Ewm Homm of
Eo%wdwmmwnmm by the closing of the three camps.
e has completed plans on the 400 units to be built on 4
awﬁ/.wbmm m;.wmou Camp site, south of Florida City. 9 acres at the
“We aou,. expect construetion to start for at least three months and th
earliest Hv.omm::m date we see for occupancy on the initial units is um:‘ 1. wm@qwgm
@%wwmm%m@mﬁ HHA director, said Thursday. o
e 4 units should provide housing for upwards of 2,5 ¥ i
Emummmwmzmm for “total” family living. g v %P00 persons. They will
n the project will be 30 two-bedroom units, 200 three-bedr: i
o ; A X -bedroom units, and 170
Mowww.cmmuocm.u dE..nmA There are no single bedroom units planned, Eicher said
b ecause there is no mﬁzn money available for the new labor camp which Mm
me mwucwﬁmw Mo %ﬂuﬁ ,vcm P%:Su dollars, additional time to get the loan agreement
y ‘and the bond issue through the courts bhas del ing
to HHWENM. been in time for next memob. ayed the opening hoped
e Farmers Home Administration, an agency of the U.8. D
Agriculture, is loaning the money fo ,u ; int est, e Iy 55
e i g y for only one percent interest, repayable in 33
Repayment will be made at the rate of $211.000 per year derived solely from

£he rents on the hous i
s e o, houses and the lease of a laundromat, and commissary planned

[From the South Dade News Leader, Mar. 21, 19731

GROWERS MuUsT AppLY PRESSURE FoR HoOUSING
(By Virginia Amendt)

South Dade growers will have to a i
So 2T pply pressure on Washington to fu
migrant labor housing, or they’ll face the next farming mmmmo% without M@ :mM
workers to harvest their crops. nous

That is the opinion of Wendall Rollason, executiv i

"hat ; W , €3 e director of the Redland:s

Mb:mdmw Migrant .bmmooumﬁou which will oppose any further use Mm Momwdow

ym.u %mmmcom camps m% South Dade after the current season ends

nting to months of holding up of funds for a third E
! odern

South Dade, Rollason said local growers and agribusinessmen are the wﬂﬁwommwm.

with ‘“the political mu ”? Y
A ihe Dolit scle” to shake the money loose from the Farmers Home
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The RCMA has always opposed use of old dilapidated labor camps for housing
farm workers, Rollason observed, but for the past two years had recomiuended
relicensing of two major ones—-Princeton and Tallahassee (Cawmpbell) camps—
because of assurances that money would be fortheoming for the new 400-unit
Everglades Camp.

Last fall the organization, in agreeing to recommend a one-vear extension for
the two old camps, set June of 1973 as the “irrevocable date” for their dewmise—
new eamp or no new camp.

The Greater Miami Coalition and the county manager's office also supported
relicensing of the two big old camps last tall, as a stopgap lweasure uutil the
new Everglades camp could be built. Rollason says it is his “educated gues: ’
that they, like the RCMA, will not go for another year of relicensing after this vne.

“The growers and the industry must understand that the non-agricultural
forces which were responsible for keeping those camps opened are now going e
see that they are closed.” the RCMA director warned.

He added that this not oniy includes the Princeton and Tallahagsee camps but
most other existing ones, except for the two modern ones operated by the Honle-
stead Housing Authority.

“In this matter of the Everglades camp funding, the feds are fooling around
with farm workers and growers alike,” Rollason declared. “The farm workers
are virtually powerless politically. But the growers are not.

“1t is my view that South Dade’s growers and the Nixon adminigtration share
muech the same political and social philosophies. They both speak the same
language when it comes to government programming among the poor.

“Now, if they are getting the answer they like on this Everglades camp situa-
tion, fine. But 1 suspect they cannot be too happy with it, for if those monies are
not immediately forthcoming agriculture here is going to Le shy a lot of workers
next fall.

“My challenge to the growers is for them to fight for that money.”

[From the Miami Herald, Sept. 24, 1970]
MigRANT FAMILIES SLEEPING ON GROUND
(By Earl DeHart)

Paul Medina, a 45-year-old migrant crew leader and his family of nine have
spent the last two nights sleeping on the ground outside a padlocked labor
camp in South Dade.

Caudio Ortiz, 35, and his family of six shared a similar fate with 12 members
of the erew he had brought in from New Jersey Tuesday afterncon.

Medina arrived in South Dade from Michigan in advance of his crew of 40
families to find housing for them—Dbut there was no housing. The twon crew
leaders have searched for homes since they arrived but have been unsuccessful.

The new Redland aud South Dade labor camps will not officially open for
another two weeks, Medina said, and he was doubtful he would be able to get
his crew in.

“They're throwing us on the canal banks and in the woeds,” Medina said.

Asked if he had sought help from the Organized Migrants in Community Action,
Medina said, “OMICA should be a millionaire so they could build new howes
before tearing down the old ones.”

They're doing things the wrong way, Medina said, and “it's getting worse.”

OMICA has strongly supported the immediate destruction of all the old labor
camps in Florida.

When Little Mexico labor camp burned down last year, Rodolpho Juarez,
divector of OMICA said all the camps should be burned. When Harry Cain
of the Greater Miami Coalition proposed a tent city below Florida City, OMICA.
objected.

The tent city proposal was made when it appeared there would be an acute
housing shortage. A crop-killing freeze kept the excess workers from South
Dade and the shortage never developed.

Meanwhile, other camps have closed their doors, claiming that costs te meet
Dade County Health Department’s standards are prohibitive.

‘'he latest camp to close is the Princeton Housing Development camp
operated by tomato grower C. C. Carpenter. Negotiations are under way between
the camp owners and the Greater Miami Coalition to reopen the camp.
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e Folliard, an inspector for the Environwm ivisi

Fol R ) ; g ) ental Health Division, saiq
. igrants are belng scattered all over South Dade : i ould be i \
toﬁ Ww for public health nurses to find them ¢ and It would be im-

Medina told a reporter to be sure to ‘“tell O

lina to "t sure e MICA and everybody else th:

Mmm.n .w.ﬂzﬁ .S.ci,i the _‘cﬁdm that fly over my ummmsfﬁmmiuw Uowucnwmnwwwm

‘op the migrants who wished to come to Florida during the winter months

LA VOZ DE OMICA

OMICA is an organization of migrants
] \ Is 1 grants and seasonal farm workers wh )
wodwsb )E Em.s Ecugm. SS.E.bm in the fields of Florida and four to mdwm m:wwmwg
wmmw%wmwm.rcm crops :w Indiana, and other midwestern States ;
MICA is a nonprofit organization, as ino ated i
Floridn, three omes oo g and was incorporated in the State of
OMICA is composed of blacks, whites, Mexican-Ameri i
farm workers. All help each omwg. T m t , .mEm.muP .mum o Bican
i orber §8) 0 find the solutions to the problems that
OMICA is guided by members who suff g i
areLC m@mwmmungm. o suffered the same conditions that migrants
Now the farm workers have an effective voice th
i : rough OMICA. OMICA pres-
mmiw serves as a clearing house for migrants helping them to reach the mqmmmwmﬂ
in ﬁum ncEEcEQ set up to serve them, helping the agencies to wEH:.S\M ES..
m@..im.mmz to the migrants and to reach and help more people. !
. Cw.ﬁww_uwm oo.bom_dma with @m.wmdﬁ workers’ problems. For example poor
wozw:u.a, .me. p.mzﬁ. lack of wcsmgm..woé wages, inadequate medical mmwiomm
c%ﬂw%w LMMmoSEBumﬁoF spotty education and insecurity of work, such as _mmm
Al bm QOB . - 'y ._ = -
T e pensation, unemployment insurance, social security, child labor
OMICA works with State and Federal Legi
gislatures to help the e~
stand the @noiﬁbm of the farm workers in order for them to be w%rm to WMEMNMHOM
mum %hﬁmum more just legislation. e
{ICA has establi : kers’ i
stone sar ished the first farm workers’ office in the State at Home-
A newspaper “NUESTRA LUCHA” which is published each month; Clinica

Campecina in Homestead, Fla. E1 Cam mm
s . o Nuest ¥
another office will be opened in HBEome% ra Lucha at 1 ofalee, and

[From the Miami Herald, Nov. 26, 1970]
THANESGIVING 1970: MOTHER AND CHILD SHIVER IN A TRUCK
(By John K. de Groot)

This is the Thankgiving of Mrs. Cynthi i
. ! s. Cynthia Core, a migrant come d tl
with her child and husband to reap the fi ) } i *Forida road
e o pnd and 1 p the fields of plenty in South Florida.
There is no work.
%Em is her Thanksgiving.
For the past eight nights, she has held her infant son
! N n to her breast, idi
ﬁ&ﬁ ﬁwHEEm_ her young body can in the frigid metal cab of a mmﬁWMm<wW~%
HEWMV u%wwmmw in the Princeton Labor Camp of South Dade County
er anksgiving dinner is a simple one: cold canned gum.n h
E.Mm% mmwmﬁ%a by 9M%m%mumm Christian Migrant Association st and day-old
nthia Core is years old. The ever-flowing migrant mﬁ i
In summer, she travels northward to e a i -um.&B in neT orld.
e paner, She tr: stoop and bend and pick. In winter, she re-
A few months ago, she gathered sweet ] i
) , potatoes in the fields irgini
She was paid 20 cents a crate. Sweet potatoes are, of course, a WMHMHMWWWP
cmwi-wwmmﬂummgmm of the season. ' ¢
yuthia Core has no table, much less #
omw e o poas no talk a roof to put it under. She has only the
he is one of 44 in the migrant crew headed by A
) rth
is .mwm %osu_mqmmn. Staton Coleman, 63, bent and dozing, Wm the QMMMmHﬁL% Oar. Her son
:ﬁ& moﬁ t want no handout or welfare,” says Arthur Lee Car )
All we're looking for is 2 roof and a job.” )
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Arthur Lee and his people have been coming to the Princeton Labor Camp
for four years. They stayed there last year. This year, the State Health Depart-
ment authorities ruled the camp an unhealthy place to stay.

“I've got 44 people living in a Lus, two trucks and on the ground,” says
Arthur Lee Car. “I'd say that’s more unhealthy than buildings with bad wiring
and no plumbing.”

Talk about Thanksgiving and Arthur Lee Car will just shake his head.

Wendell Rollason is the executive director of the Redlands Christian Migrant
Association. Wednesday, he fed the people canned beans, cold Spam, bread and
oranges.

It was their only meal for the day.

“When 1 started handing out food to people like this years back,” observes
Rollason, “it made me feel very good. I felt like a Christian.

“Now it nauseates me. Here we are in the great United States and I'm sitting
here passing out inadegquate food to people who devote their lives to harvesting
food for others.

“Something’s wrong somewhere and it sickens me.

“Phey have to eat,” he says. “Trouble is, we don't have very much charity food
to feed the people who harvestit.”

That is why Wendell Rollason and 11 young Mennonites from Pennsylvania
are spending their Thanksgiving trying to find fooed and shelter for migrants.

“They closed this camp earlier this year,” explains Rollason. “Sure, it's bad.
But where else can these people go?”’

“The thing is, there is a building here they could stay in. The Homestead
Housing Authority which governs this camp has agreed. The county health
people have said it was all right. The owners of the camp have approved it.

“Every one is trying to get shelter for these people,” Rollason continues.
“But the State Health Department has the final say and we can’t get an answer
out of them.”

An effort was made to contact the State Health Department for some
comment on the matter of Cynthia Core’s Thankgiving, but those able to com-
ment had left early. A secretary explains, “Its the Thanksgiving weekend.”

[From the Miami Herald, Nov. 29, 19711
Farm MieraNTs BAcCK, Bur Camps Are FULL
(By Margaret Carroll)

Cold weather and bad harvests in the North have forced more than half of
Dade’s annual influx of 20,000 migrant workers to return to the Redlands,
where each year a housing shortage blossoms with the crops.

At present a handful of families are living in trucks because the three big
labor camps managed by the Homestead Housing Authorities are filled and 11
other privately-run camps are jammed.

When the harvest peaks around Christmas, hundreds are expected to park on
canal banks because they won't be able to find shelter in the Homestead-
Filorida City area.

It's a problem experienced last year and the year before. Twenty thousand
people are expected to arrive. Of these, 8,000 will work the fields. All will need
shelter. They will find that the Health Department has approved 14 housing
camps, with a total maximum occupancy of 7,000, practically all filled today.

Next season will be worse. Three camps will be closed.

The only thing unexpected for migrants this season in South Dade was a pe-
viod of under-employment caused by an unusually warm and rainy October.
There was no cold snap so the first tomato picking was poor, giving the laborers
less time in the fields.

The food stamp program helped fill the gap.

“The work problem should improve shortly,” says ‘Wendell Rollason, director
of the Redlands Christian Migrant Association, “but housing won’t.”

“Jome people are living in trucks now,” he says, “they pull into camps at
night just to use sanitary facilities.”

Rollason, who recalls a severe housing shortage when one camp was tempo-
rarily closed by the Health Department a year ago, says the annual crisis “has a
bitter sweetness to it.”
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On one hand, the Health Department has to enforce standards for health and
sanitation—something ignored for years in farming areas.

The other side of the coin features the farmer. “He can't afford to put in
housing under the existing code,” says Rollason, “Even if he had the land. Now it

costs $8,000 tor a family unit. When the camp at Princeton was built years ago
it cost $700 a unit.”

Thanksgiving 1970 saw busloads of people without shelter because of the
closing of the cawmp at Princeton.

This Thanksgiving there was no such problem, Rollason said.

“I can't anticipate what will happen later. But an educated guess is that it
will be pretty tight” next month and for about four weeks after then until the
crop is in.

“The answer is public housing,” says Rollason, a man who knows that the
only thing of that nature in sight is the possibility of 300 howmes being built
next year by the Homestead Housing Authority on state-donated land.

But by harvest time 1972, South Dade—which now las 14 camps approved
by the Health Department will have lost three camps which currently serve
1,437 persons. The Princeton camp is being closed. Two are being sold to devel-
opers.

The chances of farmers pitching in is negligible.

Grower Jack Campbell recalls “there used to be 70 or so camps years ago. ..
there’s nothing being built now because the farmers can't afford to build and rent
to people who are here only six months of the year, or so.

“To afford it, you'd have to charge tourist rates. They're hav
that over on Miami BReach.”

Rollason also says that the year-around farm worker moves in when the mi-
grant moves north. “The homes are taken up by resident farm workers who find
out they can give up a §25 a week house and move into something better for $14
or $16 a week. So that makes the migrant disperse into the community.”

But the migrant’s chances of finding low-rent housing in South Dade neighbor-
hoods is dim—especially if he has four of five children.

Al Aquet, of the Florida State Employment Service, says he’s hoping a eritical
housing shortage can be averted next month—perhaps through the migrants’
own grapevine. “After Dec. 15, I plan to tell them to find out if they can get hous-

ing before they come,” he says.

Last year some migrants spokesmen blamed the farmers for the housing
shortage. “They don’t give a damn,” said a former official of Organized Migrants
in Community Action.

Yet while leaning on economics, grower Campbell feels that “Dade County
is a compassionate community” and this has a lot to do with migrants coming
south.

“The School Board does a lot for their kids,” he says, “and the workers
have a lot of organizations that are behind them.”

Besides the bLirth of pro-migrant organizations in recent years, warm weather
and a longer harvest season have been drawing cards for field hands for decades.

And until computers start plucking tomatoes, or farmers abandon the field

the same old lures will bring the migrants here each season—to look for gioem
and a roof over their heads.

ing trouble doing

[From the Miami Herald, Nov. 4, 1972]
MicranTs FacING HoUSING SQUEEZE

(By John Camp)

The Dade County harvest season opened Friday with migrant farmworkers
facing a eritical housing shortage and migrants and growers alike facing a
situation that could bring—simultaneuvosly—widespread unemployment and a
labor shortage. . .

Depending upon who is providing the estimates, between 8,000 and 10,000
migrants will be working the Dade County harvest this year. The vegetables
they pick will be worth $40-$45 million.

To house the incoming migrants, the Dade County Health Department has
licensed nine migrant camps, capable of housing 6,955 persons. The health de-
partment refused to certify two camps-—the Princeton Lahor Camp and the

Old Campbell Labor Camp—but they may open anyway with a special permit
from m:m state providing a few hundred extra unl ,.,. e Redlands Camp and
“Most cw the people living in the two w‘:%.r«cmﬁ ﬂnm::,.yw Whm: Wﬁnm::mw :m un and
B o , 3 & 3G1 o} &) ) A 25 ﬁ LC 3
- ade Camp, are full-year resi ential,” sai ohn 1 hoff of Ul )
Mwyov:c MMB @W«%odﬁmzwi Health of the Dade wwmm:.w mwrcﬁw.?w” :wm‘,..ww%»tﬁ%%mm
\its aren’t : ila for migrants. They're almost the sa ‘r .yt. st pul
WMWMHWMm:ﬁw%ww%mwcmjwidm there may be farmworkers, but they’re not part of
s : i
e campe, B South ] gether have a capacity of over
’ e s and South Dade, together ha Lpacit v
00 méw%w.»:m%wmmﬁmwﬂwﬂﬁa is subtracted from the .M:::E:E housing capacity
ﬁmo%WMowwz% .mcosﬁ 3,000 spaces are available for Encnt:.n migrants. i Camubell
0 mﬁ.ou, for another 1,200 persons would be mﬁu:m::.m if .cog.zﬁ A.Tn %cw el
mcmtmmwdomwom‘ camps were allowed to open, but that is still being debate ¥y
g : he health department. ) ~ o .
camp onHmmemmwum%mnga of the Homestead Housing kfw:.wo:ﬁﬂ W Eor .o.ﬁmnmwmm
ﬁcmmmn%mcmm mo.sau Dade and Princeton camps, believes Princeton will be allowed
e S 1. We might have to do a little work,
i is pretty much settled. g to doal K,
ccﬁdw,\\m mwm«mm ﬁ%mwu éow,asm on the camp all summer. We think that the state is
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to Mwwwmn%wwmmwm HuEanSm Camp, the Health Uo@mﬁEmun:Emom“mme%m%mm%mw
muoo permit for the Old Campbell Labor OmEc on Tallaha rﬁS Lo ur@mb
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sﬁmﬂc%ww%%m%% Mw% Homestead Housing Authority camps pay ammnm MMMWMMMM wu a
§13 to §19 per weel for onc to fonr bedrooms, fhe bomes % 1t R 0L
are CBS structures, while mos : ] ¢ Princeton
WMMMW %MQW%NW%%&Q buildings with’a few run-down concrete cGnr cﬁhmEm

27-830—T74——17
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H?.m cEEEw& in the Old Campbell Camp are also wooden, and also in bad con-
dition with inadequate and antiquated wiring, and community sanitary and
water facilities.

While the principal problem facing incoming migrants involves housing, they
may also be facing job problems.

. OMICA’s Jaurez says that three times as many migrants will move into Dade
ﬂcs:.‘.% as are actually needed to do the work available, so many will go without
uc_mvm m:% many others may find themselves working only a few hours a day.

n the other hand, Nolan Durre, Dade County vegetable agent, sees the -
sibility of a labor shortage. ° B oS

When the crops are ready, they have to be picked as quickly as possible. How-
ever, ﬁwmnm often is not enough labor available to pick the crops, which can be
gwmb in a matter of hours.

“We om.uﬁno: about labor problems until we actually get into beavy harvest,”
Uzﬁ.o mmﬁ. ‘There noc.E. be a labor shortage—in fact, I think there will be. This
is something we're anticipating this year. We'll have to work it out the best we
nm:..éwmd and if it arrives.

Eicher, of the Homestead Housing Authority, agreed that there could be a labor
shortage, but suggested that it might be a selective one cansed more by pay scales
Ew: by an mQ:.E lack of persons available to work.

In the nm&ﬂbm H_oﬁmmm. 4 man might work his tail off and only make a couple
bucks an hour, .Wm said. :a.ﬂozbnm in the fields, he can take home more in a ¢couple
days than he Hﬁmun make in a week at a packing house. So he might skip packing
Wommm ﬁwoww uo,UEm w.o get field work, if only for two or three days a week.

T think we're .mogm to see this problem. If the packing houses get stacked up
dmamﬁmm they can’t get help, that slows down the field work . . . so even though
MMM mmm got enough people around to do the work, you still got a labor shortage.”

J =mu.m&. of OMICA, suggests that the problem of i
reAsOnAbLe Teesis I of a labor shortage might only be

“If a farmer has a 60-acre field of tomatoes and he w it pi i

1 ants to get it picked in one
mmm. w._m might want 500 people out there working. If he doesn’t get 500 people, he
MMm mm M%memﬂ mwwﬁmMm,kuﬁmMmN said. “If be does get 500 people, and they pick
ree hours, en do nothing £ 3 've g
Snemployments N g for the rest of the day, then we've got
The Dade County harvest season “officially” i i
: ) y" began Friday, with the opening
of the ¥l : ki Fom 1
e I orida City State Farmers Market, second largest packing operation in
If the season goes well, if there are no shorta i
, ] ges, it could be a record year.
¢ Durre, mu.m vegetable m.an.ﬁ said all the crops are in good shape so far, Mwm the
oWWw%%MmaMW mﬁmwﬁ. coming in this week with the other crops close behind.

3 ril, crises or not crises, it will be all over, and t i i

moving north again with the season. ' he migrants will be

[From the South Dade News Leader, Mar. 2, 19731
TEREE CHILp CENTERS To SHUT DOownN

(By Mary Kirkland)

As of April 1, three day care centers and an inf
. . : > ‘ant care center at three South
Ww&m labor camps qﬂb ?.w ‘out of the running”, Wendall Rollason, director of
e %w&mu.um Oudmﬂmb Migrant Association, warned today. ’
. They SE be abolished due to President Nixon’s recent cut backs in several
vmom%mwwmmﬂmm wmomu%sum. The latest federal regulations call for the termination
oant ally funded day care programs which use private monies as the “local
The three day care centers affected are locat i
r ed in th
Om%%« .“m..uusomﬁow Liabor Camp, and Redland Labor Camp. ¢ South Dade Labor
amilies using the day care centers numb i ! i
wmm&qimHm T er 150, of which only eight are
:. ithout the center the mothers will have to stay h i
mmmEm no%um welfare rolls,” said Rollason. ¥ fiome, So we are potentially
urrently the operating day care budget is $166,737 based u i
Mmm.mnw :H_oomw. mwwwﬂ.wo%dﬂuwuﬁﬂou. In addition, Eu.m MOBanmwMOWMWWuMEMm%
supplies $52,959. Only ¢ i
ooty supplies y the $166,737 would be cut due to President
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The day care centers were begun () years ago by the Mennonite Voluntary
SQervice. Six years ago RCMA was created to give local support to the program,
although Mennonite volunteers are gtill an integral part of the program.

The program has expended in recent years with the addition of the state pre-
school trailer program. This year the day care centers care for two year olds,
the infant eare program in the South Dade Labor Camp takes in children from
<ix weeks to two years, and the trailer program teaches three and four year
olds.

‘vhe state trailer program is run by certified teachers.

“Topday no one is turned away,” said Rollason. “We can find room for every
pre-schooler, which wasn't the case when we had all the two, three and four year
vlds.”

“We are taking in about 180 migrant infants, pre-schoolers, and after school
children in the three labor camps,” said Rollason.

1n the summer months we continue the program, plus absorbing 150 additional
pre-schoolers from the state trailer program and the Dade kindergartens.

“In addition we operate a free lunch program in the South Dade Labor Camp
for 200 school age youngsters, and during the summer RCMA is feeding 450

to 500 children at noon.
Ironically, Rollason agreed with President Nixon that some cutbacks were

necessary.

“There is a great deal of truth in the President’'s strong criticisms of federal
programming for the poor,” he admits.

“Pyverty is big business, and there ijs @ substantial industry which exists
solely off the profits to be made from dreaming up programs for the poor. That
jndustry is loaded with its own fat cats,” he charged.

However, he feels that the current cuts will let the fat cats survive nicely,
whiie hurting the people who need the prograins.

“The poor are being bludgeoned mercilessly to pay for the sins of a coalition
of lazy, disinterested bureaucrats and clever entrepreneurs,” he said.

In addition to the day care centers, summer youth programming for migrants
vwill he cut.

“One of our deepest worries is over the elimination of all summer youth pro-
gramming in which RCMA is not financially involved, ’he said.

Rolason is hoping that Dade County will supply the missing federal monies.
«“But so much is pot yet clear,” he lamented.

[From the Miami Herald, Mar. 4, 19723
DrorouTs PuT BACK ON TRACK
(By Martin Weston)

Ernie Richardson, a Pompano Beach youth who last year was a disillusioned
high school dropout, left Friday for West Point, Miss. to begin his first semester
of college.

Richardson’s experience at Blanche Ely High School in Pompano Beach, by
his own account, left him with little prospect of economic success for the rest
of his life.

“1 just quit, and walked the streets,” said Richardson, 19.

Put the 64 black youth is filled now with determination to finish college and
perhaps seek advanced degrees. The thanks go to a friend who steered him to a
federally sponsored high scohol equivalency program (HEP) at the University
of Miami.

HEP, which operates with $261,000 in 1.8, Office of Economic Opportunity
funds, is now four years old. This year it graduated 26 youths from the ranks of
Florida’s underprivileged and migrant families.

Friday morning HEP held a special program and party for Richardson and
five other participants who have received financial aid to attend Mary Holmes

Junior College in West Point, Miss. . .
Five of the six left together on a bus to college right after their official send-

off.
Among them was Randolph Wright, 21, of Boynton Beach, who dropped out
of high school for two years before entering HEP.

Wright was directed to the program by his former sixth grade teacher. He
said he will major in math at Mary Holmes. He chose the school because

of its small, close environment.



Also attending Mary Holmes from HEP will be TLorene Minatee, 19, of

Thomasville, Ga.; Paschal Payton, 19, and Brenda Vance, 21, of Pompano
Beach; and Janie Villarreal, 19, of Munday, Texas.

John Sanchez, director of the U. of M, HIP, said 48 students are enrolled in
the program that features closely supervised study under a go-at-your-own-pace
curriculum. All participants are housed at the university.

Most referrals, he said, come frowm the Migrant Educational Talent Seareh,
which seeks to give financial aid for higher education to the youth of migrant
families.

In the process, Sanchez explained, many high school dropouts are discovered
and sent to HEP to gain high school diplomas before going ou to college.

Of the 120 participants last year, HEP graduated 66 and kept 30 for further
study, Sanchez said.

[From the Miami Herald, July 1, 1972]
MiGRANT CHIEF BLASTS ASKEW
(By John Camp)

The president of Organized Migrants In Community Action (OMICA), one.
of the major farmworker groups in south Florida, Friday lashed out at Gov.
Reubin Askew, accusing him of supporting “frauds and the falsehoods of petty
bureaucrats.”

The blast by OMICA clief Ruby Juarez came after OMICA attorney Joe Segor
of Miami received word from the head of a new migrant training program that
Gov. Askew had refused to order auy changes in the program that would place
more control in the hands of migrants.

Ben Patterson, head of the controversial Migrant Manpower Delivery System.
said that the governor had personally reviewed the program, and saw no need
for major changes.

OMICA and other migrant groups had asked Askew to take the program out
of the hands of the Florida State Employment Service, and place it under the
control of a migrant-approved organization.

At the same time that the OMICA chief was blasting the state government, he
found that the state had filed suit against OMICA, and against all agents of”
OMICA, alleging that the group bad been intimidating staff members and poten-
tial members of the training program with threats of violence.

The charges apparently are the result of picketing by OMICA of the pro-
gram’s offices, and an incident during an MMPS training session in which Juarez
struck MMPS staff member John Brandon.

Juarez said after the punching incident that *I am sorry I let myself be driven
to the point of striking out at Mr. Brandon, and I hope he will forgive me for
losing control of myself. We do not advocate violence and have always insisted
on nonviclence in our approaches to our problems.”

He said that GMICA picketers had not attempted to intimidate persons
enrolling for the program, and said that the picketing had been going on for
several weeks without incident. He said that incidents alleged in the suit had
taken place in Broward or Palm Beach counties, and that his OMICA organi-
zation. was not active in those areas.

Wendell Rollason, head of the Redland Christian Migrant Association, who.
backs Juarez in his opposition to the program, still expressed some doubt ithat
the governor had made the decision against changing the program. He said that
the difficulty might have come through intercession by Lt. Gov. Tom Adams.

Rollason, who repeatedly emphasized that he believes in working out the.
problems with the help of the “establishment,” said that he plans to appear-
before the Dade County School Board on J uly 19 to ask that the school system
not support the program. He said that he would make the same requesti of the
Broward County School Roard. - .

“The Redland Chrigtian Migrant Association is going to do everything it can
to convince the system’s educational components to recognize that this program
technically is a poor one, that the farmworkers have been betrayed on promises
made to them by the state, simply that the whole community of South Florida
has got to take a stand against this misuse of migrant funds.”

Juarez said that OMICA will also file a suit in opposition to the program, and
seek to have it placed in other hands. He said that the OMICA picket lines around
the program’s enrollment offices would be withdrawn;, however.
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The controversy over the program began when migrant officials Emoodowmm
) y H N T e

that it was to be administered by the Florida State @BED%B@E vwwinm, which
they claim has a long record of discrimination against migrant workers.

{From the South Dade News Leader, June 12, 1972]
MIGRANTS MISLEAD, GOVERNOR TOLD
{(By Mary Kirkland)

Declaring the migrants have been “deceived and discounted” by the state gov-
ernment in the handling of the proposed migrant manpower prograni, aqﬂmdmm:
Rollason, executive director of the Redlands Christian Migrant Association has
requested Gov. Reubin Askew to personally intervene in n.bm E.omgm.% .

Rollason compiled a 25-page report listing in QE.Q:oSmuoE owdﬁ.. the promises
he sayvs have been made to the migrants, and systematically listing when and

hw badly those promises have been broken. .

:A,EUM, mmw,ow.m mzm::umm the time period from .H.Eum 20, 1971, when U.S. mowamﬁf.%
of Labor, James Hodgson, announced the existence of the manpower ?om‘me,
through May 3, 1972, when the migrants and the RCMA H..Smom.mm the US@EE&

Manpower provides $1.9 million in Dade County mo Eim:w migrants for work
in other, non-seasonal, occupations, Statewide $3.5 million was to have been
spent. The program exists in nine states.

;Wo:umomH wmwum the two main objections to the program were the program’s
“fat’ (32 of the T2 staff positions are slated to go to state mﬁ..wodbﬁ and not to
farm workers) and the fact the program would be administered under the
vl Tmployment Department. .
EMMMWWW%%_MME«&V: %o:mwom says the migrants were ﬁaoéwmmm on Nov. .Hm“
1971, that a special division. the Migrant Manpower Delivery System, was being
created in the Bureau of Employvment Services to handle BmmboSow. Hw,wm was
due to the fact the migrants had previously found the State FEEo%EmE. Serv-
ice to be discriminatory, and discriminatory treatment had been documented by

the U.S. Labor Department in April, 1972. . )
The promise of a new department came from William Cauley of the Depart-

e1 ommerce said Rollason.

Ehmmzcmm.% also promised at that time migrants Q.SEQ be consulted to a great de-
gree in the manpower training planning stage, said Rollason. )

Rollason also charges betrayal in the fact that by the time Manpower was
ready to go this summer, and most migrants had left .Ummm County. He charges
this was due to the purposeful handling by grower Hocdu:ﬂmm. ) ) .

Rollason listed more “hetrayals” in his report, ending with the migrants
“last straw.” .

On May 3, 1972, Ben Paterson from the Department of .OoBBoH.mm 45;.@@
Dade County to speed up delays in the manpower program. Migrants asked him

- that time who was handling the program.
mﬁﬁ,ﬁw Wmnmamod replied ﬁm%uo:ﬁ hesitation, “Florida State Employment .wm.ﬁr
jices',” said Rollason. “The meeting went through the H.oom.. mﬂwm last remaining
pledge had been broken. There really had vmmn. no new Eﬂw::m ﬂ.mmnmm other
than on paper and Mr. Paterson had either the integrity or stupidity enough to

acknowledge this.” . .
In a letter to the governor, Rollason pleads ﬂ.:nw. the governor to bring about

changes in Manpower.
Mmmﬂmim gw program to be placed under some other department than the

ivisi ity Affairs or
Department of Commerce, such as the State Division of Oo.BBsmHQ IS
Hﬂ%imm Atlantic University : the elimination of :Uzammdodmn.ﬂm fat”: he creation
af statewide and local advisory boards, and the recognition of the need for
gualified farmworkers at all decision making levels of the program.

[From the South Dade News Leader, Sept. 8, 16721
REePORT TRACKS OMICA’s, RCMA’s MANPOWER GRIEVANCES

(By Paul Osborn)

For a short period of time two weeks ago, it was felt v% moBm,ﬁua Rudy H Tares
would be ousted as president of OMICA. (Organized Migrants in Community Ae-
tion). But circumstances proved differently.



250

The squalible between those in favor of Juarez's continuing leadership, anu
those who feel hie has not been doing enough for the migrants in general, stems
principally over the gut reaction feelings the migrants have towards the De-
partment of Commerce’s Migrant Manpower Training Program.

In the past Juarez has stated the $1.9 million farmworker training program is
a “waste of taxpayers money.”

“We've had federal programs like this come down here and they’ve all failed.”
Juarez explained. “They failed hecause the people weren’t involved in them, We
were just having these programs shoved down our throats. The money falls into
the hands of these local bureaucracies who work only for themselves, not for the
people. They wind up working against the people they are supposed to be serving.”

Yet there are other people like Tony Mirelez, job advisor with the Manpower
brogram who feels that the program is good, providing a “basic education” for
a lot of people who need it.

To a good number of migrants, the hassle back and forth over the Manpower
program adds up to a lot of mumbo, jumbo. Many have no clear concise idea as to
how the Manpower program was formulated in the first place, or what it truly
represents today.

A while back Wendell Rollason. executive director of the Redlands Christian
Migrant Association, compiled a “Chronicle of Events and Situations Relating
to the Florida Department of Commerce’s Migrant Manpower Training Program™.
The chronicle provides some enlightening faets on the Manpower program, In
all fairness it should be mentioned that Rollason’s personal viewpoint is against
the establishment of the Manpower program as it is conceived and administered
today.

June 20, 1971 —Florida farm worker organizations issue joint declaration ex-
pressing strong opposition to selection of Florida Farm Labor Office (also known
as Florida Rural Manpower Service, a division of Florida Department of
Commerce).

June 22, 1972, U.8. Secretary of Labor Tames Hodgson issued devastating re-
port against numerous state farm labor offices throughout the nation, specificaily
including Florida . . . The Labor Department reported that widespread viola-
tions of laws covering exploitation of migrant farm workers in Florida and that
agencies appeared more intent on serving farmers than protecting migrant
rights. The Rural Manpower Service was cited for tilting its service in favor
of the farmer to the detriment of the farm worker.

August 17, 1971—Both federal and state labor officials declared that Florida's
migrant program is to start “this winter” when the “migrants are home based,”
Rollason said. ;

October.—Rollason requested of Dade County’s manpower officials to make in-
quiry of the State as to progress of this prograni.

November 12. A meeting was held in RCMA’s Princeton Labor Camp office.
called at the request of the Department of Commerce. Among those present was
William Cauley of that department who issued two declarations of note :

1. A new division, Migrant Manpower Delivery System, had been created in
the Bureau of Employment Services to handle this training program.

2. That those local short sessions being held in migrant areas were simply
to develop the skeleton of a program for federal consideration. Commerce staff
would return soon for further detailed conferences with migrants for full farm-
worker participation in planning.

February 18, 1972 —This was the next time, Rollason reported, that he saw
any Department of Commerce officials here in Dade on this migrant program.
Fred Fredette and William Cauley presented the State's proposal for approvatl by
the Manpower Area Planning Counecil of Metropolitan Dade County. Their plea
was that the federal authorities wanted the program in operation April 1.
scarcely six weeks away. As Rollason stated. “there was an outery of protest
from the several migrants present. What of the promise to involve them in the
planning? The excuses were lame at best.”

February 29.—RCMA. staff reviewed the proposal and listed another broken
promise already visible on the horizon. This was a program for migrants. Now.
it was already a certainty that most migrants in Dade would be gone before
the Department of Commerce’s program got underway.

March 10.-—~Cauley and C. T. Claggett of the Department of Commerce were
present. At this meeting the following agreements were reached :

1. Under the arm of the South Dade Community Council an Advisory Com-
mittee to the Migrant Manpower Delivery System would be created locally with
control in the hands of the farmworkers.
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2. Claggett would meet as often as necessary with this Advisory Committee to

er out the Dade program. - o
meHHWWm Committee would have “a say” in the staffing. The intent here was

further defined. ) .
bow&%%ny 21, 1972.—Meeting with Claggett extracted the mo:oénw mmH.mmenﬂu.
1. State «qozE appoint Dade County program Enanﬁon..baﬁmo% OQEE:?K
39.»5 have up to six months to accept or reject him on basis of his performance
HmmSMb other applicants for Dade staffing would be interviewed by 2 H.umn.mou:m%
Qob.pHE.ﬁﬁmo and its recommendation for the individual to be hired for each
iti ould be forwarded to Claggett. .
wow;H%%,MMon Committee would ,cmuwm@n fully advised on the program develop-
Bmw.uﬁm and would be contacted each time State personnel came into Dade on
business. ) )
GH.MMM.MH%E.I.U:HEN an Advisory Committee meeting members wmmu..dm.m MﬁBOmM
inadvertently from a staff person of the office Q:E...w O.Em.mmnﬁ had Eﬁmaﬁmﬁwﬁ
applicants that he bad promised persons letiers mﬁéﬁﬁbﬁ employment. Yet
the Personnel Committee had interviewed no one. M phoned Mr. Qmmmmﬁ im-
mediately at his home in Tallahassee.” Rollason said. “Flad gm, Hoz:m_:oﬂm.c.
who revealed this to us related the situation correctly w. Yes. U:E t 9.@ bm,ﬁmoﬂ
Committee have a firm commitment that it would interview applicants and
make recommendations?’ ] .
“Rollason,” said Claggett, “we have a Eomﬂﬂg ﬁ.w *mmﬁ underway . ..” A pause,
“g]1 right, tell me how long will this ﬁ:mm em ¥’ . o
gmubmmﬁ mu%n_uow broken promise and, this time,” said Rollason, “a destroyed pro
gram”. .
April 24, For a week a reprieve ag
form of a conflict between the Florida

ainst certain collapse appeared in the omm
Department of OoEEf.mm ME.Q ﬁpm wwoammw
of Education. Under a section of the federal law involved,
meww. Mwmuﬂrm:mumgm the former over jurisdiction o.m these federal BHNMEW Mm%mﬂ%g
and the Advisory Committee was so mmim.mm. Ooﬁwﬁmﬁoﬁ was rampant. As nemm Lson
put it, “we requested that a mm&mwou.BmE.bm official ﬂ.oH.u mwnw a@bm.mmupmw
down together to explain the entire situation to the Pmﬁmoﬁ OoEEw mm.m Fline of
May 3, 1972 Ben Patterson of the Department of Commerce and mEmﬁ,mE mgm
the Department of Eduecation arrived. Patterson stated that the prog
in his jurisdiction.
The second question asked of Patterson was,
i rogram operation ?”’ .
Emumnn%.mou HW@Emm without hesitation. :Eod.
«The meeting went through the roof,” said m.oo:m
unanimously rejected by chicanos, blacks, whites,
remaining pledge had been broken. There really h
other than on paper.”

“under what agency is this train-

da State Employment Services.”
son:; “And the program was
and farmworkers. The last
ad been no ‘division created

{From the Miami News, Sept. 2, 1972]
TARM WORKERS ISUE STATE, SAY AGENCIES ARE DISCRIMINATING
(By Hilda Inclan)

i 3 i Collier county
. of 12 Florida farm workers in Dade, Palm Wmmnu m.um. ler cou
umemva%% suit against the State of Florida for allegedly discriminating against

i nd farm workers. .

E%wwumﬂmﬂ ig an outgrowth of the controversy of many months in moﬁﬂmuuum@vm
over the administration of the Migrant Manpower Delivery System (M ,
a program for migrants set up in June. . )

HMEHM suit names Florida Governor Reubin Askew, Li. Governor .HonwH »Pmm_ammu
the State Division of Labor, the Department of Commerce and other sta mwc ce
and officials as defendants. It is a “class” action—filed on behalf of all others in

imilar situation. . .
mm_mﬂm Wbﬂsﬂmmm are farm workers Juan Garcia, .Hzm.u wwwmw.maﬁ Willie whmm
Smith, Mary Martin, Roosevelt Martin, Linda Curtis, mywmﬁm Suarez, Jose
m.mnmu,wumumm ‘Wright, Jose A. Casares, Jesse mmdﬁ.Om and Hﬁmuo. mm.:uﬁo.m. South

dﬂmem: Rollason of the Redlands Christian Migrants Association in Sou
is also listed as a plaintiff. -
Um%mm mmnﬁ was filed in U.8. District Court yesterday c.% attorneys J ﬁmﬁb mmm%or
Fxecutive Director of the Migrant Services @o:ummﬁob_ and by Bryan err
and William Manikas of the Florida Rural Legal Services.
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Migrants have been actively opposing the placing of the MMDS under the
state Department of Commerce and the Florida Employment Agency. The pro-
grawm is veing filuanced under a $3.5 million grant from the U.S. Department of
Labor, of which $1.9 million is intended for Dade County.

The suit alleges that the state Department of Commerce employment offices
practice race, age and sex discrimination.

It contends these offices do not give farm workers the full range of services
they are supposed to he offered, but instead always refer them to menial jobs.

“The MMDS was set up as merely a continuation of the discrimination farm
workers have suffered,” the complaint states. “The State of Florida has not
included them in the planning of this program as required by federal regulations.”

The suit also outlines alleged discrimination in hiring within the MMDS pro-
gram, where it claims the high-paying jobs have gone to people outside the
ethnic groups the program is supposed to serve.

It claims MMDS training practices are inadequate and that a broad range of
supportive legal and social services is not being provided.

[From the Miami Herald, Dec. 7, 19711
REGISTRATION LAW FOrR MIGRANTS Is Nor Enrorcep, OFFICIALS TOLD
(By Earl Dehart)

Florida agriculture better prepare for labor problems if Tallahassee doesn’t
enforce the new Migrant Crew Leader Registration Aect, Wendell Rollason,
director of the Redlands Christian Migrant Association said Monday.

The act, passed last spring, is aimed at protecting migrant farmworkers
from crew leader abuses. The act says crew leaders must register with Farm
Labor Offices certifying they have insurance on vehicles that transport workers.
It also prohibits farmers from contracting with unlicensed crew leaders. The
law applies to crews of 10 or more.

Roilason said organized migrant groups in the state, which have forced
confrontation with farmers in the past, could be anticipated to do so this year
if Tallahassee does not honor its commitment to protect field hands.

Even though some crew leaders have attempted to register and pay their
$25 fee, Farm Labor Offices have not received official authorization to take the
fees. Also the necessary forms have not been provided.

Dorsey Henderson, who drafted the bill as a member of Sen. Lee Weissen-
born’s Commission on Migrant Affairs, said the bhang-up was caused by a legal
dispute between the Migrant Commission and Department of Commerce
attorneys. The latter said the $25 registration fee should go to the general tax
fund instead of administration of the act.

Henderson said the intent of the bill is clear that it should be used to admin-
ister the act. Legislative action is being prepared now to remedy the conflict,
Henderson said.

Rollason said. “T acknowledge that the Department of Commerce is faced
with certain difficulties in getting enforcement into action. But, if they
had really wanted.to, they could have done so two months ago. All we are
getting are words, excuses and false promises.-

Al Auget of the Princeton Farm Labor Office said he didn’t have the forms or
the authorization to register crew leaders.

“Our hands are tied,” he said.

Rollason said there are state funds that could be used in the interim until
the legislative oversight is corrected. i ’

“You can be certain if business needed something the Department of Com-
merce would have found the money long ago.” Rollason said.

Two weeks ago, Rollason asked Gov. Reubin Askew for help and then Lt
Gov. Tom Adams who doubles as director of the Department of Commerce.

“Still there is no enforcement,” Rollason said.

[From the Miami Herald, Dec. 10, 19717
REGISTRATION oF CREW CHIEFS To START

TALLAWASSEE—The registration of migrant crew chiefs, delayed by uncertain
funding since July 1, will begin immediately, Florida Division of Labor officials
said Thursday. ¢ .

“Registration forms will be in the Farm Offices by the first of next ﬁ‘mmrm.
promised L. F. Shebel, chief of the division's bureau of employment. “We
want to have the (rvegistration) act fully implemented by Jan. 1. )

impiementation of the erew chief registration v assured during the ?mif,
ture’'s special session by a technical bill that specifically placed the $25 ”.Avw,i:.,m-
tion fee into a special account for operation of the crew chief aet, m:osﬁ. said.

Crew chief registration, designed to eliminate certain abuses by migraut
crew chiefs, had been delayed when division officials questioned ﬁ;_mz.ymw
the original legislation allowed the division to use the $25 fee for operation
of the act.

“We operate on federal funds,” Shebel said. “But we couldn’'t use that federal
money to implement a state law.” )

The Migrant Crew Chief Act would require liabiiity M:m_:.ﬁ:.mm on vehicles
transporting migrants and would require crew chiefs to provide workers a
statement of wages and deductious. . .

Crew chiefs working without proper registration would be guilty of a mis-
demeanor under the state law, as would employers hiring them

[From the Miami News, Mar. 22, 19731
Lee OrricialL Braumgs State as Sgconp Lasor Boss 18 Hewp
(By Bill Gjebre)

A Lee County official blamed the state for “slave camp” conditions, 2:?:
had spread to this avea, charging it failed to enforce regulations to protect
farm worke . ) o .

The e¢riticism came from Assistant Lee County State Atto ey ?::.m St.
Laurent whose office is prosecuting a labor contractor charged with keeping a
migrant laborer in bondage. . .

St. Laurent said there was a counection between the contractor, Joe ( wwn-
foot) Thomas, 38, held in Hendry Couunty, and a labor contractor arrested in
Dade last week on false imprisonment charges. )

St. Laurent declined to reveal the conuection. He said that the two camp
operations, however, were separate. . L

“The state has fallenr down” on enforcing state laws covering mE.BﬂS.H.rmmj.
St. Laurent said. These conditions should have been “discovered years or months
ago,” he said. i ) 4 .

Because the regulations haven't been enforced, he said, his om.wm.,m. w:m Florida
Department of Law Enforcement aud the Hendry County sheriff’s department
have stepped into the investigation.

[From the Miami Herald, Dec. 8, 1972]

St. Laurent said that two other contractors in the Hendry-Lee County areas
are under investigation for possible similar violations. .

Meanwhile, the Federal Bureau of Investigation, which w..mm m:.m.mmw U.mme a
probe of the bondage case in Dade, said that it also was starting an investigation
of the situation at the camp run by Thomas. . i

Thomas was arrested Tuesday evening by sheriff's deputies and m.mwim of the
FDLE after a former employe of Thomas told investigators of conditions at the
labor camp near the Everglades. )

The camp is at Alva, in Lee County, on the edge of the Glades south of the
Calonsahatchee River. o

“The smell was so bad at the camp I could not stay inside for more EEd, 30
seconds,” St. Laurent told newsmen. The camp is in Lee County and officers of
both Lee and Hendry investigated. . .

“There were wall-to-wall rotten mattresses . . . It looked like an animal
cage,” St. Laurent said. L 3

Investigators said Thomas, being held in lieu of $30.060 bond, used methods
similar to those allegedly used by Joe L. Brown of m.HoEmmﬁmmm. i .

Brown, free in $50,000 bond, is charged with holding w_w. workers in S‘iﬁm
slavery at the Far South Labor Camp near Everglades National Park in South
Dade. . .

He was arrested a week ago after sheriff’s detectives raided the camp and
found 29 workers living in fear and economic bondage.
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Lafayette Matthew, who was working for Brown and was arrested on false
imprisonment charges also, was denied $50,000 bond reduction at a hearing
today before Circuit Court Judge Ellen Rowe.

At the hearing attorney Walter Gwinn, representing both men, said that
Brown, free on $50,000 bond, was back at the Far South Camp, working.

WroNe MaN OUsTED 1N Lagor Cayp Rarp
(By Dennis D’Antonio)

Lantana, Fla.—One of 49 farm workers rounded up by border patrol agents
and hurriedly deported to Mexico after a series of weekend labor camp raids
was an American citizen, hig family protested Thursday.

Relatives of Amado Munoz, 28, an illiterate field hand, said he was born in
Harlingen, Tex., and the family doesn’t even know anyone in Mexico where the
workers were sent.,

Congressman Paul Rogers Thursday demanded a full investigation by the
Justice Department.

“From the information I have so far, I'm surprised at the way this was
handled and that this could happen in this country,” Rogers said.

Rogers referred to predawn raids in Palm Beach County’s farm labor belt
last Friday in which 25 border patrolmen and sheriff’s deputies rousted migrant
iaborers from their beds, searching for aliens who had illegally entered the U.S,
from Mexico.

“From the information I have,” said Rogers, “they were going into these labor
camps at 4 a.m. without search warrants and knocking on people’s doors and
making them come out.”

The 49 workers, tagged as Mexican aliens, were loaded on buses, taken to
Opa-locka Naval Air Station and flown to Merida, Mexico, Saturday.

Among them was Munoz, whose mother Volida said through an interpreter
from her home in Harlingen Thursday that she has her son’'s birth certificate to
pbrove he was born in the U.S.

A spokesman for Selective Service Board No. 43 in West Palm Besach con-~
firmed also that Munoz had registered for the draft as an American citizen
Feb. 19, 1962, when he was 18.

He would have been required to show either a birth certificate or a valid
driver's license to register, the spokesman said.

Munoz has a brother and sister living in Palm Beach County. Both claim he
is a citizen.

“Before they ship a person out of the United States, they should give him a
chance to prove he’s g citizen,” said Antonio Munoz, who lives in Delray Beach.

Munoz said he and his brother, Amado, are two of 14 children all born in
America. “We don’t even know anybody in Mexico, The only person in our
family born in Mexico was my father. My mother was born in America. Her
mother and father were born in America also.

Eloise Alverez, a married sister living west of Boynton Beach, said she had
last seen Amado about three weeks ago. “He mentioned he lost his wallet,”
she said.

She said Amado has not contacted the family since being deported Saturday,
and she thought he might be unable to convince authorities of his citizenship
without any identification.

“He can’t read and he doesn’t understand or speak English that well either,”
she said.

Munoz worked as a farm laborer and lived at a migrant camp on Lantana
Road, operated by American Food Corp., Mrs. Alverez said.

She first learned that her brother had been deported Saturday when the
camp boss called to inform her of the raid.

Mrs. Alverez said her brother has worked in Palm Beach County steadily
for the past three years, and off and on for 15. He occasionally went back to
Texas to visit the rest of the family, she said.

Munoz' mother, who has a home in Harlingen, about 20 miles from the
Mexican border, speaks little English. She spoke Thursday through a daughter,
Elvia, 19, who said her mother picked up Amado’s birth certificate earlier in
the day with the help of a judge, F. R. Childress.

The judge could not be reached for comment,
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istri imigrati : aturalizati irect ) . Woytyeh in Miami

Distriet imigration and naturalization U:.om..gﬂ w.\ccml 3 V
said all 49 mzmwmﬁ.om aliens picked up in the Uo.:nm raids were given .m oﬁoﬁmﬁwﬁ
being voluntarily deported or having a hearing, and they all agreed to the
deportation. X . o b

Woytych disclaimed any knowledge of Munoz Emdnmu QQwamv ip. .

.;.mqu Awmm given a statement to sign both in Vm,cm::mw and English in which he
claimed he was a citizen of Mexico,” Woytych mmﬁ. e .

He said his men “operate on information mccwcm@ to them” in picking up mdmmw
and are instructed not to enter people’s homes without search warranis unless
they are invited in. . .

Wmmgﬁ farm laborers have complained mES.S@ Hmuwmm, however, that the

bolice, in some instances, barged into people’s m_mmﬁ.uum quarters. .

! “In order to get 49 alleged aliens, they (the police) udmn. ﬂ.mEEmm on the E.m%ﬁm
of over 500 American citizen farm laborers on ﬁw@wu.mummrﬁm during those raids,
said Florida Rural Legal Services lawyer Brian &¢ err. . .
Lﬁdm can’t say érﬁamﬁ:oa we're going to take ddﬂz we n?B.Emwm our ump_ﬂmmgmm
tion, but that just isn’t the way you do things here in the United States,” Scherr
MEHQHW all, the predawn raids were made on seven labor camps situated along

Y N M

Military Trail in Palm Beach County’s farming area. . . . )
#W,:%WEMH Ted Winsberg, ﬁw nse camyp was one of zu.omo w.;, mm‘a the b,oﬁnm :éch
evervbody up and rousted them out, demanding identification . . . it smacks

of “Gestapo tactics.”

[From the Miami Herald, Dec. 9, 1972]
TeEXAS MoM WORRIES ABOUT DEPORTED SON

(By Georgia Martinez)

Twenty miles from the Mexican border, in the H,m..Mmm town of mmmy.ﬁa._mmw %%MM
Brownsville, Mrs. Ovida Munoz wonders and worries where her son is,

‘s all right. ) . o .
tm»M:m moWumﬁEmH.m near Merida, Mexico a frightened American citizen—her son

Qﬂmvmonmw knows where 28-year-old Amado HSE.EHN is. Not his mother, not U.S.
i igration officials of Justice, not Mexican ommﬁm.m. . . ) .
HEﬁpwwwwﬁwqwm deported to Mexico a week ago by immigration officials wﬂoboq_mw.m
Ew early moring raid on the farm labor camp in South Palm Beach county wl
Munoz lived. . Iy reads Tnelish
idi Border Patrolmen claimed that gsbos, who bare y g ,
ud%mmm%m read Spanish, was a Mexican alien, illegally working on a tomato
G i i ing g born in Harlingen.
£ Mrs. Munoz has a birth certificate proving her son was : :
Wmn ﬁumngmwmmou made the mistake it seems they Bmmmlmua @mﬁ%ﬁmﬂn m»l.ﬁ
»»»Emwwnmw citizen after a raid now being criticized for its “Gestapo” tacti
ials luctant to talk. . . . o
cﬁwmhwmwmmawﬂﬂwmm, and Washington, MEEEES@ .ommﬁ,ﬁm either ﬂou.ﬁ Eu,aé Emm
ﬂoz.np say mﬁuwa_m being done to verify Munoz citizenship and get him on
A to the States. . . .
How%.wm%mm:om said she was called last m%ﬁ%amwm by w m%mMmVWWH Swwmwo WMMMW ww
Boynton Beach and told that memo had been .mcow o hea by femy
i s. . Munoz’'s daughter, Eloise Alvarez, said mc.m was X
WWMHM,“ Wwwmminmu Foods Owiu. labor camp that her brother had been deported.

[Prom the Miami News, Jan. 4, 1973}
RAIDS ON M16RANTS CALLED GESTAPO-LIKE
(By Jack Roberts)

Wendell Rollason gets a wm:hﬁm@ Moow 2&%5:bmowm%w#mwm%ﬂzww%%MH.WWMMMM.
1 he has never seen. In his mind’s eye olla ares. ! A
wﬂm%mﬂ wme miles through a strange and :Eﬁ% ooauﬁﬂmmﬁ% HWMMHWWMMMWWHM orker
o e along the way, Rollason fears, the penn migrant !
EMWMWMM%ANM in mugmﬁnmw prison. The very thought makes Rollason shudder.
=l
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w::m u spent more than a year in Mexico City's Lecumberri Prison, He
falsely imprisoned and would have died in Lecumberri had a host of people
not gone to his aid. Today, RoHason devotes his life to helping migrant worke ;
many of them Mexicans. It's one of those strange twists of life. N )
But let's get back to Munoz. He was one of 49 “aliens” picked up by border
tm“:.c::m: and sheriff’s deputies in a series of seven raids pulled during :,_m
middie of the night of Dec. 1 in Palm Beach County. The raiders rousted Nc,Em
500 migrants out of bed to get to the “aliens.” T
Munoz, 28, signed a paper saying he was a Mexican citizen and the next dav
was put on a plane bound for Merida, Mexico. He hasn't been heard from y‘.:,:‘.m.:

was

PROOF AVAILABLE GIVEN THE CHANCE

Unfertunately, Munoz was an American citizen born in Harlingen. Tex.
He could have proved it if given the chance. Instead, he was set g,._:f_ in a
remote corner of Mexico some 600 miles from Mexico City and 1 000 miles from
Brownsville, Tex. . ' , )

Rollason, executive director of the Redland Christian Migrant Association
and a man I admire greatly, says the raids on labor camps smack of the (es 10
and that families are often separated. “We hear the stories, hut you can never
check things out,” says Rollason. “They grab people in the middle of the night
and shove them out of the country the next dav.” h

Rollagon fears that the adverse publicity given U, Immigration officialg
following Munoz’ ouster has been smoothed over and the case forgatten. To
make sure people don’t forgst Munoz e Rollason has fired off letters to
Florida's governor, its attorney general and anyone who shows interest.

S

QUEESTIONS REFERRED TO WASHINGTON

Immigration officials here refer questions to Don Coppock, deputy associate
n..aEEwmmMo:E. of Immigration in Washington. Coppock 2aws the case is far from
forgotten and that only yesterday he sent a man to Merida from Mexico City
to work with the U.S. eonsul in Merida. i

‘We've placed advertisements in Mexican newspapers for Munoz and we've
appealed to people on radio to contact us if they know of his whereabouts,”
said Coppock. “We've brought in extra people to work the cpse and ther're trying
to track down some 17 people who went to Merida on the plane with Munoz.
Maybe one of these people will know where Munnz might he.

Coppock said that Immigration men don’t break up family groups when
they arrest aliens. adding that in the majority of the raids most of the peonle
nabbed are allowed a certain length of time to get back to Mexico on their own.

And, Coppock said, the influx of Mexican laborers has taken a sharp upswing,
Last year 3,804 aliens were turned up in Florida by Immigration officers, as
opposed to 1,134 the year before.

“What they’re talking about is poor people looking for work,” says Rollason.
“They pay informers $10 a head to turn these people in. They're treated like
cattle . . . no regard for human life. It makes me sick.”

Rollason doesn’t want the Immigration raiders to forget that they goofed one
time without being able to cover their mistake, and his raint ic v~ Ttatonn
Rousting 500 people out of bed in the middle of the night to get at 49 people
doesn’t sound very much like the United States of America, does its

STATEMENT OF WENDELL ROLLASON, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR,
REDLANDS CHRISTIAN MIGRANTS ASSOCIATION

M r. Rorrason. Well, sir, T want to express our appreciation for your
coming down here. We realize the seriousness of what has prompted
this hearing, but we have followed certainly your work in behalf of
the farmworkers of the country, Mr. Congressman, and are deeply ap-
preciative of the fact that vou are one of the major Congressmen of

the House and that you will give a considerable amount of time to the
bottom of the heap.

And, D’d like, 1f I may, to read to vou a brief explanation of the
pregentation we gave about our organization mm Tallahassce a few
weeks ago, because 1t sets the point of view of which I speak. The
Redland Christian Migrants Association, working in South Dade as
part of the establishment does not represent migrants, as we know they
have adequate spokesmen of their own. Instead, we represent the point
of view of many church-ortented individuals and society deeply con-
cerned with farmworkers’ families and the problems they have.
ROMA believes in the American system. We believe it belongs to all
Americans. We acknowledge it has not worked well for the poor in
general, and especially for the m ite. RMCA’s role is to assist in
correcting this mequity, and in so deing, we believe that agriculture
is Florida’s No. 1 industry and that our contribution is enor-
mous, and that its food is nourishing millions of families in our Na-
tion. We feel, RCMA, also feels that in no shape or form is the farm-
worker getting a fair share of that economy nor is he receiving by and
large anywhere near the total or decent share of the moeneys that tax-
payers are paying specifically for migrants.

=0, within the time available, I prepared this, and the staff worked
hard to produce this, as you can imagine, within 48 hours, including the
printing. And, I understand that this hearing is to examine the fed-
erally funded programs as those of us testifying see them.

And, T anticipated, and quite properly, that the concern for the
typhoid horror that the farmworkers had to undergo would be em-
phasized here. That is inevitable, that it would. Se, I am in turn trying
to stay away from it with what few references I.can make otherwise.

Mr. Foro. 1T am grateful you have perceived a greater purpose in-
volved in these hearings than simply to inguire into the specifics of the
tvphoid epidemic. It 1s extremely important. It has the attention of
Members of Congress and people across the country, and it is a way to
focus attention on the greater problem of which this is only a part.

Mr. Rorrason. Yes; and, depending on your point of view, it can be
a small or large part. We agree, I think all of us, although we may dis-
agree how to get there with the basic premises on which you start off
with as to the importance of this labor group to the country that we
ave attempting to deal with at the moment, and on the conditions 1n
this county. We are trying to not go back over the same ground. and
we have some very good people here who have been suggesting to us
ways that we might get a better handle than we now have on well-
meaning Federal programs that ave not getting to the people for
which they are intended, and carrying out the original purposes that
were set forth in that legislation by Congress. .

We have a lot of nice-sounding programs on the books to deal with
the multiple problems of migrant workers. We have very strong evi-
dence, in fact, that very many people have changed the conditions, and
‘this is brought about their passage. So, we havea much broader concern
and are quite grateful to people who’ve helped us to learn and apnre-
ciate the scope of the problem by leoking into this specific problem
here in Dade County. But, it does go far beyond the typhoid epidemic.

T realize the emphasis of those that have preceded me, and particu-
larly the farmworkers’ representatives who are quite properly 1n an
.opportunity like this going to zero in on things that are wrong. But, 1
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stand in a little bit different position of observation, and with over
20 years' experience here in Dade County in the field.

My first congressional hearing that T participated in was in 1954 on
this same South Dade labor camp in this same auditorium. So, it is
from this two decades of experience I address you as I have seen the
progress, and with my familiarity with the rest of the State of Florida,
that there is no place like Dade County in its eflort to bring the forces
of the establishment in to bear objectively and positively for the
migrants.

I have statements here on situations which show what we are dealing
with when we're talking about Federal programs. For example, De-
ginning with the currently beleagured Housing Authority and the
camps’ ability to administer money—we have few camps anywhere on
the eastern seaboard. And, I think this is important, for you gentle-
men to know this type background, in the aftermath of the 1971 freeze,
and where the county agriculture disaster committee made up solely of
agricultural interests solely for the first time in the history of the
United States of these disaster committees anywhere, requested the
President to come forth with emergency aid for the farmworkers.
And, one of the programs administered by the Department of Labor
was, they took it from the operation mainstream moneys and they set
up a Lake Worth program, but the concept of the State labor people
and the Federal Government was that they would take crew chiefs and
just get the work force out. Dade County metropolitan government
under Ray Goode refused to go along with that. They were not about
to go along with this situation in the emergency. So that, as the clip-
pings indicate here, the county set up a job plan for migrants which
was run by migrants. Mr. Rudy Juarez wasthe first man selected to
direct this program. And, I think Mr. Juarez was testing out the es-
tablishment. And once he got to the point of his duties elsewhere in the
State became compelling, he stepped down from it, which is fine. I think
that the farmworkers have ample reason to doubt the Integrity of the
establishment and to put it to the test. I think our particular interest
is the young man’s position here who did take over the directorship,
and to show the caliber of these people, such as Mr. William Walker,
I think his name was, yesterday, who I think impressed you gentlemen,
where this young man by the name of Tony Hernandez came in on the
program and promptly fired two on the staff there because they weren’t
gomg to do the job. And, he set forth right away that they weren’t
gomg to fool around. And, they were here and they’re paid for a job
and they were going to do it.

And, another example of this, of what happens here in Dade
County and the supports that the migrant receives, is in the Depart-
ment of Labor’s migrant manpower delivery system training program.
which is a national program, a training program. And, in almost no
other area of the country was it put into the hands of the State farm
labor offces. But it was by action of Governor Askew here. And it was,
regrettably, and the program was objected to strenuously by the farm-
workers. And the promises that were made to them were ignored. And,
s0, the job sites were picketed.

- I'would cite, for example, on the task force that was appointed on
this thing, the personnel director of the Florida Power & Light
Co. came to the point where after an 8 months’ struggle that the
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State relinguished the program other than a fiscal responsibil-
ity, and turned it over to the International University, Florida Inter-
national University. And today the program is operating with a very
strong mput from farmworkers. The farm work organization has a
piece of the action on a subcontractor basis. And the congressional
mtent for this program is being carried out here in Dade County,
whereas in the other two counties of the program it is not.

So, T wanted to lay this background to you gentlemen in order
that you could perhaps understand as I continue, and you can see why
I am trying to pinpoint some of these things.

We have seen, of course, quite properly right here, you gentlemen
challenging Dr. Saslaw on the health situation here. 1 feel that the
criticism that has been leveled against Dr. Saslaw is an easy out,
whether it is from Congressmen or from farmworkers. I think the re-
sponsibility here, and I think some of this has gotten out, I'd like to
emphasize this, I think looking over 20 years that the one depart-
ment here in Dade County in the State that has had the consistent
concern for the farmworkers has been the health department.

In 1954 or 1955, and I don’t remember which it was, I took the Dade
County health unit before the county grand jury for lack of en-
forcement of health laws in the labor camps here. 1 did this with the
cooperation of the sanitarians, and behind the scenes, because what
existed then exists now in the rest of the State with the sanitarians of
the health department; the health law governing the labor camps has
been in effect written by the attorneys of the Growers Assoclation,
with the frustration that you see that Dr. Saslaw has. It can easily
be said that he’s not cleaning up the camps, but he has virtually no
tools with which to do it. )

It’s only been in the 1971 legislature that put a few more teeth in
this, and with this additional legislation, the Dade County Health
Department, as Dr. Saslaw told you, recommended the closing of
three of the major labor camps here. o ) ]

And, as I point out here, it is an ironic thing, one of these things
that happens in the affairs of man, that I am probably the No. 1
person that has in the past 3 years overcome Dr. Saslow’s ef-
forts to close these camps. And, it is kind of a reversal of roles. One
can argue these points, I guess, for the rest of the day, and with hind-
sight you might come up with things, definitely, but I understand, for
example, that Mr. Juarez stated—and if I’'m wrong, please correct me—
but I think he pointed out to your attention that they were expressing
to you a concern about the camps just being summarily closed down.
And, this is the problem in this kind of thing, you're damned if you
do and damned if you don’t. Dr. Saslaw has a responsibility of seeing
that there are reasonably good, sound health conditions in farm labor
camps; he does not have the responsibility, self-appointed or leg-
islated, to see that migrants have housing when they get in here. It
is agencies such as RCMA that are faced with the man and wife and
kids saying, “Where am I going to go ¢ So that, it has been our position
that we had to go over Dr. Saslaw’s head to the State, that since this
new labor camp to which Mr. Eicher referred was definitely proj ected
to be funded and built for the fall of 1971, that we would take the posi-
tlon against the whole health department and insist that the camps

be kept open. So we did, and we succeeded.
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I will point out to you that in here it is pointed out our first ¢
tion with the health depariment on this matter was in 1969, And
when you have the time you can go threugh these in the book and get
the continuity of what the health departiment and those of us that
were concerned with the same problent were doing. But, from the
stancpoint of a roof, we were faced with this problem. So, we con-
tinued this campaign. Now, the legislative delegation, that is the con-
gressional delegation from Florida, Senators Gurney and Chiles, and
Congressman Fascell, who is the Southern District Congreasman,
had all been assured 2 or 3 years ago this money was coming
forth. The plans had been approved. And, nothing happened. And
there came last spring when we had to again reevaluate our position.
And we again were assured by those Congressmen that they in turn
had been assured by the Farmers Home Administration these funds
were forthcoming. And, again Dr. Saslaw recommended the closing of
the camps, and again we opposed it. But, again, with the provision
that that new camp was to come in by June 1, 1973, and they were going
to tear down those camps. Therefore, for 2 years in a row we've
convinced Secretary of Health and Rehabilitative Services in Talla-
hassee that the correct decision was to keep these two camps open.

S0, I just want you to understand the background of this.

And now we have still a situation you can't take this lightly, and I
have specifically included in here articles, and you can multiply this
by the rest of the State, when the Health Authorities burned down the
Krome Avenue camps, this is a fight our side lost, and the health
department won that one when that camp was torn down. And we
maintained that they should leave that for one more season because
the damnable place had been up for 30 years, but the new cou-
struction of these homes, which we’re now talking about in the South
Dade Labor Camp and so on, was coming. And, the people can get in
the following season. So, the articles showing migrants sleeping i the
open and on the ground were as a result of that action where that big
camp was torn down.

I didn’t question who was right or who was wrong. I am just giving
you the facts of what has happened.

And, returning to strictly the health situation, I call your atten-
tion to a very—I think a most exciting use of Federal funds that is
going on under the Community Health, Incorporated, group, which
1s a non-profit corporation designed specifically, and this is my view
of it, to handle or develop new ways of health delivery systems. This
was put to the test very graphically, and the system is not even fully
developed, during this typhoid situation when the Martin Luther
King, Jr., Clinica Campesina in Homestead and the South Dade Com-
munity Health Center in Goulds, which are components of this sys-
tem, were immediately on the scene, which was when this bad situation
was identified. I realize that God had a great deal to do with it, no-
body died, but I think he had substantial help from these units as well
as from the Health Department. And I think great things are coming
from this system, and we are well on the way in Dade County to be
able to deliver a good health service to the people in South Dade
County, which are largely agricultural workers. And I'm talking
about the poor.

And, T must point out to you that the migrants, the poor in general,
and the community as a whole are getting their money’s worth here.
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As this testimony is not to be a pufl’ job, I must point to a serious
error in judgment made, despite caution and blunt warnings from us
of the Redland Christian Migrant Association, when migrant moneys
were pulled away from the Dade Health Department to be given in-
stead to this new health delivery system. )

Funds that paid for 15 public health nurses which had worked
for years in the labor camps were eliminated, and this vital service to
migrants has never been reinstated. The migrant child in Dade has
suffered seriously from this appalling in judgment. ]

I would point out to the subcommuittee that this whole typhoid hor-
ror might have been minimized if the public health nurses had been
daily on the scene at the time. My claim is based upon the fact that not
a single infant or toddler in our day care center who regularly at-
tended were stricken with typhoid. We attribute this to the alertness
of our own staff registered nurse, who had been employed because of
the general deterioration of child health conditions in labor camps
over the past 2 years. .

w@,égm Smmww prior to the first identified case of typhoid, the RCMA
nurse, alarmed over the rising incidence oh&:ﬁiﬁw in the South
Dade Labor Camp, instituted a rigorous sanitation campaign at the
center which disconnected all drinking fountains. required the use of
boiled water only, and had us all washing our hands every time we
turned around. o

Had the Dade health authorities had the environmental health
manpower which the Feds stripped from them, it'is my firm conviction
that the typhoid story could have turned out quite differently.

And, now, because the hospitals here get some Federal funds, I
have included the stories of two children, one in 1970 and one in
1972, where these patients were really moved around and refused
treatment becanse the patients didnt have money for them.

And, again I am not criticizing so much the hospitals, even though
I lash out at them as with the problems of Dr. Saslaw is facing, but
damn it, sir, if we cannot treat kids that are injured and without
moving them from hospital to hospital and without worrying where
the money is coming from, I'm telling you there is something wrong
with our society. This is an outrage. And, T am trying to develop sys-
tems which are well on their way to solving this type of problem in
South Dade. . o

Mr. Lanpcrese. Would the gentleman yield at this point, or let me
interrupt him? )

What is the responsibility of parents for children? I mean, can our
hospitals open their doors to every child under, say, 12 years old
any time he’s ill and give the child free treatment, complete, total
medical care without asking whether or not the patient or wwami has
the earning power? What 1s the parent’s responsibility ? We’ve heard
Mr. Cooper in that chair yesterday show us records of moEmww months
where he had to keep 38 people on a job, and it took 176 people
to do it. Do you deny his records or not ? .

Mr. Rourason. No, sir, Mr. Cooper is an honorable man within his
own strictures. And I don’t doubt his figures. )

Mr. Lanverese. What is the responsibility of my people in In-
diana toward a migrant worker working 3 days in the fields,

with the crops deteriorating in the fields, while the migrant worker

am ann A B4 aa



prefers ti nething else rather than go out in the fields and work?

[ was a laundry worker when our children were born; and we pro-
vided the best medical care then for them, because I thought it was the
responsibility of a parent. How about responsibility for these people?
They are not all helpless. They have work awaiting them, and in many
instances, work they won’t do. So, can you really say to society, build
unlimited hospitals at a fantastic cost for first-class care to these
children when their fathers and mothers in many cases are indifferent
to the needs of their own children?

Mr. RorLason. Well, sir, to respond to that and keep it within a
reasonable time frame, it’s difficult. Let me say a few things in re-
nse Lo you.

I agree. and you were not in at the opening monents when I ex-
plained our position in our organization and our support of the
American system and our way of doing things, but we must realize

that if these people were making enough money—getting away from
Mr. Cooper’s testimony for a minute—1f these people were able to
earn, if society—and 1t’s not all the growers’ fault either—if society
were structured in the manner that these people could get an honest
day’s pay for an honest day’s work, nothing they would like better
than to buy their own home and pay for their own medical care. The
migrant farmworker is really the last stronghold of American ideals
and work ethic in the lower economic level strata remaining. And
we are systematieally destroying that. Mr. Clooper does not employ mi-
grants in the main. His problem is that the seasonal resident farm-
worker is realizing faster and has realized faster than the migrant
farmworker that he is being cheated out of what is rightfully his.
And, this is one segment of it.

And, another segment is the fact that these people have been beaten
down so in their brutal existence that their horizon cannot go beyond
tomorrow. .

Yesterday all of the growers indicated it was their practice to
acquire substantially all of the labor except for perhaps tractor
operators and machine operators through crew leaders. And, yvou
have been around this picture for a long time: is it fair assumption
that a derelict who is recruited and brought into the migrant stream.
1w he likely to be someone traveling with a family? And, if in fact
the migrants who travel with their family, and have their wife and
children along, is he as likely to be dependent on a crew leader for
seeking employment as would a man living alone who for whatever
reasons ig living alone? And, would this possibly cause a man like
Mr. Clooper to have a segment of workers that wasn’t really a rep-
resentative segment of the overall group?

You should be aware that Mr. Cooper is producing corn down here,
and this is the place at which the workers work on a machine. Corn
has a small train type of thing where the machine proceeds down,
and the workers must come behind this and pick to feed that machine.
Now, the growers set the pace at which this machine is going to go.
And. this is a brutal operation. Many workers simply won’t continue
that pace, not because they are lazy, but because it is a brutal pace.
And, as far as the comments made here or that appeared in the press,
becanse T regret very much that T was not here, it is just regrettahle
that this type of picture of average migrants is given, because the
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average migrant is a hard worker and an industrious individual, and
he has ambition, as you saw from Mr. Willlams for his children.
And the families that come down are people who have no intention of
getting welfare, they don’t want any part of it. ) i

But, coming back to this situation here, about paying for hospital-
ization today. It is an impossible situation we've gotten ourselves into
economically. ] . .

But, what I am referring to is, never mind who'’s paying for this.
If a mother is coming in with a lacerated tendon on her child and they
say no, we can’t help you because you have no money, when the child
needs surgery, then I am saying something 1s wrong somewhere.
It in truth our hospital administrators are intimating that you and
me as well, if they have to say where is the money coming from, with
as much progress as we are making in this country, I want to have
you advise or visualize what the farmworker must face in g.m rest
of Florida where the whole establishment in Florida is dominated
by persons that have a personal interest in the profits of agriculture.
And fortunately in Dade County, the power structure is not con-
trolled by such persons. .

Mr. Forp. I note in your prepared statement you were quite gen-
erous in praising all of the interests in Dade County for doing more
in your opinion than any other county in the State.

Mr. RouLason. That’s correct. I think we're doing a tremendous
job in Dade County. But, I'm pointing out we have a long way to
o still. And, I am just proceeding through this with an eye toward
pointing out to you some of these situations in this area.

Mr. Foro. Could I get to some specifics in it with you? ] i

Mr. Rorrason. All right. T would point out to you first, if there 1s
any way for you all to be able to spring loose from the Farmers
Home Administration the money for this new camp, as Mr. Eicher
properly testified about here today, that this would solve, I think, for
the first time this problem in the United States where there would be
adequate camp housing in conjunction with the effort we are making
with other groups for the purchase of homes. And, I think the
agricultural industry is in a position with the Nixon administration.
which talks their language, to force loose this money.

Mr. Forp. Let me tell you realistically that, when I cannot pry loose
a program for middle American ethnic blue collar workers in Mich-
igan with the full pressure of the people behind it because of the
freeze that has been put on funds, there is not really going to be
very much sympathy for your Florida delegation with no more
voting power than the migrant workers. It is awful tough to be at
the bottom, but when even the people who have been treated much more
generously are being frozen out, your hopes are much, much dimmer.
I don’'t know what your hope is going to be. There is a lot of talk n
Washington about an ultimate confrontation, but at the moment,
there is little evidence that the American public really has any con-
ception of the crunch that people all up and down the scale are put
in by just holding back Federal dollars.

Mr. Rorrason. Well, still T feel that the agri-industry has, if it
uses what it has got, is talking the language that you don’t talk to
the Nixon administration from the conservative point of view. I
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Mﬂww MWMM Mﬂ% do it, and T might be wrong, you are more knowledge-
o MM%%M%M%:@w@mﬁo@os of the migrant child. T would point out
mmq.m:mi;‘ gm _331& State Department of Education is making
ES, Jer ; wmm 0 .M :%m ﬁwamﬁﬁ moneys, and I am concerned over the
,ﬂormr :\w;@ %Hmtm.@ MJ 1y getting whisperings from some sections of the
Houth that here Title I money is used, and this is money that comes
In for, and this is based upon the attendance of the migrants, migrant-
w%:::mm ~children, but in some of those school m%mmﬁjmm AS:,
m%wmﬂm;. of WOQ:. moneys appropriated for a school modified or ,@:E-
w\m m: t mww %m;\ﬁ. ratio to the Federal money coming in on top.
axm,::‘:mmmw.. es; that is in your statement. I marked some parts as I
First, T helped put in the E nts / i
a speeific m:,o?wﬁ:ﬁﬂ_i Emmgsw.m@:mi;@ el Secondury Act in 1967
Mr. RoLuason. Yes: I know you did.
qmwmﬂzwﬂmw%ma%ﬁ %%w# really have in mind current conditions, but our
mwow_ le sta drafted that language so that earlier this year when they
. Ww d the extra 10 per cent out of it, they wrote it in a way that
ﬁ.:.,om,w w %NSOES\‘. It has a priority over other kinds of Title
f e ;,,m._.?:.awn __m m.rmo:%m:\ no question about .m.:m legislation saying
m::m:wm:?é violation of the law to do what is suggested in your
:m‘ww _mcm %«M@mﬁmﬂmmwf Id like to ask you to pursue the resources you
jave 1o g me & specific instance. Find me a place where this is
:ME#.::E, and I guarantee you that will be checked out very quickly
?.oqw.‘w_mﬁ:ﬁo %ﬁm%. mo you that the director of the migrant education
P mwswm mmﬁ oJ a _S.m been cooperating with our committee. There
s some ,HWM:& iere from the (GFAO point of view that was dis-
covered. T ﬁmm %mm a person yesterday that pledged a substantial
pmount of s pplemental material which T have been glancing at
::yy. ~5m~.:_:.m. I have the feeling if we can put a specific oxmmaozﬁ
Zwﬁ re. wmn 1f these Umm_u? are ready and willing, we should be able
fo sea that this doesn’t continue. Secondly, you mentioned in your
.,fﬁ_,ﬁ__:.mi the new HEW proposed rules on day care m\mﬁim%w\ %
w: moﬂw@.m?vi Eo%y‘rdg fainilies on welfare. This has started
N MM Nww.oydz in Congress to the point where everybody from
124.5,—%?_i.vo , mm:A ountry is interested. There are fascinating things
o, wﬁ::ﬂ. ' ut t wo number of women who are heads of :o:mmro_&.umq
fun Wr uations that will automatically become welfare cases in our
mdustrial centers, particularly if the provisions that you are talki
u,:ow:,m:y implemented, Y e
::”w mm ﬁm%mww;mmmﬁwm A serves 1 ww children, and you're talking about
these are from si?.Me .W\Mw_immm:mm for working parents. Only 8 of
M\\W M«Fr.»m:z. Yes, sir. ‘
Mr. Forp. What happens t. > capacity [
hold if you do in fact :W‘M:m”w Mmgfﬂm%mwmﬂwo:« of the head of the house-
n A 1 v
o:wﬁm:mm.m;%f_:?M: tell you very few of those mothers will go
on welf ,&&?% :ﬁmg_ﬁw%mm*wwﬂsomwﬂ is :::_mﬁmwm:% opposed to any
| velfare. at 1s going to happen to these toddler f
Murﬁ mamwwoom ESWB out of, that is _nvm.m%mm.. The mothers %ﬂ mmowmwﬂw
,ommmz w Hm elds, because their marginal existence is only
p @ by whoever can work. We are going to have these children
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reinfected with insect bites, and scratches and skin rashes which I
maintain, although others dispute it, that they come from their play-
ing around the edge of the fields, and these high-potency insecticides
that these kids brush up against cause this.

It is really going to be a tragic return to a situation of physical
torment for these children.

Mr. Foro. It was pointed out yesterday that in a typical situation
where no day care was available teenagers who were not quite big
enough to be a real productive worker in the fields, but big enough
to keep track of small children, would be held out of school to become
babysitters out of necessity. )

Mr. Rorason. Oh, yes, and I repeat, you are given the impression
these would be only youngsters at the age of maturity, and that isn’t
true, because I know of 6- and 7-year-old babysitters. And we are
consequently alert to this type of thing. And now we have passed
this stage, and the parent understands what the day care center
is, and its value, and the like.

Mr. Forn. Let’s talk a little bit now about what you’re deing. You
make mention of the companionate proposed stricture that would
prevent the use of local private moneys as the required 25 percent
local share. In the case of our day care program, this would bar
our current support from the United Fund and wipe out virtually
all the migrant child centers here in Dade County.

Mr. Rorrason. That’s right.

Mr. Forp. Are you telling us that the rules would prevent the use
of the money that people in Dade County have given? I assume

it’s like Michigan, an annual fund drive where wor king people give
a day’s work or a day’s pay as a goal, and businessmen contribute ete.,
but the money cannot be used ? .

Mr. Rowrason. Under the proposed regulations, that 1s correct,
sir.
We have been called to Jacksonville, which has the Office of the
Division of Family Services, and there was a 2-day meeting, and
the fact is that the present administration is proposing the elimina-
tion of private moneys for this. And I just don’t understand it.

Mr. Lemman. To me it looks as though the legislation is not only
against commonsense, but against Christian charity. .

"Mr. Rorrason. Whatever 1t is, I just don’t comprehend. And I think
this, as far as migrants are concerned, I think this means that the
entire attitude regarding migrant programs from others in the urban
community have not been taken into account at all.

Mr. Lanpcrese. You have 182 children in this Head Start program.
What does it cost per year for these students?

Mr. RorLason. Our cost, sir, and this is not for Head Start, this
is the day care center, we have our registered nurse, and do have a
Director of Education. And we are doing some very advanced, In-
novative work with these yougsters through the local Mailmen Child
Development Center. But, to answer your question, our cost, our
annual cost per child is, in the labor camps, is right as $1100.

Mr. LanpereBe. What is this Christian in Redland Christian
Migrant Association standing for? Does this have a real significance ?
Are you yourself a strong proponent of the Christian involvement,
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v of a particular chureh group or sect? Or is

‘ : r, I'd like to feel that we are attempeing to prac-
tice and live Christlanity, I am an Episcopalian, A layman. Our
board consists of laymen and members of the cloth from the Catho-
lic Church through to the Seventh Day Adventists, and no indica-
tion of anything other than the fact we run the spectrum.

The heart of the daycare program is the annual assignment by the
Mennonite Church, the volunteers from their youngsters and late
teens and early twenties.

Mr. Lanverepe. Is there any religious training involved in this
program whatsoever ¢ R

Mr. Rovpason. No, sir, we say grace. Children say grace at the
meals.

~ Mr. Lanperese. Do they say grace and pray to God, pray to the
Lord, or just bow their head ¢

Mr. Rovnason. Well, they say grace.

Mr. Lanperese. They are taught to actually speak a prayer to the
Almighty ?

Mr. Rovrasow. Yes, sir.
 Mr. La~oerese. Well, that is some improvement. I visited one Head
Start class where they had to remove all symbols of the Supreme
Being. It was absolutely forbidden in Indiana in the Head Start
program to have any religion except to bow their heads. And they
can do that for any reason. If youre this charitable in your heart,
;,::4 you believe that you could convince other Christian laymen,
Episcopalian and Catholic and Mennonite, to see how to set up and
operate with voluntary workers a program that would be about as
effective for about a fourth of this amount of money ?

Mr. Rowvasen. No, sir.

Mr. LanpererE. And?

Mr. Rorrason. And, I don’t think we should.

Mr. Laxperese. What does it cost for a high school student or an
elementary school student for a year of schooling in this particular
part of the country ? ‘

Mr. RoLoason. I'm afraid T don’t know. I should know, but I can’t
AHswWer.

Mr. Laxporesr. Tt isaround $700.

_ Mr. Forp. The national average is $900. In Dade County, T expect
1t1s pretty close to $1.200. Cloncerning Head Start, I've held hearings
on this in Dade County, and it was so successful that it forced
Dade County to provide free kindergarten for everybody. I think it
was In 1972 in this modern county, but the cost of the Head Start pro-
gram does get up to $1,800.

Mr. Lanperese. If this program is so beneficial, and T am not re-
marking about the price, but why can’t you go to Dade County and
convince them to take a small portion of the $914 million of revenue
sent to this county, and the $50 million or so to the State [with
much more to come] and provide some of the money for these Head
Start programs? I agree it is the people of the local level who know
what the needs are.

And,one final comment, if we struggle to get you money for seasonal
migrant workers’ quarters, is there any way you can assure us of
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people not climbing the water towers to do these things and of people
not just tearing the thing down? The destruction 1s so rampant in
these present facilities. How do we cope with that? Do we tear them
down and rebuild them, or should we do something else? o

Mr. Rorrason. If I can address you first on this, I think it 1s a
gross error on the part of the dominant group of society to feel we
know best how to do things because we are on the top of the heap.
And we got away from beginning with the well-meaning church
volunteers to run the program. We now have at the head of each of
our centers a lady from out of the migrant community. And most all
of our staff is from the migrant community. Our centers are now an
understanding place.

We are able to transmit through the Director, not through me or
some other person out of the middle-class community, the understand-
ing of what the value and the need for daily attendance for school is.
People who have been denied an education do not understand the
continuity necessary for education. And, this is the only way that we
are going to get people who are willing to get off their duff and work
and try desperately to get them prepared in time to meet the onrush of
mechanization. Because, if there are approximately 200,000 migrants
in the United States, my fear for people that I love dearly is that they
can be engulfed into a multiplicity of ghettoes and will get lost. And,
then it won’t make a ripple. But, we’ll have destroyed a beautiful
group of people. And I feel in our little corner of Christianity and our
little corner of secular society in these day centers we are giving a way
ont which we couldn’t do if we had white middle-class volunteers doing
it. So, that would remain the same.

Now, whatever the psychiatric problem of that individual is who
climbed that tower, I have no idea, but to dwell upon this as an example
of the fine people whose representatives you’ve had here, it just shows
a complete lack of understanding of what we are facing.

Mr. La~xvoreBe. I think only as rebuttal, and to be as kind as pos-
sible, those who have some various attitudes and outlooks on things
can emphasize one part of the picture or the other side of the picture.
I think that can be helpful. And, I did emphasize one side inten-
tionally here because I think it is a very serious matter. .

Mr. Forp. Would you send to us, because this question is active, this
question of continuance of the day care centers? We feel there is a
firm commitment here. This committee wrote the early Childhood
Development Act last year which would have been the biggest piece
of legislation getting to actual creation of day care centers that were
something besides babysitting warehouses. We tried to extend it to the
middle-class and enlarge our constituency. Congress passed it, but it
was vetoed.

One of the President’s reasons for vetoing it was that the title IV
money in the Social Security Act was already providing this service
and it was a duplication. So we feel Mr. Weinberger is not keeping
Mr. Nixon'’s promises. This is the feeling across the country and all
over the political spectrum. A nwnber of people agreed with the
President and felt the more economical thing was to continue with
these title TV programs. If you are able to, you've got the capacity
for illustrating what you're doing with this program, and what you
think the rules should be. Within the next week or so I'm going to
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sit. down with Representative Martha Grifliths of Michigan, who
serves on the Ways and Means Committee, and discuss this with her.
his 1s a much better example, because we have a problem here where
the alternative is not that these people go out on welfare, the alterna-
tive is greater suffering hy the children. There are many people who
won’t use welfare as a way out. .

And you feel that the singlemost important thing we might do in
another area here would be to have rigorous crew chief regulations
rigorously enforced. According to this, rigorous crew chief registra-
tion is an absolute requisite to control these people. I hadn’t realized
until I read your statement how recent the crew leader registration
law was in Florida. You have here a statement that, of ﬁ;moo crew
chiefs in the State, only 37 of them are registered. Of course, we are
concerned because we have a Federal law, and it doesn’t seem that
anybody is paying attention to enforcing that.

Have you seen anybody from the Federal Government in this area
M_d.fwm to do anything about enforcing the crew leader registration
awf

Mr. Rorrason. No, sir, I haven't.

I would point out to you that you should, and T know you are. but
you also be concerned that the 100 percent Federally funded farm
labor officers of Florida who’s charged with the enforcement of the
statute is unquestionably deliberately refusing to do this enforcement.

.w/oé, they have a list of approximately 1,100 of the stated 1,800 crew
chiefs and know who these men are. And, I strongly request ‘that this
hody subpena. if that is the word, this list. Also to get the testimony
that was given by the State Farm Labor Office people before the joint
legislative commission on migrant labor of the State 2 weeks ago
i which these men were hoxed into a position by a series of state-
ments to the State that they had only handled in a year’s time 37 crew
chiefs, and their whole budget is predicated on the fact thev are be-
coming a liaison between the crew chiefs and the agriculture industry.
And, of course, somebody wasn't telling the truth here. But, the point
is that they are handling these people and they are opposed mo this, be-
ause really it isn’t even true to say that the growers are opposed to the
Crew Chief Registration Act. Most of the growers here in Dade
ﬁoz:@ are for it. And, many in the State are for it. But, what we have
here in Dade County, for example, if you don’t have real enforce-
ment, the growers who do see the benefit from it, they will drive away
the sources of labor for themselves. And, if the crew chiefs don’t want
to be registered for whatever reasons there are, we’ll take workers to
a grower that isn’t complying.

So, because of this situation, I'm telling you in my view that they
legislatively should prevent any program for migrants being chan-
neled and handled by the State farm labor offices. They are an arm
of the agriculture industry which is great, and the growers need help.
That’s fine, but don’t any of yoi have any idea there is any impartial
treatment. going down from them. If a grower requests 80 workers
ont of the work stream, they’ll discourage farmworkers from getting
out of the stream. And, workers come into the farm labor office and
mistakingly feel they are hearing about some kind of job, which
doesn’t exist, and they prevent farmworkers from getting into any
other kind of employment. And this is one of the most disgraceful
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uses of Federal funds, would be channeling any of the education pro-
grams into the hands of the farm labor offices. And I think if you
all could get your teeth into this situation, I could send you two vol-
umes of what happened to this program and documents that the farm
labor office lied to the farmworkers about this program, and made
promises to them, and then failed to keep them. It is a_disgraceful
situation.

Mr. Forp. At the bottom of page 18 yousay:

1 respectfully entreat this subcommittee to light whatever fires are needed
under whosoever tails are exposed in order to get the farm workers the pro-
tections they are entitled to.

Now, after all this hearing, I finally come to an area directly under
the tail of the Secretary of Labor who is supposed to be a friend of
labor. It seems anomalous to me that the legitimate crew leaders
wouldn’t be trying to protect farm workers against these people who
are giving them a bad name. I am interested that you don’t suggest
the abolition of crew leaders. But really the regulations here are to
protect the legitimate operators, and in turn to protect the people who
are involved on both sides of the labor-management relationship. So
I think that is a constructive way we can do something rather quickly.

Mr. Rorrason. Mr. Ford, I assume you are aware that the nation-
wide chain of farm labor offices is a tail wagging the dog situation.
That they have the most powerful lobby. And, I'm sure you must have
encountered this thing, and the Labor Department people will tell me
confidentially that there isn’t much they can do because somebody
lowers the boom somewhere up the line because these fellows—

Mr. Forp. Excuse me. If there is anyone from the Labor Depart-
ment who is not performing his job properly, we'd like to know about
it, because ultimately he will have to answer to the Congress.

Mr. Rorason. I am telling you something that is a pragmatic fact.
And, God be with you if you can break this up. But, I am pleading
with you, when you enact legislation, you specifically channel or ex-
plain how to exclude the farm labor offices in the handling of any of
these programs intended to be beneficial to any of the farmworkers.
Because, they will not consider the farmworkers first. They will
consider the agri-industry. And, I don’t blame them. I don’t fault
them. I have too many friends here, and growers who are friends,
and I know these men have a job to do. And, they are fine men. But,
you cannot give these people mechanisms making it possible to sud-
denly lose the jobs of 60 percent of these men and women working on
the farm. And, nobody cares what happens. .

All right. They say, now, we don’t need them. But, I’m telling
you that we have growers here sitting down and discussing things
with us—and they have been maligned by this type of hearing,
but we do have in the county sitting down on the Dade County Agri-
cultural Council and various other groups, so there are many growers
who are really concerned about this thing and about these people as
human beings. But, they are also aware, and Bill Cornelius, who's the
most concerned grower we probably have had in the vegetable market-
ing field—he went bankrupt because he tried to do for his workers
what the industry didn’t do—and there he went.

Mr. Lanocrese. I would like to quote from this beautiful booklet
here. And, it states here that this gentleman, Wendall Rollason, 18
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executive director of the Redlands Christian Migrant Association,
and that he’ll be assistant director of Operation Mainstream, the
program which will provide jobs for 500 migrants, according to
@&:3% Manager Ray Goode. ,

I'he men will begin recruiting migrants to fill the jobs Monday
morning at the U.S. Labor Department’s Perrine Farm Labor Office.

Under a Federal grant approved by the U.S. Labor Department,
450 of the migrant jobs will be paid $1.60 an hour. An additional 50
migrants, hired as supervisors, will receive $2 an hour.

Now, I sure as the devil would hate to own a farm in this commu-
nity and have crops ready to pick and have to be competing with
you in your recruitment program. This makes it very difficult.

Mr. Rovvason. Sir, this is for the burnt-up crops from the phrase.
And, zzm)a for people who are hungry. And, the people didn’t want
welfare. So we got a job situation where they could go out and earn
mﬂmﬂmwa pay. It was at public expense, but they weren't sitting on their

itts.

Mr. La~npcrese. Is this program necessary now ¢

Mr. Ronrason. Noj; this was back in 1971 with a freeze. And, there
were 1o Jobs for anybody then. J
. Mr. LanpereBe. And, you went out recruiting? You began recruit-
ing migrants? °

Mr. RoLrason. Yes, sir.

Mr. Lavoerese. What did that mean, that you went to the camps
and you knocked at each door, or what? )

Mr. Rovuason. Well, whenever you had a mass situation like this
whers there were some 4,000 workers probably at that time that were
completely without work, and maybe more, you recruit by a process of
gotting heads of households, and passing over the single man—re-
member, you've got 500 slots for 4,000 workers, and you have to select
them. Maybe the word that we want is select, and that would be
better than recruit.

Mr. Lanpoorese. Do you have any records on their attendance on
those jobs? Were they 5 days a week, and did they take these jobs
and keep them? And, did they do satisfactory work? Is there a report
at all about the results of this program ?

Mr. RorrasoNn. Yes, sir, T believe you’ll find them here.

Emmﬁ ﬁ&Z%mwmwm. I Soz#%mmq%ow Jo put it in the record, but if you
ver want to send me a note be ha .
Mr. Rovrason. All right. , PPy to hear from you.

I . : - .
‘:n you will turn the page, now we're talking about Tony Hernan-
dez. Thissays:

m.uw)vm, ::w, 43@# day as imm new Director of Operation Mainstream, Tony Hernan-

7 tired two area coordinators and one foreman for s ing i i

e red oo howing up late with liquor
¥ must be able to depend on them because I can’t b

i . : m m ,

25-year-old Director said. very place at once, the

T will give them one chance, and unless it is an emergency, they will be replaced.

. ',\w.:m, this is the type of people we’re talking about. And, they dis-
w%::m themselves, And, this is a thing where the benefits coming
to the public from these $1.60 an hour jobs were manifest. I know
for example. that in Florida City where Mr. Adams is the city man-
ager, he got one of these crews and took them out to an area they
had to develop a park in. And he said, “Look, fellows, T want all this
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cleared off.” So he went to get a camera so he could come back and
take some pictures of before and whatever happened to the place after
it was cleared. And he was never able to get the before picture. This
is the kind of workers that migrant workers are. They had it done
when he got back.

I can cite this again and again. Over at Crandon Park, the big
park at the beach, they had to insist they take a rest break. These men
and women were over there cleaning the place up and cutting down
branches and undergrowth and all that. They were used to working
all day. So, what are you talking about, a break? They weren’t used
toithat. They did a fantastic job, sir. A fantastic job.

Mr. Forp. I want to thank you. I wish we could spend more time on
this, but we have time problems creeping up on us. I’d like to maintain
contact with you. I think your prepared statement is one of the finest
I have seen in showing an understanding of the whole broad spectrum
of problems we’re trying to get to understand.

Even when we are being devil’s advocates, we are trying to learn
from people like yourself.

Mr. Rorrason. Thank you for your courtesy for listening to me.

Mr. Forp. Next we have Rev. August Vandenboache, who is director
of the Florida Christian Migrant Ministry.

[ At this time a brief recess was taken before hearing Reverend Van-
denboache’s presentation. ]

Mr. Forp, I believe we're ready, sir.

Reverened VANDENBOACHE. My name is August Vandenboache.

Mr. Forp. Without objection, this statement rendered to the com-
mittee by Reverend Vandenboache will be entered into the record.
And, you can add to it any way you see fit, sir.

[Information referred to follows:]

STATEMENT BY THE Rev. AvcusT H. VANDENBOACHE, DIRECTOR FLORIDA
CHRISTIAN MIGRANT MINISTRY, MIAMI, F'LORIDA

Mr. CHATRMAN. I welcome this opportunity and privilege to make this state-
ment to you with regards to the agricultural workers in Florida.

The Florida Christian Migrant Ministry is a church-related association which
has worked lon behalf of farm workers in Florida for over thirty-four years. I
have served as its director since September, 1968. We operate on a modest
budget of just over $50,000 annually. All of these funds are received from
churches and church-related organizations from within the State of Florida.

The Florida Christian Migrant Ministry seeks to focus its objectives and
to develop a program which will have the greatest impact in the support of
farm workers as they seek to find alleviation from those conditions which have
so dramatically limited them from participation in the “abundant life” which
all children of God must possess if any of us are to reside meaningfully in the
brotherhood of man.

In my testimony I would call each member of the committee to a full commit-
ment to justice and humanity as you go about your tagk in these hearings. I
believe, that in this way you will be led to a richer understanding of the need
to include all people in the democratic process.

There have been many news stories come out of this South Florida region in
the past few months which reveal the deplorable conditions under which farm
workers work and live. You must be aware that you have only heard of a very
small portion of the degradation of human beings which exists throughout this
state. Hidden are the camps and fields which have virtually locked-in all farm
workers in this state into a cycle of life and work from which it becomes nearly
impossible to escape or to see hope in a changing farm worker world.

For many years hopes were raised that a new life was in store for agri-
cultural workers through enlightened legislation and publicly funded programs.
The sad fact became apparent early that such legislation and programs were a
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cruel hoax. There was either no will to enforce laws or there was a deliberate
and cynical attempt to deny anything like meaningful enforcement. In the
publicly funded programs most of the meaningful components were dropped or
it became politically impossible to effectively pursue such programs.

Housing, sanitation, health, the safe use of pesticides, education, work safety,
wages, workmen's compensation, unemployment compensation, legal protection,
and citizenship—all are systematically denied to farm workers as a matter of
daily life. The entire picture is one of a complete insensitivity to the needs
of farm workers as human beings. And too often this insensitivity bears un-
mistakable evidence of blatant racism. The results add up to a national seandal
in a country that is so wealthy in natural resources-—a country which has made

50 many sounds that we have as a national goal the recognition of the humanity
of man and “liberty and justice for all.”

I would like to point to some of the elements which I feel are important if this
sub-committee is to recognize the basic needs and then would seek to utilize
options in suggesting solutions.

The most significant element missing in the stories which have originated in
South Florida—typhoid epidemic—alleged slavery in camps—unfair methods of
collecting debts—ete, and ete.—is the failure to mention the agri-business inter-
ests as being the primary party of responsibility to the continuation of the farm
worker in the life of inhuman existence,

Too many persons and groups retain a mythological view of agriculture which
was created in an earlier era which says that agriculture is based on the small
family farm and carries with it all that is virtuous and good in the American
dream. Florida has seen a virtnal revolution in the development of food-
factories to produce the fruits and vegetables which make up such a substantial
portion of Florida’s economic picture. Gigantie corporations, often multi-national
and conglomerate in nature, planning by computer and involved in the products
they grow all the way from the field to the retail outlet. Most frequently these
corporations are not only holding their land for agricultural production but are
involved in an even more profitable pursuit in land speculation. These COrpora-
tions use a favorable tax position to hold their lands, they depend upon the
publicly financed land grant university and on a plethora of governmental agen-
cies for their research, they utilitze the U.S.. Army Corps of Hngineers to
guarantee an adequate water supply in times of drought and drainage in times
of flood. And yet, with this tremendous revolution into gigantie industry they
utilize and exploit labor as the working man was used in days long past in all
other industries.

Coupled with this tremendous empowerment of big agribusiness has been the
increased utilization of the crew leader or labor contractor system as the
employer of record—the procurer of “‘hands” for agrienlture. Utilizing this
system the grower seems to have divested himself of any sense of responsibility
for the most important link in his chain of economic endeavor—the workers
in the fields. And with this divestment of responsibility he has become almost
completely insensitive to the basic needs of the farm worker.

One of the difficulties of dealing with this drastic change in the picture of
agriculture has been the squeeze in which the small and medium-gized grower
has found himself. All too often, caught in such a bind and unable to deal
efficiently and effectively with the rapid growth and competition with the large
corporation, the small grower becomes the most difficult political deterrent to
making effective and enforceable legislation possible,

The Florida Christian Migrant Ministry has discovered a ray of hope for
farm workers in Florida. After long years of deep study of the methods, goals
and hopes of the United Farm Workers, we find that this association of farm
workers is the most relevant and viable hope for the farm workers themselves.
Farm workers are deeply impressed with this union’s dedication to non-violence
as n commitment to life and its interest in all of the needs they have. This
stance in a day of world-wide violence must surely he understood by all
humanitarians.

We wonld urge the sub-committee to look deeply into the conditions of farm
workers in Florida. We seek your help in seeing that the laws which would
protect farm workers are strictly and effectively enforced. We hope that you
would look long and hard at any legislation which might be proposed which
would further impede the rights of farm workers to organize so that they might
come to the table with agribusiness in effective contract negotiation.
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i b-committee to weigh the facts
conclusion, we seek each member of the su weig] e fa
woﬁ:&mooéu in the light of morality and ethics. Moﬁ must mwmmwmn pwﬁcwﬂ.wwm
to an end the racist exploitation of mmwn.w 88.w.ma.m in a day when enoug
are known to reach enlightened and objective decisions.

STATEMENT OF REV. AUGUST VANDENBOACHE, EXECUTIVE DI-
RECTOR, FLORIDA CHRISTIAN MIGRANT MINISTRY

Reverend VanpenpoacHE. I won’t then go over the mwmﬁwﬁm%ﬂ.%@m
self except in maybe one or two situations. Except to say ﬁn in M w mw.-
extremely important for every member of this ooBBH.gwwm ou er-
stand the nature of the Federal responsibility because of t .Hm%mommw ns
and the legislation that exists, the overwhelming responsibiil ﬂ i wm e
is for Federal oversight to the enforcement of legislation whic
passed, and to exercise their responsibility to these Eo,mamwgm. ¢ of real

We went through a period as T refer to in my sta Em:_u e
hope. And, I think it was very unfortunate that hope M@w ﬁ_:zm qu“
that enlightened legislation and programs would solve the wwmo ems
of farm workers. And, this just has not been the case. Time a mHH. w.HB
the programs which were federally funded, which I wwm some re. ﬁ%ﬁ
ship with in terms of acquaintance and study, had to How oo&woﬂgw-
of it, which meant they lost a real opportunity to nw hange sitna
tions and conditions for farmworkers. This was usually something
that came about at the time of refunding each program. The commun-
ity organizations and the community organization oogﬁobgﬂmﬁumwm
just dropped. It became less and less effective, these HUH..omH.MW 5
terms of changing things. And, this is true of the legal mo&ﬂo%m@ m& -

This is to the detriment, I think, of our whole oversight o ; mm era
responsibility in our Federal system to see effectively g% Sr%,m mmmwwﬁ
workers being helped housing and sanitation and healt %E m v
use of pesticides. Education in work safety, wages anc ﬁén%, EMBQ
compensation and unemployment compensation, legal pro ec S% mﬁmb
citizenship—these are all denied to farmworkers. And, we've got ten

rather subtle in our ability in racism in our society. It comes EW\H .
down to economics. It is a national scandal. The Florida Qﬁﬁﬁ.ﬂb M-
grant Organization has one goal, which is to see if it can wwoww. e Em.-
pact so the farmworkers have a sense of justice and can @mw EHwW M
in American democracy as full Americans and have a voice by whic
they most effectively can do that.

And, Thave made one statement here: L

ori isti igrant Ministry has discovered a ray of hope for tarm-
EAM.WMHM HWE%HWMWMWM%MM%MMﬂg% of mmwu study of the methods, _momSm. mm_m wm_upwﬁmmﬁ
of the Tnited Parm W orkers, e Bn e et Tomselves. Farmorkers are
MMW%W:MEMMWMMMGW:WOWMm».ﬂ.aﬁom,m wwwpwommou to non-violence as a ﬁoBEWﬁMumwM
to life and in its interest in all of the needs they have. HEm. mﬁzom in a day
world-wide violence must surely be understood by all humanitarians.

And, T make a personal plea, because I personally r@ﬁw @Hgmﬁﬁﬁﬁmm
relate to a program emanating from the Judeo-Christian M@m itio asmm
doctrine and has a sense of need—a sense of charity 1s neede lm mm%m
of empowerment of people in a world where empowerment ma mw the
decisions. And, I hope that all of the conditions %.ﬁ. %éz_mmm. w.b he
solutions you recommend are answered and dealt with in the nature

morality and ethics.



I :4_:‘.:,” you must realize that you have an extremely im ortant re
sponsibility to bring about or to participate where you amﬂ to bri o
about the end of what I conceive, and T believe I can mooz_dmsﬁ w:.u
well, the exploitation of the farmworkers. And, I have a few m%mmw\. M%
tions to make, and three requests to make of this committee. One mmﬁ ,
overview and evaluation of what goes on here. . @:

Now, one gets the opinion that all the farmworkers are in farm labor
‘amps or in migrant labor camps. And, this is not true of Florida. The
majority of farmworkers are in the communities. And, the document,
tion of racism in farmworkers that T can give you is nruﬁ Ewmn o.ogm..-
munities of Florida still call the communities where W@H.Béoaw@wm :M\M
as the quarters. This tells you something about what the concepts ar
of M.:‘_.,:._ workers and about the communities in which they ;5. P M
- hwﬁﬁmwﬁzmﬁm _m %_.% case, and [ _:Zd,rﬁ_ﬁi you deal so much with
pumps. m » .@anm::m@rﬁ youdon’t further deal with the camps,

Wone of the areas in which this community could significantly d
something is to monitor these ¢ i as o) {ddle of
somet ‘ amps. And, as one goes up the middle of
‘his State from Dade County on north and picks out those counties
mi:.or are heavily agricultural counties or individual cities that are

asically farm cities, we need a very honest appraisal of how revenue
sharing is being done throughout that area. It is going to be extremel
mﬁmi:w m,o have standards for farmworkers, and when we speak mwo%m
‘ ﬂ_z W:}mmm wo%..:m:m.m)ogmgu funds, there are farmworkers in the

mmunity who are still in a backward relationship to the rest of the
community. In other words, these farmworkers can only be described
as ‘_;B:h N a situation which is something other than that which one
expeets to find in the United States. It is a colonial system bhut within
the system itself. It’s something which any honest person t deal
with, and revenue sharing will b 1in Hunitios becans
OF the Pl e ing e used in those communities because
e ?,mm_nm_mm MMMJ _m. ructure for many things not related to farm-
. .,ym a :wx:me of fact, in earlier days, and I presume there is still some
:T,__%M mmw_ﬁ Mvauwwm m.«;ﬂo:w problems in some of those counties in
eoti A.ﬁE:::im?m. elve funds because of the migrant population in
5 .,w‘___d uwv fw__“wz.z .;._.2” he some method of checking that, checking how

wenue sharing is being utilized i i iti
e sharing s ‘.%M‘Wﬁ%wﬂ.__\ka in those incorporated communities
Ewauld tell yvon that T have a group of names T would like to give to
VO .,:& f would suggest that these are crew leaders that reside in
Diade Connty. And, T hope that these are ones that T believe are not
aw@m“.‘S.mg:uﬂrf.m are their names and addresses for most oW:ES
There are seven or eight that T don’t have addresses for. And I wish vou
would take the specific names and the specified addresses and see if
indeed these crew chiefs are registered either under the Federal or th
State laws. B voree

And. another thing that T would like to request is, and this may have
been already done and T may have missed it—I would like to ﬁ.mnsﬁmmn
@_i the engineering department of the health department of Ummm
County report on the labor camp typhoid fever outbreak, that it he
mvesticated fully as part of the committee’s hearings. ?Hmz T ask if
this has been already done? Tf vou have it, T wonld ask that yvou enter
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such a report of this as part of the information you received from this
hearing.

And T'd like to point out simply because so much is said concerning
the well in the South Dade Labor Camp on page 14, at the beginning
of page 14, and page 15, and I wish I had a whole chronological order
to give you some of the things that happened—but chronologically, 1
think it is important that on March 12 they discovered the depth of
this well. And part of Mr. Pfeiffer’s report is the report of Howard
Massey, the plumbing inspector. T would like to bring to your attention
the remark in that report on page 3. This is back at the end of his
report.

Some of my observations were as follows:

In the community bath raw sewage was flowing on floors through floor

drains;

Two toilets had been removed and not sealed;

One urinal had been removed, opening not sealed; R

Water heater relief valve did not meet code specifications;

Relief lines not extended to outside as per S.F.B.C.;

Gray cement laundry trays being used as kitchen sinks (violating S.E.B.C.);

Cleanouts missing or broken, allowing sewage to flow upon ground when
stoppages oceur ;

Backflow valves on floor drains and garbage pits missing, allowing sewage
to flow into pits and therefore upon ground;

600-gallon grease trap for old Army mess hall (not abandoned) still con-
nected to existing sewers, thereby collecting and retaining sewage, possibly
leaking into ground; '

Other defects and possible cross-connections exist.

1 wrote violation (copy attached) and gave to manager (Mr. Dean Nulen
(sic)). Then I returned to the field to check twelve units being remodeled on this
site. I could not find whether a permit was issued or whether one is required
for this type Government housing. Plumbing installation violates geveral sec-
tions of §.F.B.C. There was no evidence that this work had ever been inspected.

I returned to check manholes east of well with Mr. Schang, with the follow-
ing findings:

One manhole constructed beneath porch of child care center;

All manholes on east side filled to grade level with sewage, causing all con-
necting sanitary lines to retain a full capacity of backup sewage:

It appears the sewage-collecting system from the last manhole S.F. corner to
lift station is partially stopped or incorrectly installed, causing the sewage sys-
tem to back up.

It is my belief that the high level of sewage retained in the sewage-collecting
system east of the well site and the deteriorating condition of the sanitary lines
is causing a considerable amount of raw sewage to seep into the ground, thereby
causing contamination of the well.

I bring this to your attention because this camp has been variously
described as the best, or nearly the best camp in the State.

And I think it is extremely important that everyone understand that
there have been many laws 1n the State of Florida which would cover
many of the conditions which exist, and they aren’t fully, or because of
apathy on the part of our system, have not been enforced.

Now, those are all of the things I have to suggest or request.

Mr. Foro, Thank you very much. This is to go in,too?

Reverend VANDENBOACHE. Y es, please. )

Mr. Forp. Without objection, the report by Kenneth Pfeiffer of the
Dade County Health Department concerning the South Dade Labor
Camp typhoid fever outbreak, will be entered at this point into the
record.

[Information referred to follows:]
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T :::.:_.4 w :r.w. the author was requested by Mr. John D Eckhoff, As
. i_‘_:,mwiﬂm:w%:_ﬁ: Health., to accompany Mr. Norman wo_mm_.omq.
, , » Rout ade Labor Camp for the ’ o of i . .
: A, 1 ot . A purpose of i i
¢ :ﬁﬁu%f@? ﬂd_gwﬂ_w%m,.?::. ﬁ:,w request. was made :mam:_mm of a c%mwwwmﬁ%mm%wm
npeet :r_;u:. § m,“ﬁ%_wx ?.:E the camp’s water supply system. Ori:m the
nec plant discrepancies were noted. It was after this Eémn:‘o:‘
o ! .”w_::ﬂ_@w. writt to Mr. Eckhoff by the author outlining cer
¢ : additions that should b p ' g g .
::,,,:u“ . et s followe 4 ld be made to the water system. The
An inspection was made of the subject by Mr. Norm ‘Sokoloff of your section

::; ‘E:F‘:‘:_‘HZ:L. e, i
. abov ate. C ions e S q
A, . e date. Conditions were such as to require the

,;:C:?::m:am:,ﬁiﬁ‘m?w. . .
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“(2) Flush ‘the distribution s
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mtil .f:n: :Em as a chlorine residual is obtained Humioamn fl aMﬁEzm .nm;m
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agreed with our records. The plans showed an eight (8) inch well on the
north side of the plant, a six (6) inch well on the east (both approximately
four (4) feet from the building) and the distribution main on the south side.
In reality the eight (8) inch well was on the south, the six (6) inch on the east
and the distribution main on the north. The data sheets indicated the wells
to be fifty (50) feet deep with thirty-eight feet of casing. Standby
power in the form of a gas driven engine connected to the 350 gpm pump was
available. It was determined that the 150 gpm pump was the main source of
water supply to the camp with the 350 gpm pump acting as standby.

Chlorination equipment consisted of an advance gas chlorinator (0-100 1b
capacity) located on a 150 pound gas cylinder. One additional cylinder was
provided in the chlorine room. The water plant funections merely as a chlorina-
tion facility as the chemical quality of the water meets drinking water
standards. Once the water is chlorinated it flows directly to the distribution
system. However, a 50,000 gallon elevated storage is located in the southwest
portion of the camp which in turn floats on the system.,

Having completed the plant ingpection samples of raw and treated (chlorin-
ated) water were collected at the plant site for bacteriological analysis. This
completed the initial inspection of the plant. The author and Mr. Sokoloff
then collected bacteriologieal samples from the residences of the three known
typhoid cases. Chlorine residuals were taken at that time with all results
aproximately 1.5 ppm. Additional residuals were run in various areas of the
eamp with all tests showing 1.5 ppm or greater with the exception of one which
read 0.5 ppm. It is the author’'s opinion that this lower residual was caused
by a long service line leading from the main to the residence necessitating a
longer period of flushing.

The author and Mr. Sokoloff then met with Dr. Feldman and the two nurses
at the camp office. The author was then informed that other typhoid cases were
suspected. Shortly after our return to the camp office we were met by Dr. Joel
Nitzkin, Chief of Consumer Protection. He was informed that the water plant,
although not constructed in total compliance with the approved plans, was
functioning properly. Mr. Sokoloff then left the camp with the collected samples
and returned to the State Laboratory. Prior to the author’'s leaving the camp
he was requested to be present at a meeting the following morning at 8 :00 AM.
with Dr. Milton 8. Saslaw, Director, Dade County Department of Public Health.

At 8:00 A.M. on February 28, 1973, the above mentioned meeting was held.
At that time the author learned the number of suspected cases had risen. Dur-
ing this meeting the question of modes of transmission were discussed. The
author learned at this time that food had been somewhat eliminated as a source
due to the Tact that no common element existed. The known and suspected cases
were Tound to shop in various stores, no food store common to all. This was
investigated further and remained to be the case. Food was therefore eliminated.

Personal contact was investigated. The result was that sufficient contact
was not evident to warrant this vehicle of infection. It should be noted that
of the initial ease no personal contact was evident. Therefore, this was elimi-
nated as a vehicle. Outside of the water supply little remained to be a vehicle.

1t was then the consensus of the physicians and not the author that we were
dealing with a water borne disease. A meeting was then scheduled for 4:00 P.M.
that day to devise a plan of (1) locating individuals who may have contracted

the disease (2) setting up proper treatment (3) locating the source of the contami-
nation and (4) removal of the source. It was the last two with which the author
was entrusted. The remainder of this article deals with the steps taken by the
author to locate a sonrce of contamination and remove it.

Prior to the 4 :00 P.M. meeting the author ran a Hardy-Cross network analysis
on the camp distribution system to obtain a Dbetter personal feel for the
system. The system was not complicated and suited itself well for an analysis.
The distribution system consists mostly of six (6) inch main with some minor
portion of four (4) and two(2) inch. My final results on the analysis were
completed at 3:30 P.M. The author then located on the map those units which
would have high and low susceptibility to a waterborne disease. This was done by
assuming those units that are served from mains with large flows would have a
high susceptibility and those with small flows would have a lower susceptibility.

At 3:45 P.M. Dr. Feldman arrived with a substantial list of new known typhoid
cases and suspected cases. When these were plotted on the map they agreed in
a large part with the high susceptibility units as indicated by the analysis.
Although the above is a highly theoretical approach it is interesting to note

27-830 O—T74—-—19
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that %J _Z:M epidemic grew it was the lower suseeptibility units that were
reported last.

The author awas sl somewhat skeptical about accusing the water supply of
the outbreak. Theretore the following plan was devised - )

(1) Feed Dye Into the Following Points:

(a) Drainage diteh north of water supply.
(b) Drainage ditch at sewage plant outfall.
(¢) Drainage diteh west of water supply.
(d) Manhole 11.
(e) Manholed4 (upstream).
Ey Take Bacteriological Samples at Well House (Raw) :
(a) Series of four (4).
,:; Twice a day.
(3) Make Initial Determination as To Adequacy of the System :
() Determine by personal interviews the frequency of water outages.
(h) f::..i water samples from confirmed typhoid units.
s ye in individual units to determine possible unit cross connections.
tin from ufility operator the functioning of the 50,000 gallon ele-
vated storage.
(1) Why does the system or parts of the system lose pressure if the well

pump is taken out of service if water is available in storage. ; .

:ﬁ Determine raw BOD of sewage to see if diluted with water. Such would
indicate possible direct eross connection,

(4) .Um_ ermine Amount Of Water Pumped.

A::Esm the 4:00 P.M. meeting all health department sections that were involved
,4:.: :.% typhoid fever outbreak presented their individual plans. One of the
major items of concern was how to get the residents of the camp to boil S:w:..
Arinking ,ﬁiﬁ,. The author suggested the chlorine residual be increased to
phm leaving the plant. This would create such a high residual in the
tribution system that the residents wonld not wish to drink the water
_:E.F :J.Eu could be informed that boiling of the water would remove Qm
_.:‘_Eém:?,. the means for getting the residents to boil their water
s :“M_Mwﬁrﬁwawsm following afternoon the chlorine feed rate was adjusted to
::_ the morning of Mareh 1, 1973, the author contacted the U.S. Geological Sur-
¢+ for the purpose of determining (1) the direction of ground water How W:E
) the maximum well depth for the area before chlorides hecome a problem
The resnlts of the conversation was that (1) groundwater flow was from zolm
q.c sonth due to the influence of the South Florida Flood Control canal Azoém?
ﬁw.::: Snﬁmm approximately one hundred (100) feet south of the camp and
(2) a maximum well depth of seventy (70) feet was possible.

.3:@ to this conversation the plan was modified to eliminate the dye points
M.ﬁ .:% sewage plant outfall and the drainage ditch west of the water supply
his seemed reasonable at the time due to the fact that the groundwater Eoz,o.:.

from ‘:2..,: to ﬁ,ﬁs_‘:.w thus not in line with the well field and also because
nts were at such a grey ists : i ,
ol i were At s ::ﬁ%wo%hﬂ?:qm that the cone of depression from the

‘.‘i 12:30 PV 2:. canal to the north was dyed with fluorescein. At 12 45 P.M
A Commaon et faeility was dyed. This facility discharged iuto Bm:::_m.szsmmm
. ! - nursery trailers were dyed and at 1:05 P.M. the camp manager’s
_w was dyed. Both of these discharge to manhole number 11.

:.m M. Ken Schang an engineer from the Dade County Pollution Control
ived at the camp. He was requested by ‘the author to determine the
sewage ,::é pattern. The author accompanied Mr. Schang for xv?.oﬂ.
1.:‘ fwo (2) hours, It should be pointed out that we were Qmm::m; ,in:. H
tively new system. Initially the existing labor camp was used as an mew
mrracks %:;:m World War I1. At that time a sewage collection system meémm.m

afment nﬁ”:.:.,. (trickling filter). water distribution system .m:m r ﬂ.m#mm

tment m,:,_::‘.ﬂ (ehlorination?) was constructed, In March of 1969 the Florida
«.:r Health approved a new water distribution and sewage collection
! with a new w :od freatment facility which was deseribed previously.
W :~:w? we had a relatively up to date system to work with. The plans indi-
e H&.E_M;,_/. and old wystems and also what portions of the old system was to
itial findings were as follows
1e old x.<mmc5 which was to be abandoned was in fact in use,
sewer line that is located some ten (10) feet south of the
was plugged with concerete at both ends. i

279

(3) Sewage flow in the abandoned sewer was reversed therefore necessitating
an uphill flow.

(4) The sewage lift station was surcharged.

(5) Bvidence of sewage on the ground was found at the first manhole upsteam
of the lift station.

At this point in time we knew we were dealing with a questionable sewage
collection system and what appeared to be poorly operated.

At 4:15 P.M. no dye was evident at the well house.

Prior to 2:00 P.M. the author collected four (4) bacteriological samples from
each well, At 3:00 P.M. they were returned to the State Laboratory for analysis.
One sample was broken prior to transit.

From 4:15 P.M. till 8:00 P.M. the author spent his time reviewing the location
of suspected cases and plotting them on a map of the camp. It was at this time
that the case distribution began to follow the Hardy-Cross analysis as to high
and low susceptibility.

On March 2, 1973, results from the seven samples collected the previous day
showed the presence of fecal contamination. At 8:00 A.M. six (6) one gallon
samples were collected from the six (6) inch well. These samples were used to
try to isolate salmonella typhi. A seventh sample was collected from the drainage
ditch to the north. Three soil samples were collected from the immediate area
of the wells. These were also run for salmonella typhi. All the above mentioned
samples were negative for salmonella typhi.

The raw water was continuously checked for the presence of dye from the pre-
vious day. None was found. At 10:30 A.M. both the canal and the raw water was
free of any trace of dye.

At 11:35 A.M. the author returned to the well house and noticed a floor drain
which had, up to this time, been overlooked. This was dyed immediately. At
11:40 the dye was present in the raw water. It was discovered that the foor
drain discharged into a dry well located immediately outside the well house
some fifteen (15) feet north-northwest of the six inch well. Dye was again added
directly into the dry well and picked up in the raw water some three and
one-half (3% ) minutes later.

The dry well consisted of an eight (8) inch vitrified clay pipe twenty-four (24)
inches in length set on end. A ten (10) inch bell housing protruded some six (6)
inches above the ground. The question that came to the author’s mind was how
can the dye be introduced at the ground level, flushed to the water table three (3)
feet from the ground surface, pass through thirty-three (33) feet of the aquifer
and picked up in the well in three and one-half minutes. In addition why were
we unable to obtain dye from the eight (8) inch well when similarly introduced
into the dry well.

Mr. George Ficher, Executive Director of the Homestead Housing Authority,
was present for these dye tests. He informed the author that the wells were not
cased to thirty-eight (38) feet, but to twenty (20) feet with a twenty-five (25)
foot hole. This made the 3% minute time more reasonable but still rather short.

At 4:45 P M. the canal was again dyed north of the well site.

On Mareh 3, 1973, the author received the bacteriological results from the pre-
vious day. All showed various degrees of coliform contamination. During the
afternoon of March 3 the author reviewed the results thus far obtained. The lack
of information on groundwater flow other than that obtained from U.8.G.8. still
left doubt as to the groundwater flow. All the drainage ditch dye tests had proven
negative. The author then decided to use a concentrated dose of dye at the
northwestern portion of the canal. Also it came to mind that the coliform density
showed a direct relationship between dry and wet ground conditions. Two
things would be done: (1) Samples for E. Coli wounld be taken at the ém: with
the ground around the well dry. The ground would then be saturated with raw
water and additional samples collected. (2) The ground surface would be dyed
some twenty (20) feet from the well.

Due to the author's inability to collect the samples and return them tfo the
laboratory these tests would be put off till March 5. .

On March 4th the author collected six (6) one gallon samples from the six (6)
inch well. Dye was once more added to the drainage diteh north of the well. This
would be the last attempt at dyeing the diteh in the area. The heavy dose was
put off until the following day. Additional cases.were plotted on the map and
showed the outbreak to be spreading to other areas of the camp.

On the morning of March 5, 1973, the author received a call from Mr. Sidney 8.
Berkowitz, Chief of the Bureau of Sanitary Engineering with regards to the
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status of the outbreak. He was informed of what had transpired the previous
weelk and what was planned. He then indicated that Mr. Nick Mastro, Assistant
Chief, wonld be sent down as soon as possible to assist in the problem .

A eall was also received from Mr., Nathan Lee, Presidnt, Rex Utilities who
informed the anthor of the existence of a4 8IX (6) inch water main in 8.W. 137th
Avenue which is the western houndary of the camp. Later that day he wag re-
fquested to make two hose h available for filling containers with drinking
water. This was provided the following day.

A third telephone call was also received from Mr. Charles Price of Florida
Water and Utilities who offered his expertise us a well driller for fifteen (15)
.,M?:w. An appointment was made to meet at the camp at 2:00 P.M. that same
day.

At 12:00 P.M. the author arrived at the camp. Two samples were ::Emm:im:.
faken from the six (6) inch well, The area some twenty-five (25) feet north
of the well was then saturated with water for fitteen (15) minutes. Again two
samples were taken. The results were available the following day and showed
the first two as cotiform free., The second two showed g small eoliform count,

Three one gallon samples were also taken after the ground was saturated,
These samples weare collected for the salmonella typhi determinations,

At 2:00 .M. Charles Price arrived to review the wel] situation. During the
previous days the anthor had concerted most of his effort on locating sources of
tontamination. As far as the well system wag concerned the depth difference,

ULy thought to pe tifty (50) and now twenty-five (25) feet. was the most
lgnificant discovery as to the construction of the wells. It wag made quite evi-
dent at Mr. Price’s arrival that the author Wwas exposed to too great an amount
of material in such a short time, Just by looking at the well casing one could
see that the eight inch well was only six (6) inch and the six (6) inch wag but
a three (3) inch, In reflecting back on the situation, if the author had not been
diverting most of hig attention to possible pollution sources ang had noticed the
well sizes, doubt would have immediately been bresent as to the well depth.
Needless to s8ay the author learned a lesson.

In addition to this finding Mr. Price felt two (2) wells were drilled and not
driven. This was accomplish by driving a rod under the concrete well pad and
feeling for reg stance, .
At 2:45 P.M. Mr. Nick Mastro arrived at the camp. The situation was reviewed
and inspection of the camp was made

From 4:00 P til 6:00 P.M. the author continued to locate the cases on
the camp map, The ‘Ases were now being reported in all areas of the camp.

it the use of the map was discontinued. The reportng of the eases
wed the erudely construered Hardy Cross analysis.
Ar 1:25 P.M. on March 8th (6) one gallon samples were collected from what
has heen referred to as a six (6) inch well, now known to be three (3) inches.
At 3:00 P.M. a heavy dose of dye was added to the northwestern portion of
the drainage diteh.

On March Tth at 8:30 AM. the dye was still present in the canal but had
moved some four hundred (400) feet to the east. It was interesting to note that

motion of the dye was against the prevailing wind, Therefore some easterly

LWas present in the ground water.

AT 10030 A M. six (6) more one gallon samples were collected from the three
(3) ineh well. All the samples thus far collected had proven negative for salmon-

typhi.

On Mareh Sth a meeting was held at 8:30 AM. at the camp with Mr., Ray
de. Connty Manager. It was at thig meeting that equipment, namely a back-
wis made available to the author for digging dye pits ang exposing a por-

vof the aha :,W::ma sewer in the vicinity of the well house,

AL approxima ely 1:00 P.M. a backhoe was delivered with an operator to the

A pif was dug some two (2) feet into the ground forty-five (45) feet to

north of the three (3) inch well.

A1 3:00 P.M. Dactor Wellings from Tampa arrived with a milipore filter unit
whieh eonld he connected to the well for concentrating samples. Therefore it
Was unnecessary to continue collecting one gallon samples for salmonella typhi.
Ken Schang ot Pollution Control was also at the site. Shortly after hisg arrival
Glenn Dykes and Ed Hayes of the Bureau of Sanitary Engineering were present
at the site.

The next site to he excavated was the abandoned sewer line some six (6) feet
sonth of the eight (8) inch (now six inch) well, During the trenching a part of
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one of the sewer bell housings was broken. EW that ﬁBw W %qu MMW mmmwﬁmmgwwﬁm
3 r line. A fifteen gallon sample was co 0 : .
MwwﬁmﬂMwmmMM was exposed for some fifteen ﬂﬁwvz mm%W_ %mm%mmomoﬁﬁmmww%ﬂ%m
i ! W 1d be noted tha :
Flow continued from the sewer. It m.wo: ng from the
i difficult to say because the sewer w
pipe appeared to be clear. It was ) Hhon tormianted o o i
i in the water table. The excavation was
Mmmmvu m%w%wwm wm Pollution Control was requested to prepare a report as to the actual
¢ ‘s sewage collection system. )
mo%,wwmwwwﬂoﬁﬁml%imm mmwzu% out truck was made mE:mEm nomww_um mmwﬂﬂﬂ MMM
Qmémnmam.m the trench. This would enable a close examination o ea
mmMMwmwn.. during the 8th a representative of the memmemwﬂmmw Mw_mmﬁwumﬂm@wwwmmm%uﬁmm
i the camp units fo X
Department was on hand to inspect > 1 1L e Commections.
i i lations of the plumbing co ev
His findings for the day were several vio 2 o ! e howerer no
i i ! } problem was
cross connections. One thing of some Ummddmwoc oot of e e, mdition of
bing in the building some seventy (70) feet wes - In -
m%mmwwmiw%um the building sewers were suspended from the floor joists. Con
i king was evident. i )
ma%wpm%mmmm%% %Eum%m author arrived at the owEv mﬁ w “om NWHMW W %mwm oﬁuﬁﬁw MQMWMWEWWM
( 3) inch well sim ;
(21) feet to the east of the ﬁ:,mm. ( ' ae Lo the morthern
i ty-five (45) feet to the
one had been dug. The third dye c.; for : e e e
i ruction. Just about the time this pit w
(3) inch well was under construc fime this plt was completed
i arri 0 the fact that Pollution Con 0
the pump truck arrived. Uﬁw to t T pauTol yas nat on the
[ the dewatering of the trench was put : ;
MMMMMW mﬁﬂmcmwwidowma the crew to dig the final dye pit, forty-five (45) feet west
i 11 . .
of Mﬁmﬁ%wmm%wvnwwowzﬁwoim work was curtailed due to a n.«ommgm“mﬂadmu Vmemummmw
the migrant housing. Therefore, the remainder of the day’s log is not a firs
renrt it. 8 two and a quarter hours later
: .M. Bd Hayes dyed the east pit. Some : r
g% MWW ..WWmeamg in zu%m well. The Qm.sow. was. wﬁ.uﬁmm iﬁam. %%Hm‘wﬁww wuwmmmmﬁ
pumping the sewer flowed with a clear liquid eminating. During
i ' flow became turbid. . .
EWMSM\HMWMMHHSW the author met with Glenn Dykes and ﬁm mm%mmmmw_%w “mw WWM
or 3 hots and 45 mimaten Tater 16 wis Shoy e R T e
or 2 hours and 45 minutes later. It was shor Ur that the author
i i i i 1 from the camp. During
was involved in a discussion with personne e dteen (1)
ion i twenty (20) feet deep wi
sation it was heard that the wells were v y Jiporeen
i his mind to try and soun
feet of casing. The author then Bm.am up his e e e e
g 2th the author met with Mr. Sidney Berkow:
wmmm%m%mwmw%u»mnv He suggested that the U.8.G.S. be contacted mwwmnmm%%wwﬁwwm
electric log of the well. The request was made but due to the omﬂm o O e
well the electric log was impossible, The author then m.ozdmonma T. e o
and together the well was sounded. H_Emzuémm m_mnoB%:MWmm wmcmmwuoﬁmm 2 e
i 3%) inch copper tubing from the well pad. )
MMWMWWMW\M&E well me:a down. It qwﬁnmumozuﬂmmeww\m m%mﬂmwwﬁmw meww Momznmww
i E: lowered to the bottom o e well.
MMMMM M%Hmu :qu was slowly raised until we felt .35:“ m@wmw.amm to %m Mwm_u_mowmm
ww zum. casing. This point was marked on the string. The string WM Eﬂommﬁwm vere
then removed and measured. From the m.nosum m.zu.mmom to the %_o omoﬁum e e
was measured to be eighteen (18) feet six (6) inches. m‘wanEuw mu O e
to the edge of the casing was measured to be fifteen (15) feet. mwm nade the thrae
and one-half (3% ) minute time for dye to reach the well from the dry
amﬂwmmﬁmmwm added to the west pit at 2:05 P.M. HﬁmH@Mmmmﬂ%m.g %WM MMMHM MWWMQWMEMMM
S E : P.M. or one and a half wOm.H.m ater. ig )
M.M.wﬂﬁ%mﬁm%nmww wmw move in an east southeast direction and also explained the 400
f dye in the canal.
momw mmmHMMHM%MMm%mM wwwv m‘mﬁ. to the south pit some ﬁonﬁ.w|m<m (45) H.m.mn @.cBm MWM
SmemAw\w inch well. By 7:00 P.M. that evening it had failed to show its pres
inthe raw water.

t this ti studies were terminated.
Wwﬁwmmhwum%nﬂmm meeting was held in the health department conference room

idi is ti formal recommendations were
i . law presiding. It was at this time that 1 "
MM%@WM mvmwwm Uwﬁbm:muw solution. The author prepared the following letter
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Mr. GEorRGE FI1CHER,

E.recutive Director,
Homestead Housing Authority,
Haomestead, Fla.

Dear Mr. BIcHER : Based on our recent survey of the South Dade Labor Camps
water supply problem we have reached the following conelusions :

(1y The ting water supply system shall be abandoned and a connection
the Rex Utilities system loeated in Tallahassee Road (S.W. 137th Avenue)
led.

The elevated storage tank shall be secured in such a fashion as to pro-
«{ access to its contents.

"ge from the sewage treatment facility into the drainage diteh
I be terminated with aunother disposal method acceptable to the appropriate
‘erning bodies provided.

(4) The ting grease trap located at what has been described as the
tments he pumped clean, filled with concrete or physically removed
ng building lateral connected to the sanitary sewer.
(5) The existing plumbing system located in what has been referred to as
the nursery and auditorium shall he repaired to prevent any leaking of domestic
wastes on the underlying soil.

There way be additional requirements for your action eminating from this
office and/or other governmental agencies.

Your cooperation with this office has been excellent in the past and we hope to
continue this relationship.

Very truly yours,

KeNnNeErE R. PrerFreEr, P.H.,
Engineering Section.
MrLTOoN 8. Sasnaw, M.D., M.P.H.,
Lvireetor.

Approved and Forwarded ;

During the remainder of the week the author put together the laboratory re-
sults. It was found that two samples collected from the trench dug to expose the
abandoned sewer were positive for salmonella but not salmonella typhi. How-
ever, the presence of a pathogen in the immediate vieinity of the wells (twenty
feet from the main supply) is a gond indication (author’s opinion) of severe
well contamination, This also is excellent proof (author’s opinion) of the out-
hrealk originating from the water supply.

Also additional substantiafing proof is the presence of an as of yet unde-
termined virus colleet from the three (3) inch well. Both the salmonella and tne
virus are being typed at the present time.

As to the cause of the outhreak, one can only speculate. However, several
sources of well contamination are possible.

(1) The drainage ditch has continuously showed contamination. It is not
connected to auy moving body of water and eircumseribes the entire eamp. The
8 e freat) t facility discharges into the diteh thus creating a possible

to the motion of the groundwater a southeast or east southeast flow
d. The und is probably underlain with considerable solution chan-
any rock filtration etfect. Evidence of two small solu-

r channels was shown in the north and west pits,
} A dry well located in the immediate vicinity of the well field showed an
indirect connection to a supply well. This in itself is an excellent means of con-
inating the supply well. Furthermore evidence of human fecal contamina-
tion in the area around the well leads one to believe that defecation has taken
place. It should be pointed out that the author personally saw children using the

ea around the wells as a play area. The dry well was constructed in such a
way as to provide an outside commode.

) The abandoned sewer which ran some fifteen (13) or twenty (20) feet
the well showed what appeared to be a surface water intrusion flow, A
test on the building located over this sewer line showed no connection.
However, the sewer line cannot be eliminated as a possible source due to the
fact of the two (2) positive salmonella, organisms that were isolated.

b A final source of possible contamination is the ground surrounding the
well house. Dye studies showed the ease at which contamination on the surface

could reach the supply wells. Again the author feels the presence of solution
channels in the area plays a great part.
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i iti i £ rant to determine the source
In conclusion, additional studies may be warranted e : A
of MESBE_mEoF However, the author feels that ;m. oouSB.Emiou of z.um ﬁﬁnmm
supply occurred at a time when chlorine was not being fed into the mme@meum
that the contamination itself was in an instantaneous dose. Wmma 8 ; %cmm
shown the chlorine eylinder to be expended on or about the date of the prol
ination. . R .

oowﬁm%m_ﬁ report on the South Dade Labor Camp Typhoid Fever Outbreak will
be prepared in the near future.

DapE COUNTY BUILDING AND ZONING REPORT

i ity La S.W. 137th Avenue and
] stead Housing Authority Labor Camp, located 1 :
wwwww_d%qmmﬁ March 8, 1973, Report of Howard C. w»mmmmﬁswEWEEMWQMDWWMMMMW.
- L} i3 L ! " ) md .
I arrived at the labor camp at 1:15 P.M. and met with 1 f s
mmmwmﬂa for Dade Public Health Department, and Mr. Ken Schang of Pollution
Control. i ) :
i d sewer line close to the
ations were underway to uncover an abandone . 1 0
2%%&058 of all drinking water. During the excavation Ewnmm.m. MEH. mzm:mmwm
ﬁum.H checked sewage flow in man holes dewm m%m mﬁ.mmm. ‘Sﬂmmomowmw %% n. oe
p b N - Hb 3
flow was normal, but we found one Emu.HSm ocated ! L are
< y g ter was seeping in. We
he camp) that had cracks through which surface wa ! ep . >
mmmwgmcmowﬂwm lift station and found the pumps zwmum apparently working normal
age at approximately the correct E<m . ) .
ol w%mm wwmmﬁmwmm to w%pm excavation site. Sﬁﬁmmmwmgwwwww% rmﬂ%m%ﬂ%m@ﬁmﬁmww
i g eiffer n !
back hoe and portions removed. I msmmmmﬂmm to Mr. O o e &y
y ipe until & pump was available to remove sur ace “
w.n%“m m%magm if the line was active. He agreed and excavation work was
gy til next morning. . ) L
mﬁoamwmamwmm:m and I began to check visible sanitary :sMM cmumwwwwpwﬁwmmmwww
d chi v, Pi " y dly in need of repair, g
and child care center. Pipes above grade were ba I e
{ isco d an open pipe that had over
some places when used. We also &.mmo.ﬁmwm O D e e oelt. Water
i he past upon ground surface ,SE:.S two hundr fee . AL
Hmpmn%md_mw.m m:wm Hmmwa:m in various locations, some below grade that could cause
a cross connection when pressure dropped. o .
" %Mﬂﬁ@m checked toilet mﬁ.moﬂamm within mESSEzHE m:_a nrmﬁm OWMW %%anwm %wa
i ng thi , :
found them inadequate for the number o.m people usir ] e
i y IO mintenance, and sanitary condition
were not in use at all for lack of main ce, 7 Cm
ingsi i is ti y 1ling. I reported back to .
both inside and outside at this time were appa e vaaghi
feiffer and recommended that four or five Ecou.mwm. wi ;
w_ Friday (3-9-73) to uncover some underground sanitary E%m,m mo&H nmﬂ.uwm
checl: their condition. Mr. Pfeiffer said he would have the laborers by 9:
xt morning for my use. ‘ . ] ) ey
:SH :%ﬂmz w.mmoEmumE_mm to Mr., Pfeiffer that S:w Q::W omwmmmwuwwr %ﬂmmwwdmww
and three adjoining boarding-type living quarters be O e
i i i 3 y he sanitary facilities in these
as I felt, following my inspection that afternoon. t , >
_ww,a adjacent :ﬂmawsmw could prove to be the cause of the well water
rontamination. o . .
::ﬁwwwﬂﬂo moqle toured the camp with the U.8. Congressional Committee until
rted. ] . . ,
::wwﬂummmmmiﬁ.mm vitrified clay pipe when surface é,m.;mm S.smwmar.ma dmmtnmmﬁoﬁm
any raw sewage fowing through pipes, thus eliminating this so0
nowmw.u ﬁ%%%%md laborers did not show so I proceeded to check thoroughly
the sanitary facilities in the m&&imm%ﬁsm quarters.
y of my observations were as follows : . - ,
mQEm%ﬂw% community bath raw sewage was flowing on floors through floor
drains ; .
Two toilets had been removed and ﬁon sealed ; )
One urinal had been removed, opening not mmmwmm., G )
Water heater relief valve did not meet oomm .m%WE%nw ions;
ief lines not extended to outside as per 5.F.B.C. 5 ) e
WMMMH onEm:m laundry trays being used as kitchen sinks (violating
m.mm“.wn.m.vmsﬁm missing or broken, allowing sewage to flow upon ground
stoppages oceur; . o -
,iMMoW %%Smdﬁ:mm on floor drains in garbage pits missing, allowing sewage
to flow in'to pits and therefore upon ground;
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600 gal, grease trap for old Army mess hall (not abandoned) still con-
nected to existing sewers, thereby connecting and retaining sewage, possibly
leaking into ground ; and

Other defects and possible cross connections exist.

I wrote violation (copy attached) and gave to Manager (Mr. Dan Nulen?).
Then I returned to the field to check twelve units being remodeled on this site.
1 could not find whether a permit was issued or whether one ig required for this
type government housing. Plumbing installation violates several sections of
S.F.B.C. There was no evidence that this work had ever been inspected.

I returned to check man-holes east of well with Mr, Schang, with the follow-
ing findings:

One man hole constructed beneath poreh of child care center

Al man holes on east side filled to grade level with sewage, causing all
connecting sanitary lines to retain a full capacity of backed up sewage.

It appears the sewage collecting system from the last man hole S.F.
corner to lift station is partially stopped or incorrectly installed, causing the
sewage system to back up.

It is my belief that the high level of sewage retained in the sewage collecting
system east of the well site and the deteriorating condition of the sanitary
lines is causing a considerable amount of raw sewage to seep into the ground,
thereby causing contamination of the well.

Therefore, I would recommend this section of the labor camp should be
closed immediately to any further occupaney by authority granted us under
the South Florida Building Code, Chapter 4601.3, Sub. Sec. (2).

Howarp C. MassEY, Plmbg. Insp.
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Mr. Foro. I am disappointed that Mr. Eicher has left us, because
there seems to be a contradiction in response to a question from
Congressman Landgrebe about records of the chlorinating of the
water. He indicated no records were being kept during the period that
the contamination apparently entered the well. The statement is made
i this report that records have shown that the chlorination cylinder
was out before the date of the contamination. We are wondering
how the engineer here got records that didn’t exist.

Reverend Vanpensoacur. This is something we'll have to follow
up on. This is one of the reasons I was hoping that this could be made
a part of the record, and, after you have a chance to get away from
here, you can check up on it. There were statements made that we
didn’t even find out the well was only 18 feet deep until a few days ago.

Mr. Forp. And, who is Mr. Pfeiffer?

Reverend Vanpeweoacre He is an engineer for the health depart-
ment. Fe’s with the engineering department of the Dade County
Health Department. )

Mr. Forp. The doctor mentioned he asked for an independent engi-
neering study, and T assume that is what he was talking about.

Mr. Lenwan. Mr. Pfeiffer gave a lot of testimony on another
committee.

Mr. Lannoreee. May T ask if he or his group had ever tried to make
a head count af this facility ? We keep hearing about 2,000 people, and
I understand this camp was built for about 1,400-some people. And,
i fact, Mr. Eicher does not know how many people are there. If
there are near 2,000 people, then it would be proof that the sewage dis-
posal system intended for about 1,400 people would be at least 30
percent overloaded at this concentration. This could explain some of
the sewage problems there. T think it would be interesting if some of
vour people would try to determine if possible what other abuses are
oceurring. I can’t doubt their word when they say a great deal of
destruction is being earried on. For example, this matter of removing
torlets. This does not have to be done by the management. This could
be o y the tenants, Tt's hard te understand why this would be done
nnless for hanling them off or getting them sold for something.

Reverend Vasvennoacnr. Is that a question ? ‘

Mr. Lannorene. Are there a lot of people living there who really
shonldn’t he. or do vou have a way to know this? )

Reverend Vanoenroacte. T can only answer your total question,
which has a number of other things in it. And, T'd have to have
them again.

Mr. Liawnerere, Ts it possible there is 30 percent more people living
at this camp than the camp washuilt for? )
~ Reverend Vawsorwpoacse. My gness is there are twice as many
T rmworkers in there as any census count. And, this is as you have
heard. in terms of Florida, that T think there are twice as many
people Tiving in Florida than most people think live in Florida.
And this is not the stereotype farmworker, but this is troe on Miami
Beach also. This is true on condomininms, There is an overloading
in Florida of people. Thi a fact T wonid consider impossible to
deal with given the recruiting efforts that are made by crew chiefs’
promises in terms of iworkers coming in. ‘This is in order to get
a large labor pool his commimity and into this county. .%_E&w I

—t
jo}

287
think I can document this. There are perhaps nearly twice as many
people dependent zpon agriculture as get work at any given time here.
Mr. Lavperese. If your assumption is true, it would be possible
there are 2,800 pecple at this facility, or more. ) )
Reverend VanpensoacHE. I don’t think at the particular time that
is true. I think this facility has more control than some of the private
camps. And, as I said at the beginning, in many of the communities,
the satellite communities for farmworkers, like Florida City and
Goulds and Perrine and so on, cities within these communities, there
is a tremendous exploitation in housing that exists. There is a tre-
mendous exploitation of doubling up and tripling up of people.
Tt is in those areas that by far the largest mass of people exist. 'The
camp is a controllable scene. The Federal Housing Authority 1s a
much more controlled scene. I wish that they would have controlled
as much as they have the power to control, and we wouldn’t have
had the typhoid epidemic. ) . )
Mr. Lanperese. All right, may I proceed to one of the other points
that I’d like to ask now? o
You are endorsing the United Farm Workers’ method of bringing
some hope here, in your own words. You say that you would look long
and hard at legislation which might be proposed to further :.Eum%m
the rights of farmworkers to organize. Would you go so far in the
other direction as to favor compulsory unionism? Do you think that
it better ? ) .
Reverend VanpeneoacHe. I wish you would describe what you mean
by compulsory unionism. I think this goes to the whole history of
labor unionism. And, this has some very power-packed trigger ideas
w0 WMH Lawperese. 1 think you have a fairly good idea what I mean
by compulsory unionism. I think, it you want ﬁw pick it to @mammm
that it means that without a union card, you can’t work. It is in al
industry and in trucklines, with one exception. And there are Emomﬁm
where you simply don’t go to work unless you show your union card.
Mr. Forp. I don’t want to argue with my colleague, because if you
knew of such a place, and called it to my attention, 1t 1s a clear violation
fthe Labor Relations Act. ) ) )
° Reverend VanpensoacHE. I really find difficulty with a_question
like this, sir, and it seems that it is something in reverse and Tam pmwm
ing you questions rather than you asking me questions. But, I 20:M
that there were a strong method of union organization similar to the
ited Auto Workers. Yes, sir.
duwu\m.mﬁuzgwﬂww. Are there statements made and fellows around that
prohibit a farmworker in the State of Florida from becoming a mem-
ber of the United Farm Workers? Is there any law that prohibits a
man from working like this? Is there anything that prohibits United
Farm Workers from going out and recruiting farmworkers for mem-
ers, for example? . . o
° Reverend <Wz§2wo>@,mw. T would be willing to testify under oath
of my own experience that I have known and observed on the @E&& oM
people including the laws of trespass Into camps beine invoked so that
you cannot visit people and talk to them about joining the union, 1
which the laws on the books are utilized for the purpose of prohibiting

people from joining the union.
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And, [ would point out further there is a need for an extremely
powerful organization in the State, organized with Federal farm
power and support and having a number of organizations to support
it. That would be a right-to-work committee report which would

hibit and completely acknowledge the rights of farmworkers to
ize within the right-to-work laws of this State.

Mr. Lavporese. T wish to respond with a clear and responsible state-
ment. I am not antiunion. I believe in the rights of a man to belong
to any legal organization in the United States. If you wish to belong
to the Methodist Church or to the Moose Lodge, or whatever, I be-
leve in total freedom to join and pay your dues where you think you
wi - benefits. So, I am opposed to saying to a hundred pea pickers,
1t you're going to pick a pea you're going to have to belong. T prefer to
let-the union sell the merchandise and you can embrace their philoso-
phy if you wish,

Reverend Vanoenroacue. I'd like to answer that now that you have
clarified it somewhat.

I believe that the National Labor Relations Act is not a compulsory
union act. I believed that for a long time that that was a solution for
these people. T understood your question, or that you said that these
unions were under the National Labor Relations Act would then be
compulsory unions and I don’t wish to see that personally. I can back
my logic with this. T believe it is important for people to understand
that even at this point in society that the National Labor Relations
Act would impede farmworker organizations. T would rather see
from a moral and ethical standpoint. I’d rather see it with the laws
as they are now, without impeding laws. We have sufficient numbers
of impeding laws and impediments and otherwise now.

Mr. Lanverepe. T think we have a fairly good idea how we stand.

On the last page, perhaps the touchiest question of all these subjects
that we can bring up is this. I came down here in all sincerity to learn
as much as T could learn about the migrant farmworkers program.
And, their problems. And it was this particular study of the typhoid
outbreak that I especially wanted to know about. But, you say you
must assist in ending the racist exploitation of farmworkers. Would
vou be kind enongh, without any holds harred. to tell us what this is
all about. ‘ )
~ Reverend Vawpengoacre. Well, sir, T have worked, prior to work-
g with the Florida Christian Migrant Ministry, worked with race
relations groups in the South. I've spent my entire ministry in the
southern part of the United States, and I love this part of the United
States very much. T work in this area because I felt we lived in a
society of racism by law with some hope after the 1954 Supreme Court
decisions that this would provide solutions to the racist problems.

I saw our national change from a blatant racism to a sophisticated
racism, We find trigger words to use for racist words now. We find
words like busing to be used in the same way that words of degrada-
tion were used to certain groups of people in the past generations.
And, T found this nsed in the highest levels of our land. T was very
" ned when one report of the Civil Rights Commission came out
he findings described in it about our society oing forward and
- pol ed into a separate society. At this point T do not believe
ise we have become so sophisticated in our politics and
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social relationships of living patterns and so on, and I’ve seen us de-
velop into a much more sophisticated racism. We have a racist system
which tolerates an Archie Bunker as a laughable person in our society,
but he penetrates our society. It penetrates the labor movement and
penetrates all of the economy. It penetrates almost everything in our
soclety. N .

And, in Florida, the fact is that much could be accomplished in
relationship to the exploitation of farmworkers because they are
black and Mexican and because they are Chicanos.

Mr. Forp. I would like to call your attention, Reverend, to the 1971
manpower report given to the Congress by President Nixon which dis-
cusses at some length the particular problems of migrants. In that re-
port, and I can state this from it, the majority of migratory farm-
workers come from seriously disadvantaged families. Many are Mexi-
cans or Negroes whose problems are compounded by discrimination—
and this is extracted from one of the reports of the Commission.

Reverend VanpensoacHE. We have specific programs, and I believe
there are people who have worked closely with those programs, sir,
who did because of the need for some people and desire of many people
to lead the migratory stream for one reason or another and stabilize
themselves in society even with this manpower program and after
training to compete with other people, who couldn’t find a job in their
trained field.

Mr. Forp. Let me explore this with you a little bit.

When Cesar Chavez found it necessary to demonstrate to the peo-
ple he was organizing on the west coast their mistake in being used, I
was fascinated when I discovered on the west coast the habit of
dividing the blacks from whites. For example, an employer would
take white applications and separate them from all the others by
the way assignments were made to the work crews and the work
camps, giving the impression that if you were a part of this group
and you work for me, you don’t have to belong to any organiza-
tion, and we'll pay you more than if you continue to mix with
all of these people. This was done for a short time by a very small
percentage, as I understand it, of the agricultural management—
this was a technique that was pretty well developed. It took this very
dramatic action by a person who wanted to organize, to explain his
concern about this to the people who themselves were being victimized
by this technique, and get them to understand the problem. The prob-
lem hasn’t been solved, but at least there is a greater understanding
among the victims of the problem as to just what was being done to
them. )

1 observed here in this county a couple of years ago a great tension
when we were trying to discuss a project like Head Start. There
were people who sald that Head Start has become a program
just for blacks in Dade County, and the Cuban community 1s
being left out of it. Then somebody jumps in from the audience
saying, “What are you complaining about? We Puerto Ricans

are discriminated against, really.” It distressed me to see people
being in competition with others for an inadequately funded
program that should have regard for their children being educated.
But, it is just there. When economic conditions with any segment of
society tighten up, the tension for people who compete for a shortage



of Jobs and a shortage of other opportunities grows with it. Tt is sad
but true, that those of us in politics know there are those ?.wo:ﬂo&
and private life who tend to use this situation in one way or another
for advantage. I don’t think there is any shortage of blame on any
mim of wrw spectrum. But, since that has come into our consideration
here, I think Mr. Landgrebe and T share a concern for whai these
things represent. \

While we don’t necessarily speak or see them in the same way, we
are mocommon concern what this means to America. When I hear
that we are bringing in another element of identifiable people who
might be left out of this situation and I see that we are possibly fol-
lowing a road with policies that tend to just add more and more fuel
to the fire. I appreciate your attempt to help us get some perspective
i this hearing as a person who views some om the answers given
to be problems. I believe, in trying to resolve our differences and
those of other Members of Congress, we should be guided by those
overriding Christian prineciples of justice and r:EE%@. )

Mr. Lanperene. Before the witness responds, I do have to leave
I am going to catch a plane. T am very sorry. I have enjoyed the hear-
ings. I think T have gained some knowledge. And, I'll try to contact
you by letter or phone, because I didn’t quite get as much of an under-
standing on this matter as T really want to. I will be in touch with
vou later. . B ‘ |

~a, thank you,

Tww ﬁ):w time Clongressman Landgrebe leaves the hearing room.]

Mr. Forn. Mr. Mack, you have submitted a short statement here
You say :5# your name is Elijah Mack. You are a crew leader. %oz;&
been In business for 16 years. You say that you usually pick fruit, and
you work in vegetable harvest from time to time. You say that uho:,:
be glad to answer any questions about your business that you can.

I appreciate very much, Mr. Mack, your coming in, because we
haven’t talked to a crew leader in the last 2 days. ﬁ&u p:g, others of us
have talked a lot about crew leaders. So vou can help me to understand
what you do, ) . )

First of all. T understand you are registered under the Federal crew
leader law. And that is the number here. Is that correct?

STATEMENT 0F EIIJAM WACK, CREW LEADER

Mr. Macg. Yes.
/ 7 ro Y 0 O] 1

Mr. Forp. Are you registered under the Florida act?

Mr. Mack. Yes,

Mr. Forp. And then you are one of the 37 or so that we are talking
about who have registered ?

Mr. Macr. Maybe so.

Mr ] ; 7 111 ]
) Mr. Forn. Do you have a set of guidelines and rules that have been
given under that act.?
) Mr. Maok. Yes: and. T was supposed to pick those up in Home-
stead. They were prepared for me.

wf.. Forn. Then vou have just recently registered ?

Mro Maci, Right; vecently vegistered for this year. That is, they
set vietter and we were to go down to register. And, they’d give
He new riles and requirements. ‘ T
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Mr. Forp. This is M. & W. Harvesters here?

Mr. Macxk. That’s right.

Mr. Forp. That’s your company ¢

Mr. Macxk. Yes.

Mr. Forp. You have partners in that business?

Mr. Mack. Noj; at one time. Now, nobody.

Mr. Forp. You operate only in the State of Florida and only in
Dade County ¢

Mr. Mack. Right; presently now, but I’ve been from here to the
State of Michigan. In fact, I worked quite a lot from here to there.

Mr. Forp. You've had experience with other State registration
laws? Have you been registered in other States?

Mr. Mack. No; if you obtain a registration here and whoever you
have assisting, that is sufficient for the other States. They only require
just the one.

Mr. Forp. Would you describe to me just what it is that you do?
What is your business and how do you go about 1t

Mr. Mack. I get—I guess you would say I am between the farmer
and the migrant worker. In fact, most of the people who work with
me for the farmers, they expect a certain amount from me, and they
never really get to the grower. And the grower, he more or less stays
back. T am between the grower and the migrant worker, although the
grower—we get together for what he’s going to pay. If he says 50
cents for this worker and if you're supervising, we’ll give 75 cents or 70
cents or whatever it might be.

Mr. Forp. So your compensation is included in the agreement be-
tween you and the grower to pay so much an hour or a unit?

Mr. Macxk. Most of our work is by the piece, yes. )

Mr. Forp. So he agrees to pay so much apiece, like a case of citrus?

Mr. Mack. Right. He pays the worker so much, and he pays me so
much.

Mr. Forp. Do all of the growers pay the workers directly, or not?

Mr. Macxk. No; they pay me, and I pay the workers. They ad-
vance money to me, and I myself pay the workers every night. And
the farmer settles with me sometimes once a week. But I advance from
him to the worker. To the workmen. So he’ll have it every night. And
I keep the record. And the farmer doesn’t keep most of the record.
Ido.

Mr. Forn. Do you regard yourself to be the representative of the
worker whose labor you're selling or the representative of the farmer
as his agent to recruit the workers?

Mr. Mack. I assume his responsibility, the farmer. In other words,
he holds me responsible for whatever 1t is. And it’s up to me to get
the crew and get the job done for the farmer, whatever he expects
it to be.

Mr. Forp. So you exercise your discretion on who gets hired and
and everything else, and the farmer leaves that up to you ?

Mr. Mack. Yes.

Mr. Forp. Where do you recruit the workers, and how do you go
about it ?

Mr. Mack. About 4 o’clock in the morning you can either see me or
somebody working with me on the corner anywhere from Perrine to as
far as Pompano. You just get out and put your bus on the corner.



And you tell them what you're doing and how much you're paying.
And 1f the worker feels he wants to work with you that day, then he
goes on. And you bring him back to wherever the job is and you work
him. And he works that day. And whatever he earns, you pay him.
And you take him back. Most of the farmers try to—whatever we’re
doing—we have a minimum of. say, $20 per day per worker. And I'd
say the average worker, if he works, he can earn $18 or $20 a day. But
he won’t work.

And it gets to be a problem now with the grower as well as myself. He
don’t want to go to work early at 4 o’clock. Then he wants to go and
sit around for a while and maybe get to the field around 9 and get to
work and work until approximately 3 o’clock, when I want to work till
5 or the grower needs to have me work on it until 5. But he’s made his
plans that day, and he is no good.

And I heard somewhere it takes 75 people to do 20 jobs, and that’s the
reason. He doesn’t want to do the day’s work, and somebody’s got to do
this. Tt is not the crewleader that tells how to get the grower’s crop, at
all. He tells the crewleader what he will do and won'’t do. And then we
have to go on a lot of what they feels ike—they want to get on at 9
and off at S and mayhe 3. So when you once needed 50 people for a job,
now you needed 75 now.

Mr. Forp. You're characterizing the average person you deliver to
» farm for work as being in the category of someone working only
until he gets as much money ashe wants?

Mr. Mack. Some only, because there are some people I must say that
will work and get to this job early, and they’ll work late. But most of
the time when you find that kind of person, they are doing something.
They're buying something. Somebody who's working for more than to-
day. Working for more than day by day. They have some type of goal
to get to. And that type of person is real good. You don’t have problems
with him at all.

I know people working for me in previous years have bought their
own home and paid for it just by working in the fields. Doing real
good. This piecework is work that you can really make what you want
to on. That is really why some do it. Mostly people from the age of 25
on. They can go and set their goal to what they want. And the man
who's only working for $2 an hour or $2.50 an hour, at the end of 8
hours, that’s all he’s got. But here if he works hard, he makes good. If
he don’t work hard, he don’t make much. That’s the way it works.

Mr. Forp. You said that the problem of needing 756 men to do 50
men’s work is because most of them don’t want to work a full day’s
work ?

Mr. Mack. That’s right.

Mr. Forn. Do you try to replace that kind of worker with somebody
else the next time you have the bus up on the corner?

Mr. Mack. There isn’t too much replacing you can do. Labor today—
vou don’t pick what you wants You more or less get what you can.
You don't have a variety to take. I'll take you and you. That'’s the way
i1 ¢ on the corner there is a number of buses to haul some 75
ust the worker’s own choice, though.

n handle the social security for these people?
Right; I started this year.

H,,,T.,.Z,.: K.
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Mr. Forp. And are you required to keep a daily record, because you
may see a fellow once a month or once a week, and you keep a social
security account for him ¢

Mr. Mace. That’s right.

Mr. Forp. And once a month you report that to the Federal Govern-
ment ?

Mr. Macx. Noj;onceevery 3 months.

Mr. Forp. Once every 3 months?

Mr. Mack. That’s right.

Mr. Forn. And that is when you forward the amount of money that
you withheld, plus your contribution ?

Mr. Mack. Right.

Mr. Foro. Who pays the contribution for the employer, you or the
farmer?

Mr. Mack. Repeat that? )

Mr. Forp. Who pays the employer’s contribution? You or the
farmer?

Mr. Macxk. Tt comes out of my pocket. )

Mr. Forp. So you regard yourself really as their employer. And you
tell the social security agent they are working for you and not for the
farmer?

Mr. Mack. Well, I tell them just as it really is. If he asks me who do
T work for, I'll tell him. If he asks me who I work for, I'll tell him the
farmer I work for. . i

Mr. Forp. But you regard yourself as being responsible to paying the
money to the Federal Government?

Mr. Macx. Right. ) )

Mr. Foro. The growers that you deal with, they don’t get involved
in this process at all ?

Mr. Mack. No. )

Mr. Foro. I would like to see just how a fellow like you goes about
this and does these things. There are very few requirements. This
involves a registration. You're supposed to show your registration to
anyone you deal with in your capacity as a contractor. Do the growers
custormarily ask to see your registration card ?

Mr. Mack. Most of them know I have it. But, if you go to a grower
you’ve not worked for, he’ll ask to see it.

Mr. Forp. Does a worker ever ask you to see it ?

Mr. Mack. I can’t remember one ever asking me to.

Mr. Forp. Now, it says that when you recruit the worker that you
will tell him certain things about the area of employment. And you
have described that. What about the crops and operations in which he
may be employed? And the transportation, housing, insurance, and
wage rates to be provided for him? That is all provided in the bus when
he gets there in the morning?

Mr. Mack. No; once you load and go from here to there, before the
persons get to the work at all. There you tell him what you’re working
in and how much he’s going to be paid and, about twice a week or
sometimes three times a week before anybody gets off the bus, you tell
them who you carry workmen’s compensation with. And I don’t go
through this every day, but you have them know often enough what’s
going on.
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And the news gets around whether it’s good or bad. It gets to the
mdividuals.

Mr. Forp. Also, when they get to the place they are supposed to be
at work, you're supposed to put up the notice in writing of the treat-
ment of working—what the working conditions are.

Mr. Mack. No; I haven’t done that.

Mr. Forn. Not yet?

Mr. Macx. No.

Mr. Forp. And how long have you been registered ?

Mr. Mack. Since 1968, I think. Maybe longer. When it first started.

Mr. Forp. I think it’s been going for some 6 years now.

Mr. Macr. Well, whenever 1t first started. That’s when I started.
I forget when it was.

Mr. Forp. Have you ever had a visit from or been called in to visit
with the Labor Department representative since you have been
registered ¢

Mr. Mack. Yes; I have,

Mr. Forn. Do they do that periodically ? How does that come about.?

Mr. Macx. No: your local field representative, I guess, you'd call
him—they would he on different locations and different corporations
where you're employed. They have a lot of their people. And, from
time to time they ask you into their office for further information.
But, at the time, most of the information they get you have to give
them.

Mr. Forn. Do they get out in the field to talk to the workers or do
they talk to you?

Mr. Macg. Most of the time they do, but not recently.

Mr. Forn. You mean they haven't for 2 or 3 years?

Mr. Mack. ’d say maybe longer; yes.

Mr. Forn. So, they don’t bother you very much ?

Mr. Mack. No.
b. Do you have anything to do with arranging housing
for people working for you?

Mr. Mack. Only if T happen to have—sometimes if I know of a
place, I'll mention it. None of the farms I know have houses. And
that’s about half of the places around. If I know of a nice place nearby,
maybe if they're coming down to work, family working for me every
year, they’ll tell me to look out for a place for them. And I do. But
1t's kind of rough now for this reason, that nobody will accept them
unless they know them and that they’re good for the rent. They expect
the crew leader to be responsible for their rent. And you might put
one in a house and they'll go on you. And he’s got 2 weeks’ rent.
And he goes. So you've lost that. But we've learned to accept that.
We'lve learned to accept losing that as a part of the game.

Mr. Forn. And the Federal law requires you to keep payroll records
which keep track of each employee, and how much he makes and
what you withhold from his pay. So, do you do that ?

Mr. Mack. 1 do.

Mr. Forn. Does anvbody ever check those?

Mr. Mack., Yes: Internal Revenue checks. People from Internal
Revenne check them for—rtaxwise.

Mr. Forn. Do you have to show any of these records to anyone when
VO Tenew your registration ?
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Mr. Mack. I haven'tso far.

Mr. Forp. They just renew it without asking?

Mr. Mack. They ask questions, but they haven’t asked for a state-
ment from your previous year. )

Mr. Forp. What do they ask you when you get into registration ?

Mr. Mack. There isn’t too much. Not too much asking. The man at
the employment office knows enough about you. He asks for your
address or who you plan to work for. They know what you're there
for.

Mr. Forp. Except they’re surprised when you register?

Mr. Mack. Might be. ] .

Mr. Forp. We hear there are maybe 1,800 people in your business in
State of Florida, and only 37 or 38 of you are registered with the
State. It looks like there may be a few more, but not many more who
are registered with the Federal Government. Do you believe that,
that there are that many people doing your work without registering
like you have?

Mr. Mack. T don’t really believe it’s that many. But it could pos-
sibly be for this reason—they've been told they have no need for
registration unless they go out of the State. . .

Mr. Forp. Are you satisfied with that, or don’ you think that is
a little unfair, that you have to register and another guy doesn’t?

Mr. Macr. Let me answer in this manner. They tell you, if you
cross the State line for work, then you should register. So if you
don’t, you don’t have to. But, I maintain mine anyway, and they
couldn’t refuse me. So, I've gotten it. Maybe it doesn’t matter, because
if you're mot going upstate, you know, then it isn’t necessary. But
now they’re asking them to register regardless. But before, they did
me anyway, and I registered because I thought it was nice to have.

Mr. Forp. You don’t recruit out of the State? You don't recruit
outside of the State atall?

Mr. Mack. No.

Mr. Forp. Yesterday one of the growers told us that one of the
principal problems with the migrant worker is that he gets all of his
help through the crewleaders, and one of the principal problems he
has is they spent most of this money on wine, and stay reasonably
high all the time. What are your observations about that?

Mr. Mack. Well, they have a2 habit, some of them do. You can’t
classify all of them, because some don't drink anything.

Mr. Forp. And you don’t let your workers drink in the fields when
they’re working for you ?

Mr. Mack. Definitely not.

Mr. Forp. When they come to your bus, if they have 1 jug, do you
make them leave it behind ?

Mr. Macr. You don’t let them on the bus with a jug in the first
place, because if he gets on the bus with a jug, you can’t do much with
him then. So if he has a jug, you tell him to take off a day and have
your fun, becausehe’s more harm to you than good.

Mr. Forp. So you don’t as a habit hire a guy for the day if it looks
like he’s been drinking to the point where it interferes with his work ?

Mr. Macg. Right.

Mr. Forn. He can’t make any money ?
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Mreo Macw, Al he i
leave where he is.

~ Mr. Forp. 50 you don't take drunks to the job, and you don’t let
drnnk on the joh? )

Mr. Macg. No; positively.

Mr. Fowrn. From your point of view, the drinking problem is not
a problem in the fields for the kind of people that are recruited
through you? : )

Mr. Mack. Can you repeat that?

Mr. Forn. Well. if you don’t take a drunk to the field and let him
get drunk on the field, it follows as far as you're concerned and the
people who get employed through you, that drinking is not a problem
in the field? '

Mr. Maox. Sometimes. Let me explain that. You have 8 or 10 people,
and the store sells drinks of wine, and if they feel they want to drink,
they go around when they aren’t seen, and they'll take a drink. And
most times when they drink, they feel they can handle drinking. And
all the people that do this work, they feel they can drink a barrel
without getting drunk. And because when they first start, they can
do it.and maybe when these people get a little older, when he’s on the
bus he's drinking a fifth and he doesn’t show it at first. By the time
he’s at the field, then you know about it. But he can really not do the
work, hecause he can’t get on the job properly. So he’s sitting on the
bus that day. And at 2 or 3 o’clock, he’s wm@m%_ﬁo g0 to work.

Mr. Foro. And you say there isabout 1 out of 82

Mr. Mack. Well, yes; it happens sometimes.

 Mr. Forn. But you wouldn’t characterize the people working in the
field as a result of your efforts as being unable to work, because they
have too much to drink? That wouldn’t be common with your people?

Mr. Mack. No, it wouldn’t be. It could happen. But it would be
rare,

. Mr. Forp, When you get out to the field, who has the responsibility
for seeing to it there are toilet facilities and drinking water available?
Whose responsibility is that ?

Mr. Mack. Mine. Sometimes toilets are there from the growers.
But, the drinking water and all that stuff comes through me. And,
definitely the toilet facilities. B

bfr. Forn. And do you provide food and water?

Mr, Macr. Water.

Mr. Forn. Just water?

Mr. Macr, Water.

Mr. Forp. There is no charge to the worker for that?

Mr. Macg. No.

Mr. Forn, What do you charge for the transportation?

Mr. Mack. Nothing. ,

Mr. Forn. You do not charge for transportation ?

Mr. Macr. Na. )

Mr. Forn. That comes out of your part ?

Mr. Macx. Right.

Mr. Foro. Do you know what the custom is with other crew
ers? Is the practice of not ch 1g common practice here?

Mr. Macr. I would think so.

is a problem for that day to you. And you

les
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Br. Forp. Most of the fellows in your business don’t charge for
transportation ?

Mr. Mack. Especially in this area. Sometimes when they go from
here to North Carclina or somewhere, I’ve known them to charge.
Locally T have known them never to charge because they wouldn’t be
on that bus then.

Mr. Foro. What about 50 cents to get to the fields and a dollar a
bag for oranges and 50 cents a bag

Mr. Mack. Well, I don’t know about that. Not in this area. That’s
all new to me.

Mr. Forp. So, your experience is not limited to just Dade County,
but you have gone on up to Michigan?

Mr. Macxk. That’s right, I even went to Traverse City, Mich. And, I
used to go there quite a lot.

Mr. Forp. Not as a crew leader?

Mr. Macx. Sure.

Mr. Forp. You went there as a crew leader ¢

Mr. Mack. I went there as a crew leader, sure.

Mr. Forp. How long ago was it that you did that?

Mr. Mack. Must be 7 years ago. Maybe longer.

Mr. Forp. Did anybody up there ask you for your registration ?

Mr. Mack. They wanted to see it.

Mr. Forn. How would you say the enforcement up there compares
with here when you show up as a crew leader? Is it about the same?

Mr. Mack. About the same. Michigan has a little different thing.
We’d send them kind of a—we send them a letter each year. Some kind
of a recommendation. In other words, if you've gone up one year, it
always is the same. You always send this letter ahead of you to con-
firm your employment with the labor office up there. In the office up
there.

Mr. Forp. And what kind of situation are you getting up in the
labor offices? Is there anybody in the State labor department or the
State unemployment offices that does the same kind of recruiting that
you do?

Mr. Mack. If you're asking me what I think you are, until either
last year or the year before—when I can’t be sure—we were able to go
to different States through our local employment offices and were able
to recruit labor. But, I understand they stopped that and we are not
able to do that anymore. So, if T understand it right, each State is sup-
posed to furnish its own labor. Although I know some crews that went
up the road, and I was told from my local employment officer here,
because I planned to send some to Mississippi and I was told that I
can’t do that anymore now.

Mr. Forp. As a registered crew leader, do you ever get contact from
another grower who says that you are in the business and can you
help me out? You have a letterhead and a company name here. And
a telephone number. Do people call you and say that they are growers
and when they are picking next? They're picking next week. And
they’d like to get so many people?

Mr. Mack. Only if they’re recommended. Well, out of State you're
recommended from the employment service locaily.

Mr. Forp. No; how many times in the last 2 years, say, would some-
body have contacted you instead of you contacting them ?
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M Mack. T uet ool o . o
,& »:g. E\EF I just work in a chain with the same ones. But I have
been contacted quite a lot and unable to offer services,

Mr. Foro. Have you been contacted by anybody to find out if you
could get caneworkers for those jobs? )

A 7 . 3
Mr. Mack. Yes; I have worked with cane. In fact, I was the first
Eﬂw contractor on the lake planting cane.

Ve Forn. Do you recruit workers now for cane?
wMack. No; T don’t.

. Foro. You never do that ?

Mr. Macr. Na.

M% MW‘E:. E%% long ago was that that you contracted ?

Mr. Mack. It must have been 10 or 11 years ag )

\ years ago, off the top of
head. [ don’t know. o pormy
JM\% r. ﬂ %Ew Is /mrmn Mvm?jw the offshore workers started to come in ?
Mr. Mack, Noj that was about the time the 1 :

A ney was trying to r
offshore labor out. T ying to xule

Mr. Foro. So, for that short time you were contracting?

Mr. Mack. Right.

Ty e

\ M .;ﬁows. And you are known as somebody providing labor for the
cane business for how long, would you say? One year or three years
or what? How many seasons ? . ) ,
) ‘,ﬁw., ‘\m. ACK. No; It was a new Industry that just came over, And I
happened m_c be a very good friend of a fellow in the employment
omrmq? And they were looking for someone and he told me to see them.
nd I went down and got a contract with them and planted a lot of
cane ﬁ:wn season. That was before I made a home here,

. Mr. Foro. I am kind of interested in these fellows getting paid by
the u@o,ﬁﬁ::%:w to do the work you're doing. And obviously they
don’t do a good job because they get better service from you.

@:W any of them contact you for cane work during the past several
years?

Mr. Macx. No.

ﬂ r. Forp. Do you know if other people, the fellows in your busi-
ness, have come throngh here trying to get crewleaders to pick up
workers for it.? ‘

M. ﬁ, ACE. Not that T know. Not to my knowledge.

Mr. Forp, So as far as your knowledge of what is going on in
agrienlture here m Florida is concerned, there hasn’t been anybody
around shopping for caneworkers? . |

Mr. Mack. No; mostly what I offer is here in Dade County. In
south Dade.

.ET,. Forp. But you have a pretty good knowledge of what goes on
with people in the crewleader business?

Mr. Mack. Right.

Mr. Forn. Do you know of anybody in the crewleader business cur-
rently in the last year recruiting workers for the cane business?

Mr. Macg. No. _

Mr. Forn. Does that happen because those who are hiring are hiring
all the caneworkers from overseas ? )

Mr. Macr. They are hiring offshore. Because the work is done—
their work is done by offshore workers, Jamaicans. because they are
stronger physieally. They can really eut. And there is no comparison
_)if%,%: you and me and them. It’s out of sight for that cane. And
they'd rather have two or three offshore men than us.
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Mr. Forp. How do the wages compare between what you make
and what they make?

Mr. Mack. That I don’t know. During the time I was there, our
people were making more than the people from offshore labor.

Mr. Forp. They were?

Mr. Macg. The people working with me at the time we were last
working with cane was making more than the offshore labor was.
The reason why I say so was our men were making more money
for short hours. They were making more money.

Mr. Forp. Your suggestion is that there is validity to the assumption
that a man from the British West Indies is bigger and stronger than
men from here and that he can stand more heat ?

Mr. Macx. Sure. He can stand more heat. Let me put it that way.
He can just stand more heat. I don’t say our people can’t but they
won’t. And when you go out there and take the knife, you can’t
blame our people for this either—you take a few strokes with these
people and try it and yor’re gonna quit. You can’t blame them. It is
tough.

Mr. Forp. T want to thank you very much for coming down on
short notice and trying to help us understand these things.

I think my own understanding of what is involved here has been
helped.

w%% concern is that the honest men in your business be protected -
from the kind of people we are reading about and hearing about. And
my understanding has been increased by this meeting with you. I am
going to try to give you a little protection.

Mr. Mack. Thank you. T appreciate it. )

Mr. Forp. And Mr. Krome, thank you very much for responding to
our request to get somebody who is a crewleader to come in. I appre-
ciate your cooperation.

Mr. Krome. You're welcome. :

Mr. Forp. We now have Mr. Rice and Mr. Pro. And without objec-
tion, the prepared statement submitted to the committee on behalf of
Community Health of South Dade, Inc., from Messrs. Pro, Rice,
Carmichael, and Belloff—MTr. Belloff as well ¢

Mr. RicE. Yes; this was prepared for insertion in the record and for
testimony before you yesterday. We were sorry we weren’t here then
because we had to be up in Tallahassee.

Mr. Forp. All right. This will be entered as an exhibit.

[Information referred to follows:]

STATEMENT OF FERNANDO PRO, JR., PRESIDENT, AND GEORGE I. RICE, EXECUTIVE
DirecTor, CoMMUNITY HEALTH orF SoUurTH DADE, INC.

I would like to express the appreciation of our group for the opportunity of
meeting with this Committee of the legislature, representing Community Health
of South Dade, Inc. The organization is a non-profit corporation chartered in the
State of Florida. Its policies are made by a nineteen-member Board of Directors
representing a cross-section of the population of Dade County below North
Kendall Drive, including migrants. The purpose of our organization is to develop
a comprehensive delivery system of health services in this area which includes
approximately 160,000 permanent residents plus approximately 20,000 to 25,000
migrants and seasonal farmworkers, In developing this health system, CHI has
been designated by the Department of Health, Education and Welfare as the
Grantee of the Migrant Health Program, In this eonnection, CHI is the recipient
of some $681,000 yearly provided for the purpose of giving personal health
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services to migrants and seasonal farmworkers. In addition, Dade County has
spousored the CHI idea by providing a $500,000 contract for in-patient care to
be used to sub-contract with hospitals in the area for needed hospitalization
for the poor and near-poor including migrants. Further, Dade County provides
additional budget for certain health planning and services delivery functions in
connection with its other units in the South Dade area. Negotiations are cur-
rently underway with the County for CHI to administer the South Dade
Commaunity Health Center now under the Division of Hospitals of Dade County
but coordinated into the CHI Health Delivery System. With those series of
contracts, grants and agreements, CHI has for the past year either operated
or coordinated two clinies providing services for some 25,000 individualg with
an average patient load of 7,000 patient visits per month. Also, referrals are
made at the approximate rate of 3 per day for Jackson Memorial Hospital, which
acts as the back-up for the System along with the County contract for in-patient
SOrviees.

The group of representatives from CHI is not here today promoting any spe-
cific piece of legislation. We are here to tell the members of the legislative com-
mittee about what we think happened in a typhoid epidemic: what we think it
shows related to the problems of the people who work as migrant farm laborers
or seasonal farmworkers. We are here to express our concern as people for the
other people who come to our area to work and have been both benefited and
subjected to major indignities. Although CHI, in its role as the Grantee of the
Migrant Health Act, has no legal power of enforcement, it has a mandate from
the Federal Government to stimulate those officials and persons who have the
responsibility in matters of health, to perform. their functions. We have taken
certain steps which will be detailed later to pursue aggressively a continued
interest in environmental problems; to do everything in our power to make
certain that the tragedy of a major typhoid outbreak does not occur again or
that some other preventable calamity does not happen in our area.

In a situation like this, which is the subject of legal proceedings, facts are
sometimes difficult to prove and we do not wish to add to the overpowering
number of rumors and irrational suppositions. From the standpoint of our
organization we must provide certain assessments: these include

(1) There was, sometime prior to Jannary 1, 1973, a contamination of the
water supply of the Sonth Dade Labor Camp with fecal and other drainage
matter.

(2) At some point prior to February 25, 1973, or there abouts, the typhoid
bacterium was introduced into the water supply at the South Dade Labor
Camp in some manner.

(3) At some point during this period, the chlorination process either was
not sufficient to handle the elimination of the typhoid laden matter injected
into the system, or the chlorination system in some way broke down or mal-
funetioned so that the roughly 2,000 people comprising the inhabitants of the
South Dade TLabor Camp were exposed to typhoid if they drank the water.

4) These assessments are made on the rational approach that there is no
other way, in our opinion, which could have resulted in over 180 confirmed
cases of typhoid fever requiring hospitalization and follow-up treatment.

To set the record straight as to what went on during this typhoid outbreak,
I have asked the CHI Medical Director, Dr. Jerome Beloff, to prepare a back-
ground statement which he will brief for you now.

Twe TYpeoip FEVER EPIDEMIC OF 1978 IN HOMESTEAD, FLA.

(Prepared by Jerome 8. Beloff, M.D. Medical Director South Dade Community
Health Center and Community Health of Scuth Dade, Inc.)

INTRODUCTION

During February and March of 1973, there was a common source outbreak
of Typhoid Fever cased by a contaminated water supply at the South Dade
Labor Camp near Homestead, Florida. Over 200 persons were hospitalized with
the diagnosis of Typhoid Fever and, to date approximately 180 of those patients
have had ryphoid organisms verified from their blood or stool. The Public Health
Department survey of typhoid fever cases occurring in persons not living in the
South Dade Labor Camp has identified the fact that each one of those cases
had intimate contact with the labor camp water supply. Three related cases
f typhoid fever occurring outside of Dade County, oceurred in persons who
moved from the South Dade Labor Camnp between the incubation period and
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BACKGROUND INFORMATION ON THE SOUTH DADE LABOR CAMP AND ITS INHABITANTS

This Labor Camp was extensively renovated by the Homestead Housing
Authority approximately three years ago. Despite a few old and dilapidated
frame units, the majority of housing units are of cement block construction of
duplex apartments, barracks-type rooms and apartment housing units. Although
the registered census is approximately 1,474 persons, it is estimated that the
camp frequently supports as many as 2,000 persons. In surveying patients living
in the camp for possible typhoid fever, approximately 1,700 persons were sur-
veyed. Although some of the units have private bathrooms, many of the housing
units have no toilet facilities, the occupants being required to use communal
toilet and shower resources scattered about the camp. .

A local, shallow 20 foot deep well supplies the camp with all of its drinking,
washing and cooking water. Tests performed by the Public Health Department
have shown frequent contamination of the water by Coliform organisms since
1970. A test as recently as December 208th, 1972, reveals Coliform organisms
and a very low chlorine content to the water. Sewage flows through a network
of pipes to a local sewage disposal plant located approximately 14 mile from the
center of the camp. After treating the sewage with chlorine in this plant, .Em
efluent is put into the local canal system around the camp which circumsecribes
the camp on three sides. The sewage collection system is reported to wm%m fre-
quent breakdowns, with backup of sinks and overflowing toilets. There is con-
siderable surface water about the camp from this source, from leaking outside
faucets, and from rain. .

There is a ghetto-like atmosphere in the camp with the following factors
contributing to this situation: Overcrowding of the housing units is very com-
mon ; screening of the windows and doors is in poor repair; roaches and rats
are not uncommon in miost units; large numbers of sick and mﬁ.,m%. dogs are
constantly present in the camp; and severe periodic noise pollution is created
by the Homestead Air Force Base which is situated very close to the camp,

Despite a permanent residents population of seasonal farm écww@.m 41.:3
exceeds 609%, there is constant in-and-out migration of families coming Eﬂ.o
and going from the area. The primary occupation of the Eﬁm@#m:ﬁm of this
camp, is seasonal farm work on the nearby vegetable and fruit farms.

The ethnic composition of the residents of this camp is approximately 80%
Mexican-American, and 209, Black. This population is approximately 14 adults
and %; children. .

The Primary Health Care Services for this population is provided by two
clinies: One, the Martin Luther King, Jr., Clinica Campesina in moEmmnmm..?
approximately three miles distance; and (2) by the South Dade Community
Health Center in Goulds, about six miles distance. These two Health Centers
are a part of a primary health care network coordinated by Community Health
of South Dade, Incorporated with offices located in Cutler Ridge. Although a w.ms
persons from this camp community attend with private physicians, the majority
receive their medical care from the two clinics.

Experience with this community of patients has revealed need for gm.ﬂ&oﬂo
spectrum of medical care problems. This group, however, has been mﬁS.moﬁ .8
more than the usual number of periodic outbreaks of viral and bacterial in-
fections involving the respiratory and gastrointestinal tracts. One oﬂ the wa?
lems in management of medical problems has been the poor compliance with
medical regimes. It has been estimated that only 259 of the @mﬁmﬁ«m fully
comply with the medical management recommended. Another ovmm:wﬁoz .umm
been the general reluctance of this community of patients to accept hospitaliza-
tion when recommended, except in the most critical situations.

THE CHRONOLOGY OF TYPHOID FEVER CASES

The first case of typhoid fever occurred in a ¢hild who was admitted to Variety
Children’s Hospital from the South Dade Labor Camp on January 20, quw..ﬁwm
second case occurred in a 10-year old child from the camp Sro was mQ.wawmm
to Variety Children’s Hospital from the Martin Luther King, Jr., @::o..m
Campesina on February 20, 1973. Within 24-hours the hospital laboratory .Emuﬁ-
fled the organism from a positive blood culture as being H:..o,cmEm typhoid and
therapy was started. On February 27th, typhoid was verified in the mmno.am
child, as well as from a pregnant woman hospitalized at Jackson Memorial
Hospital. On February 27th, six more cases of probable QESE .H..m<ma.€m~.m
identified at the South Dade Community Health Center by the clinical picture
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presented and blood agglutination studies. Three of these i

rese g a st hese patients were hos-
pitalized and three were sent home for lack of availability of hospital beds. On
February .wmw.: 13 more probable typhoid fever patients were identified and 7
M,%Mo mmmv;m:svm and 6 were sent home for lack of hospital beds. On March 1
1973, 30 more patients with probable typhoid fever were identified /
n:mam of whom 10 were hospitalized. <@ At the two

rom March 2 to March 11, 1973, a local emergency medical clini

B [arek . L1, 1973, a loes Ne) ¢ was estab-
lishe m,,m: the T:.i:. Dade Labor Camp in the auditorium of the Day Care Center
f »ﬁ:mm ?mm:.ﬂ staffed by personnel from the two clinies. This diagnostic ozim
:cmﬁ.:mm J,Sz 9:00 PB..S 8:00 p.m. daily, including Saturday and Sunday and
the following Table indicates the activity at the eclinic: ’

Home for
abservation
Date ~ Number . as no beds
patients seen Hospitalized available
Health center emergency room:

Feb. 20 ..
Feb.23. ... Ll Lo
I S 3
Feb.28. ... ... LIl ] :
Mar 1. .. Ll : s
SDLC emergency : 10 20

Mar. 2

Mar. 2 14 45
Mar. 4 & 2
Mar. 5 2 oo
Mar. 6. 1§ s
Mar. 7. . b
Mar. 8 B
Mar. 9 e
Mar. 10 S
Mar. 11 W ..................

Note: Other patients were hospitali i i i i i
emergency wmzwnm. et amwm‘;m_ama during this period directly from the South Dade Community Health Center

MEDICAL MANAGEMENT OF THE DEVELOPING PROBLEM

The index of suspicion of an outbreak of typhoid fever in the South Dade
Ti:‘:, Camp was E:mmm when the second case of probable typhoid was identi-
mi_ .:: m,m,325~.z 21. C: February 23, five more febrile umzmi.m were seen at the
,f:_: h Dade Community Health Center where blood agglutination studies were
tf.rigm.a and blood cultures were drawn. This was reported to Dr. Eisner at
the Public Health Department by Dr. Daitz from the South Dade Community
Health :.e.EE.A On February 27th the confirmation of Salmonelia Typosa from
two hospitalized cases stimulated an epidemiological investigation of the South
M‘mem. Labor .DmEU Dby the Public Health Department. On February 28th Dr
Beloff, Mr. Rice, .2:.. Diaz and Mr. Pro of OHI met with Dr. Saslaw and Em.
staff at the Public Health Department to discuss the rapidly developing out-
break. At that meeting the Public Health Department suggested that the water
M.; the camp was the probable source of contamination. The chlorine level of
that water was ordered to be raised to 10 ppm. by the Health Department. On
March 1st, Dr. Beloff and Mr. Fred Diaz met with members of the mmm:&. De-
S.;.Ee:n at the Homestead Clinic and planned the opening of an emergency
.::i:.u_ clinic at the South Dade Labor Camp for the following day. The plan
::6_,43_ the cooperative interaction of Public Health nurses visiting patients in
:.:,:, _:::?r.. and referring sick persons identified to the emergency clinic. Con-
siderations in that planning effort included the following : ) .

(1) The development of a patient log and a medical record form

(2) The procurement and organization for examining Q:&Emm with guar-

anteed privacy for examination in the auditorium ;
) (3) The development of a patient flow pattern so that a large number of pa-
:Ei.w could be efficiently registered, temperatures taken, history obtained
medical examinations performed, laboratory specimens obtained and mucwoca..
::,” :,m ition made;

“mw M::mwx: supplies and laboratory materials needed to be obtained ;

o ocal transportation about the camp had to be arr )
transportation of the patients from the omBmm to the mmmwm:mwwmm,mﬁvmmwmwm.Sm: o

(6) The availability of hospital beds had to be established : _
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(7) Means of communication had to be established which included the pro-
curement of several new telephone lines to the facility called the emergency
medical clinie; and

(8) Personnel had to be obtained and scheduled for the operation of this new
activity.

On March 2, 1973, the Emergency Medical Clinic was established by the staff
of the Community Health of South Dade, Inc. Through the cooperative inter-
action of the CHI staff, the Public Health Department nurses who visited the
camp homes, and the OMICA staff who acted as interpreters and as transporta-
tion assistants, a very busy clinic was held. Approximately 380 ill patients were
examined on that day for possible typhoid fever. 14 patients with probable
typhoid fever were hospitalized at Jackson Memorial Hospital and Variety Chil-
dren’s Hospital after which no further beds were available. 45 other persons
with suspected typhoid fever had stool and blood cultures taken but were sent
home on symptomatic treatment, as no more hospital beds were available. At
the end of that day, the Directors of the Department of Hospitals began to rec-
ognize the nature of the crisis and planning for more hospital beds began.

By March 3rd, ,the Emergency Medical Clinic at the South Dade Labor Camp
was functioning smoothly with excellent coordination between the CHI primary
medical care component, the Public Health Department’s Survey nurses, the
Department of Hospitals arrangements for patient admissions to hospital beds,
and the OMICA staff for translation, communication and transportation.

During the early stages of the crisis, the high chlorine content of the water
made it unpotabie. Residents of the camp were getting large containers of water
from other areas for drinking purposes. On March 4th, a new drinking water
line was brought in from a nearby commercial water pipeline, after which the
residents were able to obtain drinking water from the faucet in their camp from
this new line. From March 10th to March 21st, 1973, a temporary continuing care
facility was established in the South Dade area for the convalescent care of the
previously ill hospitalized typhoid patients. Arrangements were made with the
Miami-Dade General Hospital, a new hospital that had not yet opened but which
was capable of being made ready for patient use on short notice. Staff from
the Jackson Memorial Hospital got this facility organized, staffed and supplied
and patients were moved to it from both the Jackson Memorial Hospital and the
Variety Children’s Hospital. Patients were transferred to the new facility from
the acute hospitals who had the following criteria :

There were patients who had diagnosed typhoid fever who were over the
age of § years;

There were patients who had been afebrile for at least 48 hours;

There were patients who had no complications and who simply needed
hospital and nursing care and continued antibiotic therapy for the full 14-day
course.

SOCIAL ABPECTS OF THE TYPHOID EPIDEMIC

The many families who had members involved with the Typhoid Fever Epi-
demic were.confronted also with severe social problems. Because they were un-
able to Soww they were soon out of money for food, rent, electricity and gas.
Many families were unable to visit members who had been hospitalized because
of lack of transportation and the money to obtain transportation. Pressures from
these needs led to a meeting at the South Dade Labor Camp on March 5, 1973
chaired by Mr. Dewey Knight, the Director of the Dade County Divigion of
FHuman Resources, The involved organizations reviewed and summarized the
facts of the epidemic to date, and the acute social needs of the camp families.
At that meeting it was decided to set up satellite offices within the next one or
two days from County and State agencies to deal with these social problems.
Shortly thereafter satellite offices were established in the Community Building
of the South Dade Labor Camp for the Welfare Department, the-Food Stamp
office, the United Fund and the Red Cross. By liberalizing the County rules and
regulations for assistance during this emergency, the agencies were able to re-
spond appropriately to the needs of the families in distress. Locating the decision-
making offices in the camp, also reduced the barrier of distance and transporta-
tion for those families.

The extent of the remarkable cooperation of multiple agencies and institutions
in this community to meet the crisis posed by this typhoid epidemic in a large -
labor camp, can be gained from the following list of involved agencies and
institutions:
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Community Health of South Dade, Inc.,

The Martin Luther King, Jr. Clinica
Campesina

The South Dade Community Health
Center,

The Dade County Public Health Center,

The Dade County Department of
Hospitals,

The Dade County Manager's Office,

Jackson Memorial Hospital,

Variety Children’s Hospital,

Organized Migrants in Community Ac-
tion (OMICA),

Redlands Christian Migrant Associa-

Dade County Welfare Department,

Food Stamp Program,

Migrant Services Foundation,

United Farm Workers,

Red Cross,

United Fund of Greater Miami,

Farmworkers and Migrant United,

Health Planning Council of South
Florida,

Homestead Air Force Base,

Several water companies who donated
drinking water to the camp residents,
and

Many others.

tion,

ORGANIZATIONAL PROBLEMS IDENTIFIED

The reluctance of the Department of Public Health to call this outbreak a
community crisis when 20 patients with probable typhoid had been hospitalized
and a larger number was sent home for lack of hospital beds retarded medical
efforts to deal with the problem. This lack of identification of the serious nature
of the problem as late as March 2nd by the Public Health Department contrib-
uted to the necessity for sending 34 probable typhoid fever patients home be-
cause no hospital beds were available in the community for these patients. Sec-
ondarily, this led to a temporary loss of confidence by the South Dade Labor
Camp Community in the ability of the establishment to deal with their crisis.
Some families left the camp at that in panie, and others, with sick family mem-
hers, refused to attend the eclinic in the next two days because of this lack of
confidence.

The uncoordinated and autonomous management of the patients with typhoid
fever at the Variety Children’s Hospital, the Department of Internal Medicine
at Jackson Memorial Hospital, and the Department of Pediatries at Jackson
Memorial Hospital led to a variety of management programs. The lack of eom-
munication and the sharing of experiences among these treatment groups was
rectified by two coordination meetings held on March 5th and March 7th at the
Jackson Memorial Hospital organized by the Division of Infectious Diseases.
This was most helpful in establishing a standardized protocol for the manage-
ment of these typhoid fever patients.

At Jackson Memorial Hospital policy decisions were often easily established
at the Executive Director and Departmental Chairman level. Communication to
the resident staff in medicine and pediatrics, especially those physicians in
the position of admitting patients from the Emergency Room, was less reliable.
This resulted in a number of patients with obvious typhoid fever having their
admission to the hospital refused by the Admitting Resident.

CONTROL MEASURES INSTITUTED

Control measures to limit the spread of the epidemic included the following:
‘A, By the Primary Care Health Network (CHI related) :

1. Examination of all febrile persons in the camp for diagnosis of possible
typhoid fever and hospitalization of all suspected cases (available 24 hours
aday).

2. Health education of individual families regarding personal washing
habits to prevent cross infection.

3. Rectal swab cultures of discharged patients when missed by Public
Health teams, to identify carriers.

4. Routine follow-up blood tests on discharged patients following treat-
ment. course with chloramphenicak

B. By Public Health Department :

1. Heavy chlorization of camp’s water supply (10 ppm. level).

2. BExclusion of eamp children from schools.

3. Voluntary quarantine on emigration from the camps.

4. Reetal swab culturing of treated cases for carrier status, and of ill
family contacts for identification of cases.
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SOCIAL ACTION RESULTING FROM OUTBREAX AND ITS ATTENDANT PUBLICITY

1. Focused re-examination of migrant labor camps for inadequate housing,
water, sewage, rat control and environmental hazards to bealth.

2. Unchlorinated well water in several camps identified and chrolination estab-
lished.

3. Stray dogs removed to large degree by dog warden.

4. Upgrading of some housing units in camps to meet standards. Others per-
manently closed.

5. Oongressional House Health Committee meeting (Paul Rogers, Chairman)
in Homestead, March 9, 1978 to identify needs for legislation related to Migrant
Health Act and Pure Water legislation.

6. State of Florida Committee Meeting to review Migrant Health and Housing
needs on April 6, 1978—i.e. Committee for Health and Rehabilitative Services.

7. OHI initiated meeting with South Florida growers urging them to pressure
Washington (through Senator Gurney, R. Fla.) to approve funds to build Bver-
glades Migrant Labor Camp badly needed to house farmworkers.

8 CHI survey of 13 migrant labor camps, through consultant, Richard
Brusuelas, environmentalist, to develop recommendations to bring better housing
up to acceptable standards. .

We detail this information to the Committee only to express our firm belief
that had there not been this kind of cooperative effort between the CHI new
on-the-job-health System, the Health Department, hospitals and other agencies
both in the early diagnosis of the disease and the quick hospitalization, the al-
ready needless tragedy would have been compounded by deaths. Even in modern
times, most typhoid outbreaks have a certain number of deaths. To date, we are
fortunate that this has not occurred: Although it must be emphasized that the
typhoid relapses are now being seen in the clinics, the Public Health nurses are
continuing to follow up those patients who had and still have the disease, and the
word “finished” will not be written on this epidemic for some months.

As T have said, we are not here to speak for any specific piece of legislation.
we are here to ask for your understanding that the individuals whom we depend
upon to maintain and pick our crops in South Dakota need help as a group.

CHI, on its own initiative and with the urging of Dr. Paul Betalden, Director
of Community Health Services, Washington, D.C. has been holding open-to-the-
public full Board of Directors meetings every two weeks. We have been mouﬁc.umnm.
in obtaining the services of an Environmental Health Planner from the Miami
Chamber of Commerce and the Health Planning Council, who is in the process of
helping us prepare an environmental study of each camp. He has already provided
material which has helped us identify what we believe are the major problems.
T am asking Mr. George Rice, Executive Director of CHI to tell you of our general
findings and recommendations to this Committee.

(1) The water supply for eight camps in the area needed to be upgraded. m,.ow
the most part this means adding on to an approved municipal water gystem, but in
any event providing chlorination, making certain that the wells are deep enough
and, in general, continuous examination and supervision. We do recommend
strongly that the State and local Health Departments be given sufficient funds
to make certain that owners and operators of the labor camps provide an mmmczmnm.
potable water supply. This means adding appropriate people for both Q:w.ﬁnum
purposes and helping camp operators properly chlorinate and maintain their sys-
tems. There has already been much accomplished. South Dade Camp has hooked
on to the Rex Utilities Water Supply. L

(2) We urge legislature and the administrative state programs to asgist in all
ways possible to see that minimum bousing code standards are stringently en-
forced. Even though the South Dade camp was one of the newer camps, there was
evidence at the time of the typhoid outbreak that there were 2,000 people in
dwelling units not meant to accommodate more than 1,500. ,

(8) We believe that it is imperative to close or dismantle those camps or mmﬁwm
of camps which do not meet minimum decency standards. Much has been said in
South Dade and many other places that a new projected South Dade camp Emz.zmm
to be built on the old prison farm site is the answer to the problem. The original
plans ecall for building this new housing for some 4.020 people in 2, 3 and 4 bed-
room units under the Homestead Housing Authority. For the past _“So. years
camps which were scheduled to be dismantled have been kept open until new
housing could be built. These include the B & L Camp, Permit No. 18-11-MLC
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and the Tallahassee Road Farm Housing, 1 & 2, also known as the Campbell
Camps, Permits No. 18-7-MLC and No. 13~-8MLC., This would have meant an
estimated housing loss for 1,347 persons. In all the camps, there are currently
units for approximately 7,000 people. CHI urges that everything be done to
expedite the development of the proposed new camp immediately, but further
stresses the obvious need in the next year ahead that everything be done to
improve living conditions in the camps that remain. There will still be many
persons housed in situations which have no minimum standards for water,
sewerage, sufficient living space, and camp maintenance. CHI believes that in the
total aspects of a health effort approaching the problem of migrants, we should,
in a few short years, work ourselves out of business: That we will be dealing
instead with individuals who have been migrants and have now been re-oriented
to other phases of activities, perhaps including seasonal farm work. There is
some evidence that this is currently occurring, as obviously many residents of the
labor camps are permanent residents. In addition, we are seeing a build up of
clinic visits as a result of some of the manpower training programs geared to
training the migrant for permanent jobs and finding those jobs for him.

(4) In addition, we are asking the State through its Social Services and
Welfare Division to increase assistance in the South Dade area, by way of
social and educational serviees to the migrant group who have a long way to
go in catehing up with other individuals and groups with whom they rub
elbows, We believe, that with additional resources and by working wilth such
groups as OMICA, RCMA, FAMU and others who have provided liason
to the Spanish speaking migrant and the black seasonal worker, that the

initiative of the migrants can be increased fo learn to be independent and to
solve their own problems.

STATEMENT OF FERNANDO PRO, JR., PRESIDENT, AND GEORGE E.

RICE, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, COMMUNITY HEALTH OF SOUTH
DADE, INC.

Mr. Rice. There are a couple of things that might be said.

This is a nonprofit corporation which is establishing a system of
health delivery service here in Dade County. Tts policies are made by
& 19 member board of directors representing a cross-section of the
population of Dade County below North Kendall Drive, includ-
ing migrants. This also includes the camps in the area where the
typhoid epidemic occurred. And we are a consumer-oriented group.
Since the purpose of our organization is to develop a comprehensive
delivery system of health services in this area, including approxi-
mately 160,000 permanent residents plus about 20,000 or 25,000 mi-
grants and seasonal farmworkers, our organization in developing
this health system has been designated by the Department of HEW as
the grantee of the migrant health program.

We were the group when the typhoid outbreak occurred that came
in with our doctors and eoordinated our efforts with our two clinics
at the South Dade labor camp, and who made the diagnosis after
going through interviews with about a thousand people, or a little
over a thousand people from that camp. And we are the group that
hassled for and got hospital beds for those people.

Our doctors worked a great deal of overtime to do this, and to
get those hopsital beds.

We are concerned that there isn’t a good plan for a disaster of
this kind in terms of communicable disease here. And the scope of the
outbreak was determined at least a week before the emergency
was declared. And we felt that hospital beds might have been avail-
able sooner, but there were just times when our doctor had to send
people with what they thought was typhoid back into the camps.
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Of course, this went against our judgment even though we're not
experts in the field particularly. But there are a lot of stories going
around as to exactly what typhoid bug got where and when. And
we have to assume that the water supply was at fault. And we
have to assume because the record shows, and the record in this com-
mittee will show from the health department that for the past 3
years there has been fecal matter in that water supply, and that
obviously the only way it could have gotten contaminated gﬁﬁ far
was because of the lack of chlorination at some point. And there is
some evidence all through that sanitary engineering report you have
that this was known. And we think it shows that there was
some apparent laxity here. And we think this camp was one of the
better camps. We also feel that the building of more housing is not
going to clear the total problem up, although more housing is needed.
We don't deny that but unless we make sure that code enforce-
ment is done right and the maintenance of the grounds and main-
tenance of chlorination supplies and maintenance of water supplies is
kept up, we are in danger of having this kind of outbreak again.

And when you look at it from = perspective of knowing this one
major camp had a water supply that was in this shape, it is just
darn fortunate we didn’t have an outbreak of typhoid before.

There have been other kinds of outbreaks of illness besides, and
one occurred in December in terms of our doctors seeing and report-
ing to the health department of a viral condition or conditions
that obviously came from that camp and showing there was some-
thing wrong. And we are concerned that code enforcement in terms of
local health enforcement be maintained. We are mobomg@? although
we don’t have any responsibility for the environmental part of
it, that the Federal Government give us money for health services,
but at the same time they assume that maintenance of health groups
and the environmental part of it including hospitalization will be
done by local health groups. So we are concerned and we are going
to push now and hopefully as we have before for revision of ﬁﬁm
approach. And although we do not have the responsibility, we're

oing to find out why the officials and persons who have the responsi-
ility in matters of health are not performing their functions
rly. . ) ]
@wm%m %owu. Did you have an opportunity to write to other organi-
zations and people in programs similar to your own in other States
that will be receiving these migrants later?

Mr. Rice. Well, we do have meetings that are called by the mana-
gerial coordinators from the Department of Health, Education, and
Welfare. The regional office in Atlanta has these meetings. So we
do rub shoulders with other groups, yes. )

Mr. Forp. Are they providing any information about what hap-
pened here, and what you found from a medical point of view for these

ther people? )

° Zw..w W%um. Yes, sir, as you know, when the Rogers hearing was
here, Dr. Betalden, head of the health services, was down here
about it, and he wanted us to report to him regularly about the situa-
tion, and we have been. And he was most concerned that all of the
followup cases of people who left this camp be identified because there
probably will be carriers out of this episode. And there will be people
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going to other camps. And this is vital where they go. It’s vital
so they can be controlled and so that there is a mechanism for this
kind of problem and a conduit for the Public Health Department and
through the municipal health services and the other things. And
as we told the other committee, we are interested in this as a con-
tinuation of the Migrant Health Act. We believe that the kind of
investigation and the kind of questions you're asking right now
shows aneed for handling migrant programs, particularly the migrant
health program, in a little different way than the average.

In other words, because of its interstate nature and becsuse it
doesn’t touch all States, but does touch a number of States who get
a large number of migrants—we see in the Fomestead Clinic an
average of 3,000 visits a month, of which about 52 percent a month
are migrants or seasonal farmworkers, and the other workers rep-
resent the balance. And we help coordinate about 4,000 visits a month
total, of which about 15 percent are seasonal or migrant workers.
And we are probably the only health service in the county that does
work with a little over 10,000 people in terms of migrants and sea-
sonal farmworkers in each of the two clinies. And that doesn’t
reach all those in here, but we are probably the major one that they
have to turn to in the way of doctors and health care.

wgw. %Jowu. Is this because they spend more time here than in other
places?

Mr. Rice. Well, they come in early in September, some of them do,
and are out by May. The ones that go into the stream, are gone by
May 1, which is a pretty long time. And, then, of course, lately
there is an accumulation of people in the camp where the outbreak
occurred, which is out of this roughly 2,000 people in the camp at that
time, and of them some 60 percent stayed; 60 percent of them are
staying there all year round now in that camp. It’s somewhere
around that neighborhood.

Mr. Forp. Senator Harrison Williams from New Jersey has been
making quite a fight on this Migrant Health Act, which is scheduled to
expire on June 30 of this year, and the President has indicated that he
doesn’t think it should be refunded. Apparently that is caught up in
the general situation that we’ve heard about, about programs that don’t
work. And this must be one that somebody over there feels or believes
doesn’t work. Senator Williams has introduced a bill, Senate bill 740,
that broadens the act as well as refunding it. I'm sure everybody in
(‘ongress recognizes this, and nobody’s spent. more time studying the
problems of migrant workers in Congress than Senator Williams, and
he’s been Ted to believe that this kind of program does work and should
be in fact strengthened. And T take your statement to be an endorse-
ment of that position.

Mr. Rice. T certainly would believe that.this works. That is in
terms of the episode we have just been through—I believe there would
have been death if we hadn't had the people able to get these people
into the hospital quick. So, see, there has been a lot of talk about
giving services in the camps. Our clinics are out of the camps. And
there was talk about putting up = field hospital at South Dade Labor
Camp to get into this typhoid thing right at the camp. We decided
there no way to do that. As far as we were concerned, we had to get
people to the hospitals where we could give treatment properly. We
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believe in getting the community’s facilities for them where they
would be out of those camps in the mainstream of the rest of the
community eventually. ) i

As far as the Williams Act is concerned, I believe one of the things
he added in his suggested appropriations was the inpatient care pro-
vision, and this calls for inpatient care. This has been one of the big-
gest problems up to this year. And this year the county gave us a
$500,000 contract to subcontract with hospitals in this area for any
needed hospitalization for the poor and near-poor, including migrants.
And we had just gotten it at the time of the typhoid epidemic, and
we got one contract with the Variety Children’s Hospital in which
we put some 39 typhoid cases. And we opened up a wing, and it re-
lieved the situation temporarily. ]

And then the policy was made that Jackson Memorial would take
all the typhoid cases, and the county finally saw the seriousness of the
problem, so they opened up the beds there, and the county actually paid
for this in one way or the other, for all of the typhoid that went
through our system. )

Ewm Forp. Wo“ Community Health of South Dade, Inc. came into
existence with Federal funds? o

Mr. Rice. No, sir; it was organized in May of 1971. T think it was
incorporated, and there was no staff on the job until January of 1972.

I came here in January of 1972, and at that point the initial work was
an. ‘
v@w@. Forp. What happens to you if the Federal funds are cut off?

Mr. Ricp. If the Federal funds are completely cut off, it would
have to be severely curtailed. Our other funds are United Funds and
medicaid and medicare—in other words, third-party reimbursement
which we are just now beginning to file for. And other fees for services.
So right now the Federal funds represent, out of a total budget of
about $1,200,000, some $681,000, which is about 66 percent. So we
would have to substantially reduce services.

What we are trying to do is grow, and using that as a base, grow
from there. By next year we hope to have full county support for the
second clinic, which will add about another million-dollar program
and which will put itself more in perspective with the dollars now
being spent.

Mr. Forp. Thank you very much. . )

Mr. Rice. We have Mr. Fernando Pro here, who is chairman of our
board. . .

Mr. Pro. Mr. Chairman, I let the executive director make the state-
ment he did about the organization because I was more interested T
the broad aspect of the problems that we have. I was at the hearing in
Tallahassee yesterday where I kept on hearing the statement that this
problem we’ve had in South Dade Labor Camp and other labor camps
is a grandfather situation. It seems to me that the whole migrant
situation is in a sense a grandfather situation, because we are thinking
in terms of the philosophy and policies of 30 or 40 years 2go. ‘Which
brings me to the point that while T have been a person who's worked
in migrant programs for a long time, and we have to have these
migrant programs under this situation, I believe that the unionization
of farmworkers just won’t solve every problem, but would certainly
cut the problem down, probably, by at least 75 percent, because then

27-830 0—74 21
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these people could have self-determination and could get their own
things done, because the economic base would then begin this change.
While we're caught up in having to supply services for them, I believe
that we have to think differently even while we are doing the things
that we presently must do. © ”

The camps—T don’t like the idea of camps—TI don't like the idea of
low-rent housing projects, where you take people with common prob-
lems and lump them all in one place. And if you are going to have sub-
sidized housing because they can’t make enough in the work that they
do. it has to be done in a different way. I think it has been proven this
doesn’t work for the camps, and it certainly goes for general housing
arrangements in these migrant programs. Migrant service programs.
We have to be sure these programs are not just brought in to service
the people. They should be brought in so that we’ll have some sort of
control and let them have some control and have part of the action
from the standpoint they can flex their muscles and develop their edu-
cation and learn through understanding of their problems. And
therefore T believe the programs would have a residue of usefulness.
If a program is designed to put people on jobs, it may not do very
well. because it might. be like may others run by professionals, and it
fails—in such a case, nothing has been gained. If migrants are more
involved, even if the program did fail, they would have learned lots
ﬁ.&:m they were doing this job. I'm not saying we are looking
for failures, but with failures, let’s get something out of it. That is
what T am saying.

Out of this hassle we have, no one really knows where the money
comes from and where it is going, and if the money comes to the
State, and I hope we can find a different way later—if there is reve-
nue-sharing funds for migrants—I would like to see it channeled in
some way into the migrant organizations. But I guess this is not
realistic. So let’s put some sort of safeguards there to see that the
money goes to the department or to the departments that the migrants
can work with.

Tet’s do something where it doesn’t go to the Department of Com-
merce that is tied in with unemployment offices. And I think these
people have a job to do, too, but, my God, don’t give them the money
to do things for migrants. If it has to go to a department, let it go
to another department. We have to watch out for this revenue-sharing
so that the money in many areas can be properly spent, and it’s not
going to be spent for nothing. Thank you.

Mr. Foro. At this point we will submit for the record a
statement of Senator Williams touching on the migrant health
bill which extends the program of health services for domestic agri-
a&nﬂwa migrant workers. So this will appear right after this state-
ment.

[Tnformation referred to follows:]

[From the Congressional Record, Feb. 1, 1973}

Mr. (,%:.r;zm. Mr. President, when I introduced the original Migrant Health
.W,:..ﬂ which was passed in 1962, it was in recognitinon of the failure of existing
pri ealth services or Government programs to provide adequate health
eare s es to the Nation’s migrant workers.

) S% migrant and seasonal farmworker knows the daily tragedy of substandard
living eonditions. inadequate nutrition, and an inability to er.g entry into any

health-care system. He and his family are constantly plagued by communicable
and chronie disease,
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There was no mystery as to the reasons for these conditions. The average
family income during the 1960's for a family of five was less than $2,500 per
annum according to Department of Labor estimates, The depressed lifestyle
of migratory laborers and their families, the isolation and exploitation they
faced, and the lack of social services available to them as they criss-crossed the
Nation from Texas to Michigan, Florida to Ohio and New York, from Arizona
to California and Washington is evident.

In 1978, health care conditions for the migrant farmworker remain critical.
According to the Department of Health, Bducation, and Welfare, the migrant
health program still reaches less than 10 percent of the eligible population, and
this is due largely to the inadequacy of funding levels.

A large number of studies have documented the poor health of migrants as a
group. Among the findings lof these studies are the following:

Migrant births occur outside of hospitals at nine times the national rate—
18.1 to 2.4 percent.

Infant mortality for migrants is 25-percent higher than the national average—
30.1 to 24.4 per 1,000 live births.

Mortality rates for T8 and other infectious diseases among migrants are 21,
times the national rate; for influenza and pneumonia, it is 20-percent greater
than the national rate. .

Hospitalization for accidents is 50-percent higher than the national rate.

The average American has seven times the numbers of medical visits per year
than the average migrant—4.3 against 0.61 visits.

In° 1968, $12 per capita was spent for health services for migrants; more than
$250 per capita was spent nationally.

But the first 11 years of the Migrant Health Act has clearly demonstrated that
there are ways of developing health services for the Nation’s migrant population.
Night family health clinies have been started in labor camps. Bilingual per-
sonnel are employed. In faet, it was within the migrant health program that
the recruitment and training of the bilingual community health worker was
first started in a project in Kern County, Calif. in 1964. Some of the migrant proj-
ects, particularly in the Northern States, have made impressive strides in develop-
ing one-step comprehensive primary care service. In other States, the migrant
health program has provided financial incentives to existing health facilities
seeking to induce them to accept migrant patients.

By 1971, as a result of a special migrant task force, the migrant health pro-
gram had developed several prototypes of health care delivery services for vari-
ous migrant populations. Ironically, despite the popular notion that it would
be impossible to establish anything but make-shift operations for migrants in
rural areas, it has been demonstrated that in less than three years, most of
the projects could develop on-site laboratory capabilities, basic diagnostic serv-
ices, family centered primary care rather than fragmented categorical elinies,
bilingual personnel, on-site medical services and referral services to specialty
practices.

Mr. President, despite the progress which has been made over the last 11
years in providing health care to migrant workers and their families, we have
learned that the administration in its 1974 budget proposes to recommend the
termination of the Migrant Health Act together with its built in program direc-
tion and safeguards. In my judgment, this represents a callous disregard for
everything which we in the Congress have worked to achieve—providing the
migrant worker with a basic right to health.

Today, together with Senators Kennedy, Javits, Dominick, Bentsen, Hughes,
Mondale, Pell, Randolph, Cranston, Stevenson, and Nelson I am introducing the
Migrant Health Act Amendments of 1973. This represents not only our commit-
ment to extending this important Federal initiative but also a recognition of the
need to address ourselves to some additional problems which remain in the imple-
mentation of an effective health program for migrants.

In 1965, the Migrant Health Act was amended to include the provision of
“necessary hospital care,” but HERW determined that hospital care costs would
not be covered by the program because of the low level of total funding. Attempts
have been made to use medicaid and other Federal, State, or local payment pro-
grams to provide hospital care, but they have met with little or no success.

A November 1969 HEW task force report concluded that few States provide
any medical assistance under medicaid for migrants, and, similarly, a 1971 OEO
report found only 3.2 percent of migrants in Florida were covered by medicaid.

The most recent study conducted by Community Change, Ine, an HEW-
funded year-long evaluation of the migrant health program, also found that mi-
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grants were not covered by medicaid or medicare and generally were excluded
from any hospital care,

The study said :

“The site visits made it clear that comprehensive health services without hos-
pital access were simply not comprehensive, Relying on ‘other resources’ or ‘local
responsibility’ resulted in limited hospitalization, critical delays and numerous
personal indignities.”

Last year in testifying before the Senate Subcommittee on Migratory Labor
and the Senate Subcommittee on Health, a representative of the lower Rio
Grande Valley stated :

“To be admitted, the patient must pay a $150.00 deposit or sign a promissory
note if he cannot show coverage under some kind of insurance plan or policy,
regardless of his income or ability to pay. If the migrant worker or indigent is
unable to pay his bill, the hospitals seek to collect on the promissory note. After
repeated attempts have failed, the notes may be turned over to collection agencies
who use whatever means available to colleet.”

Recently published Hill-Burton regulations have virtually closed the possibility
of migrants getting hospitalization under the ‘““free care” provision, and migrant
health projects have been instructed not to allocate funds to hospitalization be-
cause of the drain this will cause on their regsources.

This problem and others are addressed in this bill by first, inereasing author-
izations for the brogram generally, second, establishing separate authority for
payment of hospitalization costs for migrants, and third, permitting the Secretary
to authorize migrant health projects to pay premiums for prepaid health care
plans where such projects so request.

Another important provision of this bill relates to an amendment to the
migrant health program enacted in 1970—Public Law 91-209—which mandated :

“Persons broadly representative of all elements of the population to be served
must be given an opportunity to participate in the development * * * (and) in
the implementation of such programs.”

This provision wag adopted following extensive hearings by the Migratory
Labor Subcommittee into the powerlessness of the migrant worker. In May
1972, HEW published a final version of the migrant health regulations which
had a somewhat weakened provision for consumer participation. After an inquiry
from Members of the Senate, representatives of HEW stated that they would
like to strengthen the language regarding consumer participation, but that the
existing legislation did not justify it.

It was further stated that according to studies sponsored by HEW, con-
sumer-based projects did in fact demonstrate “the greatest likelihood of operating
a comprehensive health project which can meet the performance requirements of
scale, accessibility, acceptability, and efficiency.”

Testimony before subcommittees of the Labor and Public Welfare Committee
has repeatedly revealed racial and cultural indignities which must be borne by
the consumers of migrant health services. Consequently, this bill establishes a
priority in the awarding of grants to those grantees whose policymaking boards
are comprised of a majority of migrant and seasonal workers.

Mr. President, according to HEW, there are approximately 1,000,000 migrants
and dependents. Also, there are approximately 3 million seasonal farmworkers
who are eligible for service under this act. The Department’s budget requests,
however, have heen geared to reach less than 10 percent of the target population,

The HEW estimate of the total cost of providing both comprehensive care
and hospital services to the farmworker population eligible under the act was
$600 million. Therefore, it is not surprising that in the past with low levels of
budget requests and appropriations, it was impossible for the migrant health
program to provide comprehensive eare to the program recipients.

Most projects found it difficult, if not impossible, to provide the services that
were considered essential to a comprehensive care facility. They also found
financial restraints preventing them from providing the transportation facilities
which were needed for adequate outreach.

In some of the more temporary or short-term projects where services are
purchased on a visit-by-visit hasis through the season, clinics have had to close
before the migrants have left the area because the clinics ran out of funds.
Other projects have cuf corners by cutting down hours of elinic services. A
visit to most of the clinics will show that funds are not used for spacious
auarters or elaborate architecture. In fact, many of the projects have difficulty
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in meeting the human dignity wm&ﬁawmsmwn %wzmﬁm they had no money to build
uate partitions or seating facilities for patients.
mamm mamwﬁoF each year the program is left with a stack of mumwoqmm UGM
unfunded projects which are needed to serve other Eﬁnmﬁm but which canno
be funded because of inadequate appropriations. Doom:.mEm to HEW, there
are almost 900 counties that have a seasonal migrant impact, and 700 of the
unties are not covered by the current program,
noswowwwmmﬁ despite reports from the Umcmwgmu.n .om Labor that mmé.mw mnm
fewer migrant and seasonal farmworkers will be utilized Qsm. to EmomeNmﬂouF
existing projects keep reporting an Mwﬁ.mmmm@ ommmEmm. Berrien County, Mic m
for example, which is one of the largest Bw.mami impact areas, has Ho@ounmw
at least a 25-percent increase over the previous year for each of the past
%mwmema Cecilia Abhold, administrator of the east coast migrant health project,
has found that 77 percent of all migrants wunm.a&mﬁmm stated Qmw Em% @Euuﬁw
be a part of the migrant stream next year, ﬂﬂ:m only H.q percent indicated ﬁ at
they were in their last season. The sad fact is S.mﬁ Emnmun éo.wwmnm oou_us:w
to seek work despite the fact that there indeed might be Hmém.w .uocm each year.
In the words of one migrant health project director describing one patient
is clinic: .
Sw,wﬁmwm%%% Wm came to the Center for a mozos-s,@ examination and vm, thanked
those who had assisted him. Without the specific m@.«oomow of E.ym Center, he
might well have died at an early age. His only fault being Emn he, Emm ﬁ_oammumm
of others, does not fit into any of our neat @HomumBB.mSa medical mzmsumdom
plans, nor does he have the resources to provide for ?m.oﬁu care. He works
in a most difficult and strenuous occupation, that mm Eo.wucm nvm food H.m.:. your
tables. The fruits of his labor are like those of many Ew.m him, he is poor, alienated
and excluded from most meaningful social Hmmmmﬂ.ﬁwo:w for although we are
willing to benefit from his misery we are not s.E.::m to w..oomﬁﬁ E.E. readily
extricate ourselves from, the responsibility of @woﬁm.:.ﬁ for Em, E.Omﬁ basic needs.
This may be politically, and economically expeditious; bui it also appears
i and immoral.” .
owwmm.mwuwmmamnﬁ this bill was unanimously reported by the Labor and Public
Weifare Committee last year and passed the Senate on »Psmdm.n Hﬂ., 1972, by
a4 unanimous vote. Unfortunately no action was taken on this bill by the
mﬁéﬁwmwm can be no question that the beneficiaries of this program are deeply
concerned about its future. In the last several weeks I cmﬂm received .moewmw
of letters urging me and my colleagues to act promptly wo continue .Suw H,Em.wmu
Health Act. This outpouring from every section Om. Ep.wm country is a further
indication of the need for prompt action to continue this vital effort.

“8. 740

“Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives of :e.m United
States of America sw\, Congress assembled, That Section 310 of the HUH.HEH.Q ﬁmm:u
Service Act is amended by inserting after ‘June 30, 1973, the following: ‘not to
exceed $60,000,000 for the fiseal year ending June 30, 1974, .,muom,ooo.boo for the
fiscal year ending June 30, 1975, $120,000,000 for the fiscal wmma,mumEm June 30,
1976, and $135,000,000 for the fiscal year ending .S.Em mo" 1977,

“Sec. 2. Section 310 of the Public Health Service .an.ﬂ is .m__t..gmw amended by
striking ‘and’ immediately before the clause Qmmmmmmﬁoﬁ (i) in @mwmm«.muw m 1)
and inserting at the end of such clause the mo:oﬂaﬁmn and (iii) premiums for
a prepaid health care plan eligible for Federal mmmHmnmﬁwnm where such m:uﬁmwmm
special projects so request. All _pmgnw Mzmmnm_ mumﬁm_. H:.ﬁwumnﬁm, and prepaid hea

hall provide outreach and follow-up services.
nmwmmmw.:% mmmnawb 310 of the Public Health mmﬁmom. Act .wm further mB@E.wmm by
inserting ‘(a)’ immediately after the mmnmo% mm.mpmdmﬂou and by adding at
the end of such subsection the following new subsection : .

“(b) There are hereby authorized to be appropriated ﬁob@o_ooo for the mmﬁ%
year ending June 30, 1973, $25,000,000 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1974,
$35,000,000 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1975, mﬁo_oooboo. for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 1976, and $45,000,000 for the fiscal year ending June .wo< 1977,
to enable the Secretary to assist in the Eoimmmm .ow».ﬁmommmmm% hospital care

omestic agricultural migratory workers and their families.
S%mmao. 4, mmomﬁou 310 of the Public Health Service Act is ?H‘nvmw.mBm:mmm by
adding at the end of new subsection (b) the following new subsection:
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“*{c) In making grants under this section the Secretary shall give priority to
those applicants whose policy-making body is composed of a majority of persons
who are consumers of its services, where competing applicants appear to the
Secretary of Health, Bducation and Welfare to be equally qualified,’”

Mr. Forn. We also have a request from Richard Brusuelas, who is
«irector of environmental health planning, comprehensive health
planning council, of the Greater Miami Chamber of Commerce, to
include in the record a document entitled, “South Dade Migrant Labor
Camp Environmental Survey.” And, without objection, that will be
placed in the record at this point.

[Information referred to follows:]

SouTH DaADE MIGRANT LABOR CAMP ENVIRONMENTAL SURVEY

(By Richard Brusuelas, Environmental Health Planner, Greater Miami Cham-
ber of Commerce and the Health Planning Council of South Florida on loan
to Community Health Incorporated)

MAJOR PROBLEMS

1. Water Supply Protection
A. Well construction

1. Proximity to toilet facilities that are unkept with fecal deposits on ficor—
floor drains?

2. Surface drainage potentially contaminating shallow aguifer.

8. Proximity to septic tanks (?) or cesspools, grease traps, sewer lines, cast
iron construction are deteriorated.

4. Sanitary construction of most wells questionable. Concrete aprons insuffi-
cient for conditions: concrete pad foundation showed signs of erosion aliowing
possible surface water contamination.

5. Sealed well casing is not sufficient according to authorities.

6. On site sanitary surveys were evidently not conducted.

Recommendations
1. Water supplies should be from an approved public utility.

2. That each camp have a sanitary survey conducted and that wells adjacent
to sources of contamination be abandoned and sealed with concrete.
B. Water distribution system

1. Leaking water-—creating nuisances, insect breeding and safety hazards.

2. Systems should be inspected for backsiphonage.

3. Chlorination necessary for all drinking water.

4, Special tap and wash sink should be provided to wash and fill water con-
tainers that are taken into the field.

. Waste water disposal
1. All waste water and sewage should go into an approved septic tank or
sewage ftreatment facility.

2. Surface drainage should be away from well site.
3. Pot holes and other areas where water stands should be filled.

Recommendations

1. Protection of safe water supplies is necessary for the prevention of disease
transmission. Camp management must make every effort to provide fool proof
safe guard features.

I1I. Toilet Facilities
4. Maintenance

1. Community toilet facilities are a major public health problem because of
maintenance and residents’ practices that ignore the hazard of exposed human
feces and urine,

2. Industrial toilet facilities are needed for each living unit.

3. Temporary sanitation and maintenance service is needed.
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B. Construction

1. Most construetion is basically sound, however individual units have safety
hazards and poor lighting.
2. The porous concrete block construction makes facilities difficult to clean.

Recommendations

1. The ideal situation would be to eliminate all community toilet facilities
and close those units served by such a facility. However, as a temporary measure
a specific action should be taken on a cooperative basis to reduce ‘the health
hazard posed by these facilities. One suggestion is to form an auxiliary clean
up crew with special sanitary equipment to schedule maintenance and
disinfection.

III. Housing

A. Housing Units Do Not Meet Basic Principles For Healthful Housing

1. Overcrowding is the main concern which has direct human health impaect.
The migrant population of South Dade has a high incidence of respiratory and
other direct contact communicable diseases. These diseases are closely related
to overcrowding and other adverse environmental conditions,

2. The construction of many units is a safety hazard to the occupants, especi-
ally the children.

a. Cooking facilities are frequently inadequate and present a fire hazard,

b. Electrical wiring in units, specifically the wooden structures, is exposed
and possibly over-loaded.

c¢. The yard and general premises in the camp have standing water through-
out and also in the roadways between the structures.

Refuse collection is generally good in the camps operated by the Homestead
Housing Authority. However, in many of the camps, refuse is scattered about
the yard and roadway, and there is evidence that refuse is being burned with
the residue being scattered throughout. Tin cans, broken glass, wire, nails, ete.
present a very serious safety hazard for children who do not wear shoes,

Abandoned refrigerators and automobiles should be removed at the earliest
possible date.

Recommendations

1. Overcrowded conditions are difficult to solve without providing alternate
housing, However, the management of the camp should take specific measures
to insure that no more than one family lives in each unit. Also, the maximum
number of individuals per unit should be established in an attempt to reduce
the severely overcrowded conditions that have been reported.

2. BWach unit should be inspected and a list of fire and safety hazards pre-
pared which can then be corrected at the earliest possible date. If the camps
are to remain open in the coming year, an inspection program should be es-
tablished to condemn those units which are totally unfit and beyond repair;
secondly, a routine inspection on a unit-by-unit basis should be established to
bring about correction of problems and reduction of health hazards.

Records should be kept and follow-up should be conducted with the residents
to increase cooperation in reducing threats to their health and safety.

Temporary measures in addition to those mentioned could be taken to make
these units more livable; however, this should only be done if replacement units
are under construction or if remodeling programs are underway.

IV. Other Areas of Major Concern
A. Animal control

1. Animal control enforcement should continue at an accelerated rate until
all stray dogs are removed; further, dogs with owners should have required
rabies tags. .

Many of the health problems of migrants, which were noted in the health
clinics, are related to dog parasites which are transmitted to humans. The preb-
lem is complicated by the fact that many young children play barefooted and on
the ground in areas containing dog/people material.

B. Safety hazards

1. Safety Hazards throughout the camp should be recognized and corrected, if
possible, Hxamples are eleciric extension cords laying aeross wet surfaces to
washing machines. Open ditches along property lines with extremely steep sides
should be fenced. Hlectric heating facilities to the toilets should be removed and
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situated in such a way that they do not present a hazard for use in the shower
facilities.
. Insect and rodent control

1. Insect and rodent control should be conducted on a routine basis; however,
insecticides used on the field should not be used in or around the residences, as
they are extremely hazardous to human health. It is recommended that the
Health Department prescribe specifie measures and insecticides. Further, the
Department should instruct work crews on the use of these insecticides or rodent
poisons.

General recommendations

There is an over-riding need for public health/education programs aimed spe-
cifically at the migrants in South Dade which would inform them of measures
to protect their health and how to cope with many of the health hazards they
face. The program should include environmental considerations, such as recog-
nizing safety hazards, unsafe water supply, and hazardous materials.

BO0UTH DADE MIGRANT CAMPS

Disease symptoms related to environmental conditions :
Respiratory:
Pneumonia : Viral and bacterial.

Pharyngitis: Streptococcal and viral.
Otitis media.

Skin problems:

Impetigo (strep. infections and “Florida sores’).
Visceral larva mignaus—parasites.

Lacerations.

Rurns,

Gastrointestinal:
Salmonella diarrheas. '
Shigella diarrheas.
Viral diarrheas.
Typhoid fever.
Parasites: Roundworms; flatworms; hookworms, pinworms; trichinae.

Other conditions:
Parathione poisoning.
Insect bites.
Urinary tract infections.
Gonorthea.
Syphilis.
Other venereal diseases.
Environmental conditions in South Dade which have stimulated disease (in-
clnding trauma) symptoms:
nsafe water supply.
Unprotected water system or supply.
Communal toilet facilities.
Unsafe and overcrowded housing.
L.ack of animal control.
Unsafe surrounding : e.g. glass, nails, wire, cans, ete.
Improper refuse storage, collection, and disposal.
Improper use of pesticides.
Inadequate insect and rodent control.
Improper food protection. N
Surface water drainage into the aquifer.
Standing water.
Program needs :
Public Health Education,
Preventive environmental health effort.
Enforcement of existing laws and good public health principles.
Advisory service to growers—what can be done to correct specific problems,
Replacement housing.
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New revenue sources, i.e. tax on farm products to provide for housing and
health needs of workers.
Support of farmers for new housing programs.

FmsTr RepoRT oN SouTH Dape LaBor CaMpP ENVIRONMENTAL SURVEY (FOR
CoMMUNITY HEALTH INCORPORATED)

(By R. Brusuelas, Environmental Health Planner, Greater Miami Chamber of
Commerce and the Health Planning Council of South Florida)

THE SOUTH DADE CAMP

The community toilet faecilities have been cleaned up. However, they are still
in use. According to Mr. Bicher of the Homestead Housing Authority, the “bar-
racks” structures have been closed and, therefore, the communal toilet facilities
are no longer being used. There are still a number of stray animals that need
picking up and some of the abandoned vehicles should be removed.

The water well is now under chlorination, and Rex Utilities has been con-
tacted to supply water to the camp. However, a definite date has not been given
for the water line hookup.

CAMPBELL'S CAMP

The structures are all wooden shacks which are rather close together with tin
roofs. The units are served by community toilet facilities located between rows
of structures. A sanitary survey is needed at each one of these well locations to
be sure that surface drainage and other contamination is not getting into the
individual wells. The main hazard here is that the well is located on the same
concrete pad with the toilet facilities.

Water leaks were noted throughout. The camp should alse be inspected to deter-
mine that there is no possible back siphonage apparent.

One shower room and an electric heater located within the shower area, creates
an electrical hazard.

An abandoned refrigerator was also noticed at this camp.

B & L CAMP

This camp consists primarily of wooden shacks and one concrete barracks-type
of structure. The units are served by community toilet facilities. The toilet facili-
ties looked ag if they had been recently cleaned. However, human fecal material
was noted on the floors of the toilet facility. The well supply in this camp ac-
cording to authorities of the Health Department is chlorinated. However, there
is a possibility that surface runoff could contaminate the well, and therefore
basic steps should be taken, such ag increasing the concrete apron around the
well area and filling in low spots of standing water.

OHAMBERS CAMP

This camp is a combination of trailers and buildings. Many of the trailers seem
to be in rather poor condition, with leaking water and sewer lines underneath. The
second part of this camp, a row of concrete units, seemed to be fairly well main-
tained, with fire extinguishers on the wall and, in general, in better condition.

H. L. COX

Trash and loose dogs seem to be the primary problem at this camp. The indi-
vidual housing units have no running water and have very poor electrical wiring.
The sewer facilities seem to be working although some of them are in poor repair.
Preliminary recommendations are that the trash be removed, stray dogs picked
up, that a sanitary survey be conducted of the water supply, and that standing
water be eliminated by filling in the potholes and depressions.

BORINQUEN

The camp showed evidence of being recently cleaned. However, there are
abandoned refrigerators in the camp area that should be removed. Recommen-
dations are that: (1) the refrigerators be removed; (2) that a complete sani-
tary survey be done on the water supply. According to Mr. Eckhoff of the Dade
County Health Department, the water supply at Borinquen is being chlorinated
and showing the chlorine residual.
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J. B. BROOKS

Trash and abandoned automobiles seem to be the most obvious problem. How-
ever, growth in the camp area should be trimmed, and insect and rodent har-
borage need to be controlled, A sanitary survey should be conducted of this
camp's water supply, and the water system should be chlorinated. Again, accord-
ing to the Dade County Health Department, Brooks Camp does not have a chlor-
inated water supply.

REDLANDS FARM CAMP

The water supply in this camp is now being chlorinated, and chlorine residuals
are being noted, according to Mr. Eckhoff of the Dade County Health
Department,

FAR SOUTH LABOR CAMP

This camp seems to be one of those in the worst physical condition, and gen-
eral sanitation around the camp is very lax. Major recommendations are that:
(1) a sanitary survey be conducted of the water supply to determine if sur-
face water is contaminated in supply and if septic tanks and grease traps
present a hazard to the drinking water. Recommendations are that if the camp
is to remain open, the well should be separated from sources of contaminations
such as community toilet facilities, septie tanks, grease traps, automobile wash
areas or truck wash areas. This could potentially cause contamination of the
water supply.

LYTTON'S CAMP

This camp is in very poor condition. That is, grass and weeds have grown up
high around the property: there are numerous dogs running loose, and the
Dremises are generally in poor repair. There are several wells located through-
out the premises; however, most seems to be used for irrigation. There are large
piles of trash outside the chain link fence and within the perimeter of the
property itself. The water supply is located adiacent to community toilets
and presents a potential Por contaminationsg into the drinking water. The regi-
dents of this camp indicate that it will be closed in the near future. At the
time of the survey, there were only three or possibly four units occupied.

ANDERSON CAMP

Sanitary conditions at this camp were still quite poor; there is litter in the
front yards and throughout the area, indicating that residents were not using
proper refuse containers. There are many physical and safety hazards through-
out the area which needs immediate attention. Recommendations are that:
(1) that the camp be generally cleaned up and abandoned refrigerators re-
moved, weeds cut, insect and rodent harborage removed; (2) that a complete
sanitary survey be done of the water supply to determine that there are no

sources of contamination. Further, the water supply in this camp should be
chlorinated.

INFORMATION FROM THE DapE CoUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT ON THE
CHLORINATION OF LAROR CaMP WATER SUPPLIES

Now being chlorinated :
Redlands Farm Camp.
South Dade Migrant Camp,
Cox Housing Camp.
Far South Labor Camp.
Borinquen Camp.
Princeton Camp.
Tallahassee Rast and West Camps (multiple well system—some are now chlo-
rinated).
Not chlorinated :
Brooks Camp.
Cross Camp.
Lytton's Camp.
s Camp (7).
Anderson Camp (to be closed).
Four do not have proper maintenance,
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SourH DaApE MIGRANT CAMPS

(Environmental Survey for Community Health Incorporated by Richard
Cross Camp)

This is one of the better maintained camps. The units are n.wmwd. and screened.
The chlorination equipment is at the well site; however, it is not connected at
this time. . .

The foreman indicated that Mr. Cross was seeking one more part in order to
make the system operational. Mrs. Cross showed me a Health Department lab
report on the last water sample which indicated 50 coliform/100 ml—thus unsat-
isfactory for human consumption.

The well is located within a barn-like structure; however, I would recom-
mend a complete sanitary survey and that the well be further Eg@oﬁmm by
providing at least a 10’ in diameter concrete apron mugnm the well casing to
prevent surface material or drainage from contaminating the supply.

The location of the well in relation to equipment and material stored in the
barn needs further consideration. Potential sources of contamination and haz-
ardous materials should be stored so that accidental spills or equipment washing
does not contaminate the drinking water.

I would further recommend that the Main Cross house water supply be tested.
Mrs. Cross indicated that since the large canal had been put through near the
house their water contained sediment.

The matter of aquifer water quality merits further study to determine the
impact of canals and unsealed irrigation wells. United States Geological Survey
should be contacted on this issue.

LYTTON'S CAMP
(S.W. 147th Avenue and S.W, 180th Street)
The gates wers 10cked ; however, the camp evidently still had a few oceupants,
“KENDALL MOTEL”

(232nd St. and Dixie Highway (US-I)

This group of structures and property should come under inspection and strict
enforcement as soon as possible. Problems in brief are :

Inadequate chlorination of water supply;

Trash and abandoned refrigerators and safety hazards;

Diseased dogs:; and

Junk material and furniture which create insect and rodent harborage.

I recommend that Community Health Incorporated issue a citizen complaint
to the Health Department on these units.

Location: Next to Faith Restoration Revival Center operated by Bonded Col-
lect Agency (1163 N.W. 3rd Avenue) : 12750 S8.W. 232nd Street.

BROOKS CAMP

(18920 S.W. 168th Street)

Two wells serve this group of structures. Neither is nE.S.Emﬁmm.. The general
sanitation in the camp shows improvement from the last inspection.

TALLAHASSBEE ROAD FARM HOUBING CENTER

The main drinking water well on the west side is oEoEumnmm.“ however, the
water supply for the toilet facilities is not according to the maintenance man.
Recommendations are that :

Chlorination be completed ; and

Wells be inspected to insure that surface contamination does not enter the
aquifer adjacent to the well,

Generally, I would recommend that specific criteria for private and semipublie
well construction be developed for South Dade.
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SOUTH DADE MIGRANT CAMP

Rex Utilities has now connected the water. The community toilet facility has
been closed, and the “barracks” units are being boarded up.

FAR SOUTH MIGRANT CAMP

The general conditions have been improved, and the water systems now have
chlorinators attached. However, the well construction and location should be
evaluated.

I recommend that a new single well be provided that is drilled and constructed
with sanitary safeguards.

“COLORED TRAILER PARK"

(Tallahassee Road and 137th Avenue: C. A. Chambers—Chamber's Camp)

All physical environmental problems continue. There are many fire, safety, and
electrical hazards throughout. Animal control is still a problem. Many trailers
showed leaking sewage and puddles of sewage under them. Trash removal also
remains a problem. Recommendations are :

Removal of unusable trailers;

Protection of water distribution systems and replacement of piping;

Chlorination of water;

Repair of leaking sewage systems ;

Correction of electrical, fire and safety hazards ; and

Request of a specific list of measures, from the Health Department, to protect
the water supply. .

A general recommendation is that most of the trailer units are unfit for human
habitation and, therefore, should be condemned.

B & L CAMP

(Tallahassee Road and 137th Avenue)

There is no change in condition ; however, the water supply is chlorinated.
AREA OF 114 AVENUE AND 220TH STREET

The area has numerous “duplexes” that are in poor repair and abandoned.
This could provide alternate housing.

EKETTLES CAMP NO. 2

(North of 232nd Street and West of 114th Avenue)

The general sanitation and safety aspeects of this camp were poor. It could
not be determined if the water supply was chlorinated. Recommendations are that :
The water supply be chlorinated ;
A compilete sanitary survey be done with recommendations for better protec-
tion of the water source and distribution system ; and
There be general trash pick-up.
ANDERSON CAMP

(North of 232nd Street and West of 114th Avenue)

The water supply is not chlorinated. I recommend chlorination and a complete
sanitary survey.

Second report : 4-5-73. .

Mr. Forp. T find T am supposed to be somewhere else at this time.
We made a commitment to discuss this problem with somebody on the
program “Florida Forum.” So they are waiting out there. And T
want to thank all the people who have come out here to meet us for
being patient. It's been a longer period than we planned and we
have imposed on you. I wish we could leave you with a feeling of
optimism that I could share with you about the commitment of the

321

President and Congress. I would be kidding you and myself if T told
you I thought anything was going to happen. But I really do hope
that you will continue to interest yourselves in our activities and
that we can be a conduit for getting the thoughts and channeling
them in a direction so we can at least try to do something about it.
And I am satisfied myself that these hearings have been well worth
the time and effort that it took all of the people involved to put
together for us. And it certainly has been worth my time and effort.

I think an awful lot of people who may never have been to Miami
are looking to see how the Miami area responds to what clearly is a
manifestation of a lot of problems that we ought to be sharing with
you. And to the extent that the Federal Government is the vehicle for
solution, we do share them, at least in terms of financial resources. The
Congressmen from this area have been very cooperative with this com-
mittee and very insistent upon us coming here to learn firsthand
as much as possible about what has happened here and what condi-
tions are here.

So, thank you very much. And I want you to know all of the mem-
bers of the committee and the staff have worked hard on this and ap-
preciate your help and your continued interest as demonstrated by
letting us know what is happening.

This hearing is now adjourned.

[Thereupon the committee hearing was concluded.
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